8
Nig2

A3 Y

<, 007

3 S

AN
. ®

POSITIVE ABOUT
DISABLED PEOPLE

Public Document Pac

CYNGOR

Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire
\/ COUNTY CgOUNCIL

To: Chair and Members of the Planning  Date: 16 January 2014
Committee

Direct Dial: 01824 712568

e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk

Dear Councillor

You are invited to attend a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held at 9.30
am on WEDNESDAY, 22 JANUARY 2014 in COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL,
RUTHIN LL15 1YN.

Yours sincerely

G Williams

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES
2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR

4 MINUTES (Pages 7 - 12)

5 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT (Pages 13 - 70)
6 DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: PARKING

REQUIREMENTS (Pages 71 - 102)
To consider the Supplementary Planning Guidance report attached.

"X, BUDDSODDWYR | INVESTORS o - :
v N
% & MEWN POBL | IN PEOPLE www.sirddinbych.gov.uk www.denbighshire.gov.uk

.



7 DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: CONVERSION OF
RURAL BUILDINGS (Pages 103 - 120)

To consider the Supplementary Planning Guidance report attached

8 DRAFT PLANNING (WALES) BILL AND POSITIVE PLANNING
CONSULTATION (Pages 121 - 124)

To consider the report which outlines the main implications of changes
proposed to the planning system by Welsh Government and offer comments
to be included in the Council’s response to the consultation.

9 NORTH WALES WIND FARMS CONNECTIONS MAJOR
INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT - UPDATE REPORT (Pages 125 - 128)

Report to update Members on the current status of North \Wales Wind Farms
Connections Project, and seek a resolution to the extent to which the Council
should participate in the planning process for this project.

10 PLANNING APPEAL DECISION - APPLICATION NO. 21/2013/0797/PF -
ERW LAS, PANT DU ROAD ERYRYS - (Pages 129 - 134)

Report for information only by the Head of Planning and Public Protection.

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

lan Armstrong

Joan Butterfield
Jeanette Chamberlain-Jones
Bill Cowie

James Davies
Meirick Davies
Richard Davies
Stuart Davies

Peter Duffy

Peter Evans

Carys Guy

Huw Hilditch-Roberts
Colin Hughes

Rhys Hughes

Alice Jones

COPIES TO:

All Councillors for information
Press and Libraries
Town and Community Councils

Pat Jones
Margaret McCarroll
Win Mullen-James
Bob Murray

Peter Owen

Dewi Owens
Merfyn Parry
Arwel Roberts
David Simmons
Bill Tasker

Julian Thompson-Hill
Joe Welch

Cefyn Williams
Cheryl Williams
Huw Williams



Agenda ltem 1

WELCOME TO DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S
PLANNING COMMITTEE

HOW THE MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED

Unless the Chair of the Committee advises to the contrary, the order in which the main items will be taken will follow the
agenda set out at the front of this report.

General introduction
The Chair will open the meeting at 9.30am and welcome everyone to the Planning Committee.
The Chair will ask if there are any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

The Chair will invite Officers to make a brief introduction to matters relevant to the meeting.

Officers will outline as appropriate items which will be subject to public speaking, requests for deferral, withdrawals,
special reports, and any Part 2 items where the press and public may be excluded. Reference will be made to additional
information circulated in the Council Chamber prior to the start of the meeting, including the late
representations/amendments summary sheets (‘Blue Sheets’) and any supplementary or revised plans relating to items
for consideration.

The Blue Sheets'contain important information, including a summary of material received in relation to items on the
agenda between the completion of the main reports and the day before the meeting. The sheets also set out the
proposed running order on planning applications, to take account of public speaking requests.

In relation to the running order of items, any Members seeking to bring forward consideration of an item will be expected
to make such a request immediately following the Officer's introduction. Any such request must be made as a formal
proposal and will be subject to a vote.

The Planning Committee consists of 30 elected Members. In accordance with protocol, 15 Members must be present at
the start of a debate on an item to constitute quorum and to allow a vote to be taken.

County Council Members who are not elected onto Planning Committee may attend the meeting and speak on an item,
but are not able to make a proposal to grant or refuse, or to vote.

CONSIDERING PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The sequence to be followed

The Chair will announce the item which is to be dealt with next. In relation to planning applications, reference will be
made to the application number, the location and basis of the proposal, the relevant local Members for the area, and the
Officer recommendation.

If any Member is minded to propose deferral of an item, including to allow for the site to be visited by a Site Inspection
Panel, the request should be made, with the planning reason for deferral, before any public speaking or debate on that
item.

If there are public speakers on an item, the Chair will invite them to address the Committee. Where there are speakers
against and for a proposal, the speaker against will be asked to go first. The Chair will remind speakers they have a
maximum of 3 minutes to address the Committee. Public speaking is subject to a separate protocol.

Where relevant, the Chair will offer the opportunity for Members to read any late information on an item on the 'Blue
Sheets' before proceeding.

Page 3



Prior to any debate, the Chair mayinvite Officers to provide a brief introduction to an item where this is considered to be
worthwhile in view of the nature of the application.

There are display screens in the Council Chamber which are used to show photographs, or plans submitted with
applications. The photographs are taken by Officers to give Members a general impression of a site and its surroundings,
and are not intended to present a case for or against a proposal.

The Chair will announce that the item is open for debate and offer Members opportunity to speak and to make
propositions on the item.

If any application has been subject to a Site Inspection Panel prior to the Committee, the Chair will normally invite those
Members who attended, including the Local Member, to speak first.

On all other applications, the Chair will permit the Local Member(s) to speak first, should he/she/theywish to do so.

Members are normallylimited to a maximum of five minutes speaking time, and the Chair will conduct the debate in
accordance with Standing Orders.

Once a Member has spoken, he/she should not speak again unless seeking clarification of points arising in debate, and
then only once all other Members have had the opportunity to speak, and wit the agreement of the Chair.

At the conclusion of Members debate, the Chair will ask Officers to respond as appropriate to questions and points
raised, including advice on any resolution in conflict with the recommendation.

Prior to proceeding to the vote, the Chair will invite or seek clarification of propositions and seconders for propositions for
or against the Officer recommendation, or any other resolutions including amendments to propositions . Where a

proposition is made contrary to the Officer recommendation, the Chair will seek clarification of the planning reason (s) for
that proposition, in order that this may be recorded in the Minutes of the meeting. The Chair may request comment from
the Legal and Planning Officer on the validity of the stated reason(s).

The Chair will announce when the debate is closed, and that voting is to follow.

The voting procedure

Before requesting Members to vote, the Chair will announce what resolutions have been made, and how the vote is to
proceed. If necessary, further clarification may be sought of amendments, new or additional conditions and reasons for
refusal, so there is no ambiguity over what the Committee is voting for or against.

If any Member requests a Recorded Vote, this must be dealt with first in accordance with Standing Orders. The Chair
and Officers will clarify the procedure to be followed. The names of each voting Member will be called out and each
Member will announce whether their vote is to grant, to refuse, or to abstain. Officers will announce the outcome of the
vote on the item.

If a vote is to proceed in the normal manner via the electronic voting system, the Chair will ask Officers to set up the
voting screen(s) in the Chamber, and when requested, Members mustrecord their votes by pressing the appropriate
button (see following sheet).

Members have 10 seconds to record their votes once the voting screen is displayed, unless advised otherwise by
Officers.

On failure of the electronic voting system, the vote may be conducted by a show of hands. The Chair and Officers will
clarify the procedure to be followed.

On conclusion of the vote, the Chair will announce the decision on the item.
Where the formal resolution of the Committee is contrary to Officer recommendation, the Chair will requestMembers to
agree the process through which planning conditions or reasons for refusal are to be drafted, in order to release the

Decision Certificate (e.g. delegating authority to the Planning Officer, to the Planning Officer in liaison with Local
Members, or by referral back to Planning Committee for ratification).

Page 4



PLANNING COMMITTEE

VOTING PROCEDURE

Members are reminded of the procedure when casting their vote.
The Chair or Officers will clarify the procedure to be followed as
necessary.

Once the display screens in the Chamber have been cleared in

preparation for the vote and the voting screen appears, Councillors
have 10 seconds to record their vote as follows:

On the voting keyboard press the

+ To GRANT Planning Permission
- To REFUSE Planning Permission
0 to ABSTAIN from voting

Or in the case of Enforcement items:

+ To AUTHORISE Enforcement Action
- To REFUSE TO AUTHORISE Enforcement Action
0 to ABSTAIN from voting

Page 5




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Item 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held in the Council Chamber, County Hall,
Ruthin on Wednesday 11" December 2013 at 9.30am.

PRESENT

Councillors, J.R. Bartley (observer), W L Cowie, J.M. Davies, M LI. Davies, S.A. Davies,
H Hilditch-Roberts, T.R. Hughes., E.A. Jones , H. LL. Jones (local member) P M Jones,
W M Mullen-James (Chair) , R M Murray, . D Owens, T M Parry, A Roberts , D
Simmons, J Thompson-Hill , J S Welch, C H Williams, C L Williams and H O Williams

ALSO PRESENT
Head of Planning and Public Protection (Graham Boase), Development Control Manager (Paul
Mead), Principal Solicitor (Planning and Highways) (Susan Cordiner), Team Leader (Support)
(Gwen Butler), Customer Services Officer (Judith Williams) and Translator (Catrin Gilkes).
Martha Savage (Minerals Planning Officer) attended part of the meeting

1 APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors | W Armstrong J A Butterfield, J
Chamberlain-Jones ,P. Duffy, R J Davies, P A. Evans, C. L. Guy, M McCarroll, P W
Owen, , and W.N. Tasker

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None
3 URGENT ITEMS: None

4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13™ November 2013.
Agreed as a true record: subject to the inclusion of comments made by Councillor M.
Lloyd Davies regarding the proposed staircase at 23 Marine Drive Rhyl which he had felt
would be more acceptable if placed centrally.

5 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT

The report by the Head of Planning, and Public Protection (previously circulated) was
submitted enumerating applications submitted and requiring determination by the

Committee.
RESOLVED that:-
(a) the recommendations of the Officers, as contained within the report submitted, be

confirmed and planning consents or refusals as the case may be, be issued as
appropriate under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, Planning and Compensation Act 1991,
Town and Country Planning Advert Regulations 1991 and/or Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to the proposals comprising the following applications
subject to the conditions enumerated in the schedule submitted:-

P/em/gwen/commitem

Page 7



Application No: 05/2012/0756/PO

Location: Land adjacent to Maes y Glyn Glyndyfrdwy Corwen

Description: Development of 0.37 ha of land for residential purposes and
construction of a new vehicular access (outline application
including access)

An additional plan showing the LDP allocation site at New Inn was circulated. Further policy
clarification was also supplied in the addendum report.

Councillor Huw Jones had made the request for a committee decision in order to examine the
issues around the potential for this land to flood and the way the LDP allocation has been made.
Councillor Jones was fearful of the survival of the village if this site was not developed and
queried the advice that the site is at risk of flooding.

Other Councillors agreed, those with local knowledge expressing the view that the allocated LDP
site at New Inn has been known to flood but the application site has not, and the recommendation
was “knee — jerk” reaction to recent events of flooding in the County. They felt that as this
application site had permission for development in the past (although now lapsed), it should be
granted

Councillor Rhys Hughes proposed that permission be GRANTED. This was seconded by
Councillor Dewi Owens

Officers advised that Natural Resources Wales had originally raised objection to this application
on the grounds that the site was within a high risk flood zone. However, the site is outside the
current LDP development boundary. The issue of the suitability of sites in this area for housing
was fully explored through the LDP process. Officers also suggested that if both this site and the
site allocated in the LDP were developed there would be an over supply of housing in the village
which would put strain on the facilities available.

ON BEING PUT TO THE VOTE:
5 voted to GRANT

14 voted to REFUSE

0 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE REFUSED

P/em/gwen/commitem

Page 8



Application No:43/2013/1236/PF

Location: St. Marys Bishopswood Road Prestatyn

Description: Construction of garden retaining wall and access steps to
form raised garden/patio terrace at rear of dwelling (partly in
retrospect)

Councillor Bob Murray proposed that permission be GRANTED

Councillor J Thompson Hill seconded this proposal and made a request on behalf of the local
member that landscaping conditions be strengthened and requested that a requirement for
replacement trees be included.

Officers to consult with the local member with regard to the exact wording of the conditions

On being put to the VOTE:
19 voted to GRANT

0 voted to REFUSE

0 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Subject to the following revised Condition 1:

Any existing trees within the application site shall be protected during the proposed works by
fencing erected a minimum of 1m from the trunk. Any trees within the application site which
are damaged or die during construction works shall be replaced by suitable specimens to be
agreed in writing by the LPA.

P/em/gwen/commitem

Page 9



Application No: 43/2013/1353/PF

Location: 55 Pendre Avenue Prestatyn

Description: Erection of a single storey extension to rear of dwelling

It was reported that the previous planning application for a rear extension at this property (which
Members refused at Committee contrary to Officer Recommendation) has been ALLOWED on
appeal. The appeal decision, received on 10" December 2013 was circulated separately

Public Speakers:

Ms Tina Gray (Applicant) spoke in favour

Ms Gray spoke of her wish to address previous objections made by her neighbours and as a
result of discussions with planning officers had revised the original proposal.

The extension will now be smaller than originally proposed and Ms Gray hoped this would be
acceptable to all concerned

Councillor James Davies referred to the difficulties surrounding this application and the
topography of the site . He suggested that although the appeal has been allowed the proposal
before committee today, for a smaller extension, would be more acceptable.

Councillor J Thompson Hill requested that conditions imposed by the Appeal Inspector, (relating
to matching materials), be included.

Councillor Bill Cowie proposed permission be GRANTED. This was seconded by Councillor M.
Lloyd Davies

ON BEING PUT TO THE VOTE:

18 voted to GRANT

1 voted to REFUSE

0 Abstained

PERMISSION WAS THEREFORE GRANTED

Subject to the following additional condition:

The materials and finishes of the external surfaces of the walls and roof of the building hereby

permitted shall be of the same texture, type and colour as those on external walls and the roof of
the existing building.

P/em/gwen/commitem

Page 10



ITEM 6
PLANNING APPEAL

IMPORTATION OF INERT WASTE MATERIALS FOR RECYCLING AND USE IN
RESTORATION OF QUARRY WORKINGS

MAES Y DROELL QUARRY, GRAIANRHYD ROAD, LLANARMON YN IAL

APPLICATION NO. 15/2011/0692/PF

Ms Martha Savage (Minerals Planning Officer) was in attendance for this item.

Submitted: report requesting Members’ consideration of matters arising from legal and specialist
highway consultant opinion on the reasons for refusal of the above application, which will be the
subject of a public inquiry.

The report seeks a steer from Members on the Council’s stance given the changes to local policy
and national policy since the refusal decision in February 2013.

Officers explained the background to this item, stating that as policy has changed from the
Unitary Development Plan to the Local Development Plan it had been necessary to review the
reasons for refusal. In consultation with the case barrister it is proposed to include “need” as a
reason for refusal.

As a result of the changes it has been agreed to postpone the appeal hearing to allow the
appellants time to review their case.

In answer to questions officers advised that it was now policy to encourage reuse of inert waste
on site rather than transport it to facilities such as that proposed at Maes y Droell. If the waste
was not inert then it would not be allowed on this site, but would need to go to a specialist to be
treated. It would therefore be an argument that this site is not needed.

There was a further issue with a proposal to change the access arrangements and this should
also be raised at the appeal if details are submitted.

Councillor Martyn Holland will represent Committee at the Appeal and is being kept up to date by
Officers.

Councillor D Simmonds proposed that the recommendation be accepted
This was seconded by Councillor Cheryl Williams

On being put to the vote

19 voted to accept the proposal
0 Voted not to accept

There were no abstentions.

RESOLVED THEREFORE:

1. That in light of the changes to national and local policy, the principle of a recycling facility in
this location and the need for the disposal element of the proposal forms part of the Council's
case in the Council’s submissions to the forthcoming inquiry.

.2. That the First reason for refusal, save insofar as it pertains to the second reason for refusal,
is not pursued by the Council.

P/em/gwen/commitem

Page 11



1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

That delegated authority is given to the Head of Planning and Public Protection, and the
Development Control Manager to determine whether or not the second reason for refusal is
pursued by the Council, should the appellants submit any revision to the access plans. In the
absence of any acceptable access details being provided the Second reason for refusal
should be maintained.

That the third reason for refusal is pursued in particular in relation to the impact that the new
access will have on the residential amenity of occupiers of properties in the vicinity of the site.

That the absence of need be raised as a freestanding concern upon which the appeal could
properly be dismissed.

The views of the independent highway consultant appointed by the Council to review the
case are drawn to the attention of the inquiry.

MEMBER TRAINING

Members were reminded of their obligation to training on Planning matters and were advised that
they would be welcome to attend any of the future training events that had been arranged:

3™ February 2014 -6.30 pm Caledfryn Denbigh (Town and Community Council event)
4™ March 2014 — 10 am -venue to be confirmed (Town and Community Council event)
23" April 2014 — 6.30 pm — Caledfryn Denbigh (Town and Community Council event)

In order to fulfil their training needs Members could also attend Planning Surgeries, Appeals or
LDP events and would gain credit for attending 8 or more Planning Committees

The meeting closed at 10-45 am

P/em/gwen/commitem

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 5
DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE 22" JANUARY 2014
INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Item Application No Location and Proposal Page
No No
1 01/2012/1607/PO  Former Wool Depot Grove Road Denbigh 15

Development of 0.6 ha of land for residential purposes
(outline application including access)

2 01/2013/0899/PF  Lleweni Hall Denbigh 31
Conversion and extension of stable wing to form 1 no.
dwelling and installation of a package treatment plant

3 07/2013/1233/PF  Rhos Isa Llandrillo Corwen 47
Erection of replacement two-storey dwelling with detached
garage/workshop and alterations to existing vehicular
access

4 43/2013/1305/PF  Outbuildings at Tyn Y Wal Ffordd Penrhwylfa Meliden 59
Prestatyn
Conversion of redundant outbuilding to form 1 no.
dwelling. Formation of pitched roof over existing workshop

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



CYNGOR Heading

. . 01/2012/1607/PO
Sll‘ Dd 1n byCh Former Wool Depot

v Den bI. ghShI.I' C Grove Road Denbigh

COUNTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection \
Denbighshire County Council Date 6/1/2014 Scale 1/2500
Caledfryn Centre = 305606 E 366544 N

Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

This plan is iniended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report
It does not form any part of the application documenis, and should not

Tel: 01824 706800 Fax 01824 706709 be l'aken as (eprese!'llativtz of the pmpos‘als to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting

s T

Industr al Estate

p - - G'mw—:_--' ;
| o= - \ o™
l-.n ""’
4 \) % ‘-‘* ﬁy'//
1"6-;::;‘ F.y
'__meE::;:ﬂn
) {, L\
5 / 2L
L A \Kyf-‘ ' .-.: . . v-r"‘- Y
KPP SATNE ﬁf&
¥ A h1 o
04,7 AR S

AN S RN B«‘\\.q&,

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey th the p of O Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesté‘s Stationery Offica
© Crown copyright, Unauthorized reproduction infringes Cruwn copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil procesdings. Denbighshire ounty Council 100023408. 20114

Alwnhyrd'nry map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatdd yr Ordnance Survey ar ran Rheolwr Liyirfa Ei Mawrhydi
awifraint y Goron. Maa atgynhyrchu heb ganiatdd yn torn hawlfraint y éoron a gall hyn .m‘lln)m eryniad mu'l nd'u-_c: sifil Cyngur Sir Ddinbych 100023408 2011
aVWallal

mayc 19




\V/

pP800SD|9

lwvusTrAT VE
SITE LAY QUT_

09 L /2102 / 1g

<
B
O
)
>

suﬁ. Denbigh —

lllustrative Site Layout —
el =




- STATION
ARO SITE

EYTANT P LANNINEG FECMINION

944 2007/ 1 bssl PF

i ¥ Bl KEY
e % =z ol renusarEBEl BITE BOUNDARY
i - ¢ g‘l’QNE&
B cem T T A T RETAINING WALL
- ’ 3 PROPOSED LEVELS
1; [H 4
T LINRTD -
' COLOMEMM | . o EXISTING LEVELS
) : ! e,
o gl B RT—
“ o v e, -
SR SR Y
? - . 'F\I iad - REV
T' '.’. e o d - |
3 .,:.:!:;"‘ s i | I I,j iy : ’SED PL AN

.ﬂGOﬁ §|H ooy,
. G':G\;,sﬂlﬁn coum.‘;fgyo‘r

\:)
& mecEwro Oa,,o
L
-1 AYG 28 |

\ %NMNG sepnicES

M ELe) AsakEE AALFLF

ARCHITELTS

DENBIGH

B,
*'4y " PROPOSED SITE PLAN
: LOWER LEVEL
T Byt XF Lk By B Dam nos
“Wﬂ’uml‘-m e F
AT LT ETE A

Kol

¢ oaa pm 188 BIT4T1Y
& st e to9¥
=17

By il - et B S

TR R R e




ITEM NO:

WARD NO:

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:
PROPOSAL:
LOCATION:
APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

Sarah Stubbs
1

Denbigh Central

Councillor Gwyneth Kensler

01/2012/1607/ PO

Development of 0.6 ha of land for residential purposes (outline
application including access)

Former Wool Depot Grove Road Denbigh

MrC EvansLXB RP {Denbigh) Lid

C2 Flood Zone

Site Notice - YesPress Notice - YesNeighbour letters - Yes

(The application has been advertised as a Departure from the
Local Development Plan)

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

*« Recommendation to grant / approve — Departure from Development plan

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
DENBIGH TOWN COUNCIL

“No objection”

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES
No objection subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to floor levels, treatment of surface
water, debris screen/culvert.

PDWR CYMRU / WELSH WATER
No objection subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to separation of foul and surface
water, and protection of the public sewer crossing the site.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES -
Head of Highways and Infrastructure

- Highways Officer

No cbjection subject to the inclusion of conditions requiring approval of highway details and
construction stage arrangements.

Conservation Architect

No objection

Ecologist
No objection

Housing and Community Development Service
No objection. There is demand for affordable housing units within the area and 10% should
be provided in accordance with the LDP Palicy.

Economic and Business Development Manager

No objection

Page 18



RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection
Representations received from:

Mr J. Lovegrove 45, Grove Rd, Denbigh
Mrs L. Lovegrove, 45, Grove Road, Denbigh

Summary of planning based representations in objection:
Support the general philosophy and intended housing design however have concerns that there
may be a risk of flooding; that the development will affect parking on Grove Road.

In support
Representations received from:

S. Lloyd, 5, Bro Wen, Denbigh
0. Roberts, 4, Machno Place, Denbigh

Summary of planning based representations in support:
The site has vastly improved since the demolition of the Wool Depot, an appropriately designed
housing development would provide huge benefits to the site and the surrounding area.

General Comments — neither object or support
Mrs. N. A. Davies, 18, Cheriton Avenue, Wirral
Mrs. E. W. Brine, St. Crispins, 14, Severn Quay, Severnside South

Comments regarding the accuracy of the plans.
EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:12/2/2013
REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION

° additional information required from applicant
re-consuitations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional
information
o awaiting consideration by Committee
PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  The application seeks outline planning permission for residential development of 0.6
hectares of land, with only means of access included for consideration. All other
matters are reserved for future approval.

1.1.2 The site is located within the town’s development boundary in the Local Development
Plan and lies immediately to the north of existing dwellings on Grove Road.

1.1.3 The application documents include an illustrative layout plan showing ideas for a
development of 17 dwellings, accessed from an existing access which is located in
between 31 and 33 Grove Road.

1.1.4 The supporting document includes a Planning, Design and Access Statement,
Sustainability Statement, Transport Report, Tree Quality Survey and Development
Implications, Statement of Community Involvement, a Phase 2 Geo-environmental
Site Investigation, Flood Consequences Assessment and a Hydrology & Modelling
Report
The main points of relevance to the proposals in the supporting documents are:

In the Planning, Design, and Access Statement:
- The application site is part of the Station Yard retail allocation (Policy PSE 7)

within the adopted Local Development Plan (LDP). Clearly the proposal resuits in
some conflict with the adopted LDP, however residential use is considered

Page 19



acceptable as redevelopment of this smali section of the site will not prevent the
wider site coming forward and could help stimulate development lacally; in
relation to ‘piecemeal’ development, the indicative layout has incorporated an
access road that runs up to the east of the site boundary and could be extended
in future to allow access to the wider allocated retail site. The site is located to the
rear of existing residential properties, this part of the site does not enjoy a road-
frontage and could cause amenity concerns for nearby residents. The site is
disconnected from the main retail allocation and its lass would therefore have little
impact on the ability of the wider site to meet the retail demands of the town.
Conflict with Policy PSE7 must be balanced against other material considerations
which includes social, community and economic benefits of housing and
investment into and redevelopment of a brownfield site.

10% Affordable housing provision is offered in accordance with Policy BSC 4
Provision of open space will be made in accordance with Policy BSC 11

There are no other planning policy conflicts

The other documents confirm:

a Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 (plus 1 credit under ENE 1) could be
achieved.

The existing access with significant enhancements that address concerns about
visibility and pedestrian provision is acceptable for the site and the traffic
generated by the development would be less that what was generated by the
Wool Depot.

A detailed hydraulic modelling study and Flood Consequences Assessment
conclude that the potential adverse consequences of a flooding event on the site
will have a low impact and a low risk and that any exceptional or unexpected
flood event can be managed to satisfactorily reduce its adverse effects.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
The application site comprises 0.6ha of land in central Denbigh formerly the site of the

Wool Depot. The site has been cleared of all previous development in connection with
the Wool Depot. The site is relatively level.

1.21

1.2.2 To the south and west of the site is residential development, to the north are open
fields protected as open space and to the east is Station Yard which is predominantly
vacant .Access to the site is off Grove Road, between no's 31 and 33.

1.2.3 The site is bounded by high timber fencing.

1.3 Relevant planning constrainis/considerations
The application site is located within the development boundary of Denbigh and

allocaled as a retail site within the Local Development Plan (as there was a valid
planning consent for a foodstore and general retail development at the time of
preparing the plan). .

1.31

1.3.2

The site is located within a C2 Flood Zone as defined in the Development Advice
Maps that accompany TAN 15; Development and Flood Risk.

1.3.3 The site is adjacent to the Denbigh Conservation Area.

1.4 Relevant planning history
The application site forms part of the larger Station Yard site, granted planning

permission in 2009 for redevelopment by way of a mixed use scheme comprising
11,212 sq.m {gross internal area) of Class A1 retail floorspace, 504 sq.m (gross
internal area) of Class A3 retail floorspace, public open space, internal roads and

1.4.1

footways, associated car parking spaces, associated ancillary facilities and

comprehensive hard and soft landscaping.

It is understood the Wool Depot buildings were demolished in 2012,

Page 20



2.

3.

3.2

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 An updated Flood Consequences Assessment has been submitted along with a

Hydrology and Modelling Report. A revised ‘indicative’ layout plan has been submitted
along with an updated Design and Access Statement to reflect the adoption of the
LDP in June 2013,

1.6 Other relevant backaround information
1.6.1 The Development Advice Maps within TAN 15 show the site to be predominantly

within a C2 floodzone. The maps have not been updated to reflect the the Denbigh
Flood Risk Management Scheme.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

2.1 01/2007/1444/PF Redevelopment of site by way of mixed use development comprising
11,212 sq.m (gross internal area) of Class A1 retail floorspace, 504 sq.m {(gross internal area)
of Class A3 retail floorspace, public open space, internal roads and footways, associated car
parking spaces, associated ancillary facilities and comprehensive hard and soft landscaping

GRANTED 24" June, 2009.

01 f2012!0272!DA Prior notification for the proposed demoalition of 4 no. warehouse buildings
GRANTED 26" March, 2012

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
3.1The main planning peolicies and guidance are consudered to be:
Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD1 — Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy BSC1 — Growth Strategy for Denbighshire
Policy BSC4 — Affordable Housing
Policy BSC11 — Recreation and open space
Policy PSEG — Retail economy
Policy PSET7 — Proposals for new retail development
Policy ASA3 — Parking standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance

Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 4: Recreational Public Open Space
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 22 Affordable Housing in New Developments
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 25: Residential Development Design Guide

Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 5 November 2012

TAN 12: Design {2009)
TAN 15: Development & Flood Risk (2004)
TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings (2010)

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 5, 2012 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment

{Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

Page 21



4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

LAARAAAS
N RWN =

419

Principle

Loss of land for retail development
Visual amenity

Residential amenity

Ecology

Flooding

Highways (including access and parking)
Affordable Housing

Open Space

4.1.10 Sustainability including codes and water management
4.1.11 Contaminated land

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:

4.21

4272

Principle

The application involves residential development on an allocated retail area within the
development boundary of Denbigh as identified in the adopted Local Development
Plan. It obliges consideration of a range of planning policies and guidance which
apply to the principles of development on land allocated for retail use and the
provision of housing, as well as the policies relating to the assessment of localised
impact of such development. The weighing up of the merits of the proposals involves
due consideration of the socic-economic arguments in the context of the scheme
being redevelopment of previously developed land within the development boundary
of a town.

The main policies in the Local Development Plan which are relevant to the principle of
the development are:

Policy BSC 1, which sets out the basic housing growth strategy for the County.

Policy PSE 7 which allocates land for new retail development and includes Station
Yard because of an extant planning permission for food and non-food retail.

The LDP policies referred to above are in general conformity with the approach to
development in Planning Palicy Wales. Planning Policy Wales also contains a
preference for the re-use of land which meets with the definition of ‘previously
developed land’, in preference to greenfield sites.

Taking all the ‘in principle’ policies inte account, it would be Officers’ view that the
proposal to redevelop the site for residential purposes does pose a potential conflict
with policy as it involves the loss of part of an identified retail site, which needs to be
weighed in the consideration of the merits of the application. The main issues are
discussed in the following sections of the report.

Loss of land for retail development

Policy PSE 7 of the Local Development Plan allocates land for retail development and
specifically Station Yard in Denbigh because of an extant planning permission for
food and non-food retail. The planning permission was granted in June 2009 (expires
June 2014) for the redevelopment of the site, which includes the application site, for a
mixed use development comprising 11,212 sq.m (gross internal area) of Class A1
retail floorspace, 504 sq.m (gross internal area) of Class A3 retail floorspace, public
open space, internal roads and footways, associated car parking spaces, associated
ancillary facilities and comprehensive hard and soft landscaping.

The Economic and Business Development Manager has not expressed concerns
over the loss of this small part of the larger retail site. The application site is on the
edge of the overall site adjacent to existing residential properties and to allow
residential development of this site would not prevent the wider site coming forward

Page 22



423

424

(albeit that this could not then be developed in accordance with the 2009 permission).
Potentially, developing this site may stimulate further development in the area.

Policy PSE 7 designates the site for retail purposes. The introduction of residential
use is therefore in conflict with the policy. The retail allocation in the LDP was made
on the basis of the planning permission for the redevelopment of the Station Yard site.
This current proposal would result in the loss of 0.6ha of an overall retail site area of
over 4.85ha. The application site is on the edge of the overall site, with the land taking
up part of an area approved for a block of retail units with a rear delivery and service
yard, please see plan at the front of this report showing the approved scheme for
retail development.

Whilst the main permission for the foodstore and retail development remains in place
until June 2014, it is understood that the scheme is unlikely to be implemented as a
significant part of the site subject to the 2009 permission is in separate ownership.

The current applicant, LXB Properties, have been party to the discussions relating to
the development of the wider redevelopment scheme for the site since 2008, however
for a number of reasons the site has not come forward and therefore they have
developed a standalone application for the Wool Depot site.

In terms of the retail allocation, it is not considered that the redevelopment of this
small section of the site, which is on the edge of the larger site with a separate access
would prevent a revised retail development coming forward on the larger site, The
indicative layout has incorporated an access road to the east of the site that could be
utilized in future however this would need further consideration in the context of
consideration of a new scheme for the site.

In terms of the general character of the area, the former Wool Depot site is located in
very close proximity to residential properties and it is considered that residential use is
far more in keeping with the character of the area.

Officers’ conclusion on the loss of 0.6 hectares of allocated retail land is that the
proposal would not prevent a development of the Station yard site.

Visual amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; test (vi) requires that development does not
unacceptably affect prominent public views into, out of, or across any settlement or
area of open countryside; test (vi) requires the incorporation of existing landscape or
other features, takes account of site contours, and changes in levels and prominent
skylines; and test (xiii) requires the incorporation of suitable [andscaping measures to
protect and enhance development in its local context.

There are no objections to the proposal based on potential visual impacts of the
development.

No details of layout, house types etc have been submitted for consideration given this
application seeks only outline planning permission, with access being the sole detail
on which approval is being sought. Officers conclude therefore that it is not possible
to assess detailed visual impacts given the application seeks outline permission with
all matters, other than means of access, reserved for later approval.

Residential amenity

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,
layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact

Page 23



4.2.5

426

on residential amenity; test (vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc.

There are no local concerns expressed over potential for loss of privacy from new
development on the site.

Whilst the application contains an illustrative layout indicating a possible format for a
development of 17 dwellings, there are no elevation details or floor plans to allow
assessment of the impact on adjacent properties. A detailed application would require
careful consideration fo address impacts on adjacent properties and the visual
amenities of the area. Officers conclude therefore that it is not possible to assess
detailed amenity impacts at this stage given the application seeks only outline
planning permissicn with all matters, other than means of access, reserved for later
approval

Ecology
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (iii} requires development to protect and

where possible to enhance the local natural and historic environment. Policy VOE 5§
requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or designated
sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests that
permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant harm
to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales (Section
5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 — Nature Conservation and Species Protection,
which stress the importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity objectives
through promoting approaches to development which create new opportunities to
enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for losses where
damage is unavoidable.

There are no objections expressed over the potential impact on habitat as a result of
development.

The only consideration regarding wildlife is for any works to trees or removal of
vegetation which should be undertaken outside of the bird breeding season. If any
trees support bats, an assessment should be undertaken before any works are
underiaken.

Flooding
Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a material planning

consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 — Development and Flood Risk,
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of
flooding should be assessed. The development advice maps of the site show most of
the site to be located within a C2 flood zone, which is an area of the floodplain without
significant flood defence. It should be noted that the development advice maps have
not been updated to consider the benefit afforded by the Denbigh Flood Risk
Management Scheme Works undertaken recently for Denbighshire County Council.

The TAN advises that the C2 classification should be used to indicate that only less
vulnerable development should be considered subject to application of justification
tests, including acceptability of the consequences and highly vulnerable development
such as residential development should not be considered in this zone. However
there are exceptions which allow development in a flood zone, if it can be
demonstrated that the location is necessary to assist, or be part of, a local authority
regeneration initiative or strategy to sustain an existing settlement; or the location is
necessary to confribute to key employment objectives supported by the Local
Planning Authority to sustain an existing settiement. In order for a development to be
considered as an exception, the site must also meet the definition of previously
developed land, as per the Planning Policy Wales definition. The most relevant
elements of this definition are that previously developed land includes land which is or

Page 24



427

4.2.8

was occupied by a permanent structure and associated fixed surface infrastructure
(excluding agricultural or forestry buildings) and land where the remains of any
structure or activity have blended into the landscape over time so that they can
reasonahly be considered part of the natural surroundings. Finally a Flood
Consequence Assessment (FCA) is required to be submitted to support the
application for the exception, to explore the potential consequences of a flooding
event for the particular type of development proposed.

The proposed development has been the subject of prolonged discussions with NRW
and a Flood Consequence Assessment along with a Hydrology and Modelling Report
has been submitted in support of the proposal.

NRW have ultimately raised no aobjections to residential development of the site
subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to finished floor levels, the construction
details of a replacement debris screen at the culvert inlet and also requiring the
submission of a surface water drainage regulation system.

It is Officers opinion in relation to the exceplion tests that the development is
‘justified’, the site is previously developed land located within the development
boundary of Denbigh and would assist the local authority’s strategy to sustain an
existing setttement by providing new housing. The Flood Consequences and
Hydrology and Modelling Report submitted in support of the application demonstrate
that the risks of flooding can be acceptably managed and NRW have not raised an
objection to the proposal subject to conditions. It is therefore considered that the
proposal represents an acceptable form of development which meets the relevant
tests in TAN 15.

Highways (including access and parking)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales {Section 8) and TAN 18 - Transport, in
support of sustainable development.

Residents have made comments regarding the loss of parking for the residents of 33
to 45 Grove Road, who utilise an area of and at the bottom of Grove Road in the
ownership of the applicant, in an area where the Wool Depot building was previously
located. The proposal is to utilise the existing vehicular access off Grove Road which
is located in between 2 residential properties. The access is shown to be improved
with visibility splays achieved in both directions. The highway officer raises no
objections subject to inclusion of conditions including further details of the access and
highway improvements, street lighting, drainage, signage, internal estate road along
with details of the site compound location, traffic management scheme, vehicle
washing facilities and details of the operation and management of construction
vehicles.

The indicative layout does include parking bays to the west of the access road as
parking for residents, however the loss of the area currently used by residents, which
is privately owned land does not raise any highway concerns locally. Having due
regard to the historic use of the site, the nature of the local road network and the
response of the Highway Officer it is not considered there are any significant highway
concerns likely to arise from the proposal.

Affordable Housing
Local Development Plan Policy BSC 4 seeks to ensure, where relevant, 10%

affordable housing either on site on developments of 10 or more residential units or
by way of a financial construction on development of less than 10 residential units is

Page 25



Officers’ view is that it would be reasonable to deal with contaminated land matters
through the imposition of planning conditions.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 In Officers’ opinion there are no fundamental concerns over residential use of the site. The
proposed use is considered to be in keeping with the character of the area.

5.2 It is not considered that the proposal, to develop a small part of the approved retail
development, would prejudice that site’s ability to bring forward retail development.

5.3 In accordance with Welsh Government Circular 07/12, the Local Planning Authority are
required to notify Welsh Government of an intention to Grant Planning Permission for highly
vuinerable development of more than 10 dwellings due to the sites location within a C2
floodzone. The Local Planning Authority must not grant planning permission until the expiry of
the period of 21 days beginning with the date which the Welsh Ministers tell the Authority in
writing is the date upon which they received the notification: hence the recommendation is
subject to referral to Welsh Government and confirmation that permission may be granted.

RECOMMENDATION: - GRANT subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the
date of this permission.
2, Approval of the details of the layout, scale and appearance of the building(s), and the

landscaping of the site (hereinafter called "the reserved matters") shall be obtained from the Local
Planning Authority in writing before the commencement of any development.

3. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority
before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
4, All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the approved

details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the
completion of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of five years of the
development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the
next planting season with others of similar size and species.

5. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been obtained to the detailed mechanism for the provision of affordable
housing as part of the development, in accordance with the Council's Policies and Supplementary
Planning Guidance, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
6. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Autherity has been obtained to the detailed arrangements for the provision for amenity and
open space within the site in accordance with the Council's policies and guidance.

7. Construction of any dwelling hereby permitted shall not begin until an ’Interim Certificate' has
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority, certifying that a minimum Code for Sustainable
Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1credit under 'Ene1 - Dwelling Emission Rate’, has been achieved
for that individual dwelling or house type in accordance with the requirements of the Code for
Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide 22 November 2010.

8. Each new dwelling hereby permitted shall be constructed to achieve a minimum Code for
Sustainable Homes Level 3 and achieve a minimum of 1 credit under category 'Ene1 - Dwelling
Emission Rate' in accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical
Guide 22 November 2010. The development shall be carried out entirely in accordance with the
approved assessment and certification.

9. Prior to the occupation of each of the dwellings hereby permitted, a Code for Sustainable
Homes 'Final Certificate” shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority certifying that a minimum
Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credit under 'Ene1 - Dwelling Emission
Rate', has been achieved for that dwelling in accordance with the requirements of the Code for
Sustainable Homes.

10. Works to trees/vegetation should be undertaken outside the bird breeding season and of any
trees are found to support bats, an assessment should undertaken before works praceed.
11. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local

Planning Authority has been obtained to the detailed layout, design, means of traffic calming, street

Page 26



lighting, signing, drainage and construction of the internal estate road, access improvements and the
associated highway. The development shall be constructed in accordance with such approved details.
12. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been obtained in relation to the site compound location, traffic management
scheme, vehicle wheel washing facilities, hours and days of operation and the management and
operation of construction vehicles. The development shall be constructed in accordance with such
approved details.

13. Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the loading, unloading, parking and
turning of vehicles in accordance with a scheme to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, and
shall be completed prior to the proposed development being brought into use.

14, No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been obtained for a scheme to ensure that Finished Floor Levels are set no
lower than the corresponding modelled 1 in 100 year {including an allowance for climate change and
a 100% blockage of the culvert) has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall also provide details of the proposed ground levels and details of
the flood exceedance routes that will be required through the site and beyaond, directly to the east of,
and south east, of the application area. The development shall be construcled in accordance with
such approved details.

15. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been obtained for a scheme for the construction of a replacement debris
screen at the culvert inlet (built in accordance with best practice guidance) has been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include warning signage to
inform residents of the importance of maintaining access to the culvert inlet so that clearance of the
screen can be undertaken if and when required. The development shall be constructed in accordance
with such approved details.

16. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Autherity has been obtained for a scheme for the implementation of a surface water
drainage regulation system has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall also include details of the land drainage system that is proposed to
intercept surface water from the northern escarpment. The development shall be constructed in
accordance with such approved details.

17. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been obtained for a scheme for the adoption and/or management of the
culvert inlet trash screen and the culverted watercourse passing beneath the site. The development
shall be constructed in accordance with such approved details.

18. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been obtained for a remediation strategy that includes the components listed
below to deal with the risks associated with contamination of the site has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:

1. A preliminary risk assessment which has identified:

a. all previous uses.

b. potential contaminants associated with those uses

c. a conceptual model of the site indicating sources, pathways and receptors.

d. potentially unacceptable risks arising from contamination at the site.

2. A site investigation scheme, based on (1) to provide information for a detailed assessment of the
risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site.

3. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment referred to in (2) and, based
on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details of the remediation
measures required and how they are to be undertaken.

4. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to demonstrate that the
works set out in the remediation strategy in (3) are complete and identifying any requirements for
longer-term monitering of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.

Any changes to these components require the written consent of the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall be implemented as approved.

19. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Autharity has been obtained for a verification report demonstrating completion of works set

Page 27



out in the approved remediation strategy and the effectiveness of the remediation. The report shall
include results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with the approved verification
plan to demonstrate that the site remediation criteria have been met. It shall also include any plan {(a
"long-term monitoring and maintenance plan”) for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages,
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action, as identified in the verification plan. The long-
term monitoring and maintenance plan shall be implemented as approved.

20. No development shall be permitted to take place until the written approval of the Local
Planning Authority has been abtained for a long-term monitoring and maintenance plan in respect of
contamination including a timetable of monitoring and submission of reports to the Local Planning
Authority. Reports as specified in the approved plan, including details of any necessary contingency
action arising from the monitoring. Any necessary contingency measures shall be carried out in
accordance with the details in the approved reports. On completion of the monitoring specified in the
plan a final report demonstrating that all long-term remediation works have been carried out and
confirming that remedial targets have been achieved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

21. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the
site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a remediation strategy to the local
planning authority detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and obtained
written approval from the local planning authority. The remediation strategy shall be implemented as
approved.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2. The application is for outline permission with details of means of access only.

3. To comply with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
4, To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity.

5, In the interest of compliance with adopted affordable housing policies.

6. In the interest of compliance with adopted open space policies.

7. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

8. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

9. To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

10. In the interests of nature conservation.

11. In the interest of the free and safe movement and traffic on the adjacent highway and to
ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access.

12. In the interest of the free and safe movement of traffic on the adjacent highway and in the
interests of highway safety.

13. To provide for the loading, unloading and parking of vehicles clear of the highway and to

ensure that reversing by vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of
traffic safety.

14. Tao reduce the risk of flooding to the development and future occupants.

15. To reduce the risk of flooding to the development and future occupants.

16. To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of, and disposal of, surface water.
17. To ensure the long term management of the watercourse and associated infrastructure.

18. The controlled waters at this site are of high environmental sensitivity due to the sites being
on a principal aquifer and contamination is known at the site from the previous land uses.

19. To demonstrate that the remediation criteria relating to controlled waters have been met and

{if necessary) to secure longer-term monitoring of groundwater quality. This will ensure that there are
no longer remaining unacceptable risks to controlled waters following remediation of the site.

20. To ensure that longer term remediation criteria relating to controlled waters have been met.
This will ensure that there are no longer remaining unacceptable risks to controlled waters following
remediation of the site.

21. Unidentified areas of contamination at the site that could pose a risk to controlled waters if
they are not remediated.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Page 28



Please find attached response and Advisory Notes from Dwr Cymru Welsh Water,

Your attention is drawn to the following:

(i) Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1,3,4,5,6,7,8,9 & 10.

(i) New Roads and Street Works Act 1991-Part N Form.

(i) Denbighshire County Council Specification for Road Construction.

(iv) Denbighshire County Council General Notes for Highway Lighting Installations.

(v) Denbighshire County Councils General Requirement for Traffic Signs and Road Markings.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Tel: 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709

Pl s i Headi;?l ;’201 3/0899/PF
Sir DC?ID b}, "E‘h Lleweni Hall
Denbighshire Denbigh
v COUNTY COUNCIL
Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection \
Denbighshire County Council Date 6/1/2014 Scale 1/2500
Caledfryn Centre = 308079 E 368522 N
Smithfield Road This pian is Intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of
Denbigh
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

the application site which forms the subject of the accompanying repart
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should nat

be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meefing.

- g T LT
P Jec 4o S = |
/7= g/
/ o A
-""1. i
{ 4 Sl
\ e af A A
IJ. 3 L [
'|I» 4 . !
‘..a' J“ [
— III "v’ _ﬁ
— k i [
|
F | > -

¥
o

/ e F
L1
L l'
L ) £) ] 5
1"'";{' P
=T I : | [
i FAY 1 | " \
\ * |
! \ I \
' huuwull'-. | 1 — -
B! Exiwrg
EagiPavikon

This map Is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance
© Crown copyright. Unauthorized reproduction niringas Crown copynight and may lead t

Survey an behalf of the Controller of Her Maiestg
ion or civil

s Stationery Offica

oF
Algynhyrchir y map hwn o ddaun: d:gr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad yr
© Hawitraint y Goron Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatad yn om hawitraint y

rn

Ordnanca Survey ar ran Rhectwr Liytrfa £ Mawrhydi
& gall hyn arwaiw %g«uw ifil Cyngor Sir Ddinbyeh 100023408, 2011
~J

19s. Denbighshire County Council 100023408 2011




SITE PLAN

L T S

——— e

g Il [ X g b= = woT T
s B g T B )
O e et L L ki oy
£ i F . L ES s b
e o E ; iy 0% o G

AR =l == ] g r ¢
pane e =z . 1 |

= R P e ST S

SRR R L — L e

Aemonpp Bunsixa

S b ibaloime )

SR R __";:_... ”

Kemoaup Bunsme

E—

I{

%,
"I

T

i
| . 3
e e e e e

g A et e o e e R e

Page 32



s i = — Tl

EXISTIVNG ELEVATIONS
-

-

=]

EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION

Eiecing
- == nmeal E:'
- H::! (D ::_”'(FP‘:‘

s |

FRY? FLOOA Pk 4 BTG

EXISTING
PL.ANS FL?"

(G
Diame-ar

-1

e g ==
=4 3
Srmas_ r—r
i ilasabers te Livens) Hall

Foer Plons
ey ]
=umear Sw

GROLAD FLOCA PLAN 43 EXSTHG TTAMPN2 |-




PROPOSED MAIN
ELEVATIONS

e
EE]

i e
=~
I EEEE

=i

_— e coOnNvVERSION ﬁ:r
: e IR O

—H‘:-::—-—_-—- g_ e e e e g mmJun::nm

—— e = - =
e ey = i

o= AT ey

- - Armrees b Usrerard Wt

o s et LRy

=miis = Nartn Slevalien

O it e s bt s s s propased

[ ——
T e o g el bl g P s
T 3 =ah

s e g s et nwea T

e e e o e Tap .|

. . 1] i . =
[41:11 o4 et ISR po SR

T

CouvEre on

- nmea el
o T b0




PROPOSED END-—
ELEVATIONS
.

f . , . s e
L1751 o ENSEN y FORRAY)

Page 35




e

i

.

'a;

o i i

Haol Plan

e d
badroom




Emer O'Connor

ITEM NO: 2
WARD NO: Denbigh Lower
WARD MEMBER(S): Councillors Ray Bartley & Richard Davies

APPLICATION NO:

01/2013/0899/ PF

PROPOSAL: Conversion and extension of stable wing to form 1 no. dwelling
and installation of a package treatment plant
LOCATION: Lleweni Hall Denbigh
APPLICANT: Mr & MrsJ & C Kissane
CONSTRAINTS: C2 Flood Zone
B Flood Zone
PROW
Listed Building
PUBLICITY Site Notice - NoPress Notice - NoNeighbour letters - Yes
UNDERTAKEN:

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

» DC Manager discretion

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
DENBIGH TOWN COUNCIL:

“No objection”

NATURAL RESOURCES WALES
No objection, subject to conditions relating to finished fioor levels of the proposed dwelling.

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES -

Biodiversity Officer
No objection.

Conservation Officer
In relation to the detailing, believes the proposals are extremely well considered and will allow
the Grade 1" building to be safeguarded for generations to come.

Head of Highways and Infrastructure
- Highways Officer

No objection.

- Rights of Way Officer

No objection.

Valuation and Estates Manager
Considers the costings put forward by the Agent to be realistic, and that to convert the building

for affordable housing purposes is not economically viable.

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

Representation received:
Mr Witter, Lleweni Airfield

Page 37



Summary of representations:
Access issues, concerns over right of way conflicts.

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 09/09/2013

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION:

) timing of receipt of representations
) additional information required from applicant
PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  Full planning permission is sought for the conversion of an outbuilding attached to the
Grade II* Listed Building at Lleweni Hall, referred to as the ‘North Wing'.

1.1.2 The conversion involves substantial alterations to reinstate the original form of the
wing. The alterations include re-positioning of the first floor, roof, and original
fenestration pattern of the building as well as reinstatement of the original cupola. In
basic terms what is proposed is the addition of a first floor to the outbuilding to match
the overall height of the attached Hall. Members can see the proposed alterations on
the plans at the front of the report.

1.1.3 The scheme of conversion would create a dwelling with 6 bedrooms, each with
ensuite facilities, a kitchen, dining room, living room, utility and study.

1.1.4 The gross internal floor space of the proposed dwelling would be approximately 440
sgm. The site area is 0.113 ha.

1.1.5 Externally the yard to the north and north east of the building would be used as a
forecourt and grassed garden area. Access would be via a driveway from the existing
yard to the west of the complex.

1.1.6 The supporting documents include a Design, Access and Justification Statement, a
Flood Consequence Assessment, Structural Report and Protected Species Survey.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The site is located in the open countryside to the north east of Denbigh. The site is

bounded by agricultural land and the river Clwyd to the east of the site.

1.2.2 The Lleweni complex contains a number of historic buildings. Lleweni Hall is a Grade
II* listed building comprising of the hall, the attached outbuilding to which this
application relates and three farm ranges. To the west of the main hall, is the Carriage
Yard, which is Grade II* listed in its own right and was converted into dwellings some
10 years ago.

1.2.3 The North Wing is a brick built building with a corrugated roof which the Agent
advises is close to collapse, which can be seen by propping and a crash deck that
have been erected to mitigate the danger from potential collapse.

1.2.4 ltis believed that the last use of the building was for storage ancillary to the dwelling
in the main hall. The former agricultural or stable use ceased 10 years ago.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is located in the open countryside outside any development boundary in the
Local Development Plan. It is also located in 2 C2 flood zone as defined by the

Page 38



2.

3.

Development Advice Maps of TAN 15.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 A corresponding listed building application has been submitted for consideration of

the changes to the listed building.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 The application was originally submitted in July 2013. However, on the advice of the
Conservation Officer, amended plans were sought to address an issue with
fenestration detailing on the east elevation.
1.5.2 Officers also requested additional information to address planning policy issues in the
Design and Access Statement.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 In support of the case, the Agent has done a significant amount of research into the

history of the North Wing. With photographic evidence, he proves that the
reinstatement work would restore the building to its original form which was lost in the
1920’s.

DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 None

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan {(adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy PSE 4 — Re-use and adaptation of rural buildings in open countryside
Policy VOE 1 — Key areas of importance
Policy VOE 4 - Enabling Development
Policy BSC 3 - Securing infrastructure contributions from development
Policy BSC 11 — Recreation and open space

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 4 - Open Space Requirements in New Developments
SPG 7 - Residential Space Standards
SPG 16 — Conversion of Rural Buildings
SPG 18 - Species Protection and Nature Conservation

3.3 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 5 November 2012
Technical Advice Note 5 — Nature conservation and planning (2009)
Technical Advice Note 12 - Design (2009)
Technical Advice Note 15 — Development and Floodrisk

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

in terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition §, 2012 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' {Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4}.

Page 39



The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

Principle

Visual amenity
Residential amenity
Ecology

Highways (including access and parking)
Employment Use Test

.7 Affordable Housing

.8 Enabling Development
.9
A

oobrwivoa

Open Space
0 Floodrisk

Bbobobhobhhb b
S ooy laaa

.

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle

The proposal is for the conversion of an outbuilding in the open countryside to a
dwelling. Local Development Plan Policy PSE 4 Re-use and adaptation of rural
buildings in open couniryside allows for such conversions where the scheme of
conversion makes a positive contribution to the landscape, any architectural features
of merit are retained, it is demonstrated that an employment use is not viable, and the
resulting dwelling is affordable for local needs. It is considered that a proposal of this
nature would be acceptable in principle subject to assessment of its impacis and
compliance with the specific criteria of Policy PSE 4. These are set out in the
following paragraphs.

4.2.2 Visual amenity/AODNB
In referring to what may be regarded as material considerations, Planning Policy

Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings,
the means of access, landscaping, service availability and the impact on the
neighbourhood and on the environment. The impact of a development on visual
amenity is therefore a relevant test on planning applications. This is repeated in Policy
PSE 4 which requires conversion schemes to make a positive contribution to the
landscape. Policy VOE 1 acknowledges the importance of sites of built heritage and
supports development which would maintain and enhance these.

The application proposes substantial alterations to a Grade 1I* listed building, most
notably the reinstatement of the original floors, which would necessitate the increase
in overall height of the current building to match that of the existing hall, A number of
alterations are proposed to the openings on all elevations. The Conservation Officer
considers that the scheme of conversion is sympathetic to the character and historic
significance of the building.

With regard to the specific detailing of the scheme of conversion it is considered that
the detailing would enhance the appearance of the Grade II* listed building, and the
proposal offers opportunities to assimilate and improve what is a building in poor
condition into the landscape and complex of historic buildings. The proposal is
considered acceptable regarding its impact upon visual amenity and the listed
buildings.

4.2.3 Residential amenity
Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to the number, size, layout, design and

appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment as potentially material
considerations. The impact of a development on residential amenity is therefore a
relevant test on planning applications. Further guidance on the acceptability of a

Page 40



424

4.2.5

4.26

propasal in terms of the amenity it would provide for occupants is contained in
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 7, Residential Space Standards.

The nearest dwelling to the site is the attached Hall. Other dwellings in the area are
located in the carriage yard conversions to the west of the site. The principal windows
of the proposed dwelling would face north, south and east. Internally the rooms would
range in size from 9sqm (smallest bedroom) to 60sqm (kitchen family). The living
room would be 43sqm. In total the conversion would provide a gross internal floor
area of approximately 440sgm and & bedrooms. Externally there would be in excess
of 700sqm of garden/parking area.

With regard to the requirements of SPG 7 it is considered that the proposal clearly
exceeds the minimum space standards and it is considered that the scheme of
conversion would provide adequate amenity for future occupants. It is also considered
that given the orientation of the building, its siting in relation to the attached and
neighbouring dwellings, the use of the building as a dwelling would not result in harm
to the residential amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.

Ecology
Policy VOE 1 seeks to ensure that wildlife and bio-diversity are not negatively affected

as a result of development.

A Bat and Bird survey has been submitted with the application. The survey found no
evidence of bats in the building proposed to be converted although bats were present
in the main house. No birds were found to be nesting in the building. NRW and the
Biodiversity Officer have asked for the recommendations of the ecological survey to
be conditioned if permission is granted.

In the absence of any protected species it is considered that the ecological impacts of
the proposal are acceptable. It is considered prudent however 1o attach a note to
applicant to advise that all contractors follow the code of best practice.

Highways (including access and parking)

Planning Policy Wales 3.1.4 refers to what may be regarded as material
considerations and that these can include the number, size, layout, design and
appearance of buildings, the means of access, landscaping, service availability and
the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment. The acceptability of means
of access is therefore a standard test on most planning applications. Policy ASA 3
requires adequate parking spaces for cars and bicycles in connection with
development proposals, and outlines considerations to be given to factors relevant to
the application of standards. These policies reflect general principles set out in
Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in support of sustainable
development.

The proposal would utilise an existing access and no alterations are proposed. The
submitted site layout shows a large area allocated for parking and turning. The
County Council's Highway Engineer has not raised an objection to the proposal.
Concerns have been raised by an adjacent landowner over rights of way and the
access arrangements.

With respect to the comments raised by the adjacent landowner these are civil issues
outside the remit of the planning process. It is considered that the proposal is
acceptable in terms of its impact upon highway safety, and sufficient parking and
turning space can be accommodated within the site.

Employment Test
Policy PSE 4 permits conversions of rural buildings to dwelling houses where it is

demonstrated that there are no viable alternative employment uses.

Page 41



4.2.7

4.2.8

The application is accompanied by a statement from the Agent which refers to policy
PSE 4 and the requirement for a marketing test. Employment uses for the building
has been deemed as ‘not feasible’ because of the costs of stabilising, repairing and
converting the building to a standard required for a listed building. The Agent also
states that the access arrangements would not be suitable for commercial uses. The
County Council's Valuation and Estates Manager has confirmed that there is a low
demand for commercial uses in this type of location.

Given the statement of the Agent, and in the absence of any evidence to the contrary,
and the fact that this is a Grade [I* listed building in disrepair within a group of listed
buildings, it is considered that the building is unlikely to be attractive for, or to come
forward as a commercial unit. It is therefore not considered the failure to meet the
employment use test is a reasonable ground for refusal.

Affordable Housing
Policy PSE 4 states that where it is accepted that there is no commercial use viable

for a rural building it may be converted to a dwelling, but that dwelling must be
affordable for local needs.

The requirement for the dwelling to be affordable for local needs has been put to the
Agent. The Agent has responded with a detailed argument on the basis of the costs of
repairing and converting the listed building would make it an unviable project if the
dwelling had to be made available for local affordable needs. The Agent has
suggested that the total cost of conversion would be in the order of £490,000. An
approximate price guide for the purchase of an affordable four bedroom dwelling in
this area is £161,000. The Agent's figures have been examined by the County
Council's Valuation and Estates Manager who has concluded that they are not
unrealistic estimations and reflect a reasonable purchase price of the building.

The application raises difficult issues in relation to LOP Policy PSE 4. It is
acknowledged that there is a clear need for affordable housing across the whole of
the County, as evidenced in deliberations at the recent Local Development Plan
Inquiry. Policy PSE 4 has the intention of addressing the shortfall of affordable
housing in rural areas. However, it is inevitable that the application of this policy must
be flexible, and based on the merits of each individual application. The financial
details submitted in this application clearly show conversion and sale or rent of the
listed building for local affordable needs would not be commercially viable. It is
therefore considered in this instance that the building is unlikely to come forward as
an affordable unit for viability reasons and a high risk that the building would therefore
remain empty, and become a problem site within the AONB. In Officers opinion it
would be unreasonable in this instance to insist on provision of an affordable unit.

Enabling Development
Policy VOE 4 states that enabling development may be permitted as a way of

resolving the status of heritage assets designated at ‘at risk’ provided a number of
criteria are met. The most relevant of these is that the enabling development must not
harm the setting of the heritage asset, the proposal avoids detrimental fragmentation
of the heritage asset and the proposal will secure the future of the asset.

This policy has been referred to by the Agent in the supporting documentation; the
structural report confirms that the building is close to being a dangerous structure and
if left it will suffer collapse. The Agent also advises that without intervention the
collapse of the North Wing may impact on the main hall. A CADW grant was sought
for the work but was turned down, therefore the only viable means of funding the
works required for reinstate the building to a sustainably sound condition is by the
proposed development. The Conservation Officer has advised that the building is not
classified as ‘at risk’, however as the stable formed part of the Lleweni Listing it may
not have been considered on its own right, rather as part of the Hall which would not
have been ‘at risk’. In her view the proposal is a viable and necessary development
for the preservation a building in a precarious state.

Page 42



Enabling development is classified as development that would be unacceptable in
planning terms but for the fact that it would bring heritage and public benefits
sufficient to justify it being carried out and which would not be otherwise achieved.
Financial viability of a scheme is a key issue where there is a heritage asset at risk. Is
it typical to allow new building in order to general funds to repair the heritage asset.
Strictly speaking policy VOE 4 would not be of direct relevance to this proposal as the
heritage asset is not designated as ‘at risk’ and there are policies applicable to the
reuse of rural buildings in the open countryside. However Officers have to take into
account the fact that the building is a heritage asset that would benefit from the
proposed development.

429 Open Space
Loca! Development Plan Policy BSC 3 seeks to secure, where relevant, infrastructure

contributions from development. Policy BSC 11 requires proposals for all new
residential development to make a contribution to recreation and open space either
on site, or by provision of a commuted sum.

As the current application seeks the creation of an additional unit it is considered
appropriate to require the relevant Open Space to be provided. The open space
requirement can be subject to the imposilion of a suitably worded planning condition
to secure the relevant provision.

4.2.10 Floodrisk
Planning Policy Wales Section 13.2 identifies flood risk as a materiat planning
consideration in planning and along with TAN 15 - Development and Flood Risk,
provides a detailed framework within which risks arising from different sources of
flooding should be assessed. The development advice maps of the site show the site
located within a C2 flood zone, which is an area of the floodplain without significant
flood defence. The TAN advises that the C2 classification should be used to indicate
that only less vulnerable development should be considered subject to application of
justification tests, including acceptability of the consequences, highly vulnerable such
as residential development should not be considered in this zone. However there are
exceptions which allow development in the flood zone, if it can be demonstrated that
the location is necessary to assist, or be part of, a local authority regeneration
initiative or strategy to sustain an existing settlement; or the location is necessary to
contribute to key employment objectives supported by the Local Planning Authority to
sustain an existing settlernent. In order for a development to be considered as an
exception, the site must also meet the definition of previously developed land, as per
the Planning Policy Wales definition. The most relevant elements of this definition are
that previously developed land includes land which is or was occupied by a
permanent structure and associated fixed surface infrastructure (excluding
agricultural or forestry buildings) and land where the remains of any structure or
activity have blended into the landscape over time so that they can reasonably be
considered part of the natural surrcundings. Finally a Flood Consequence
Assessment (FCA) is required to be submitted to support the application for the
exception, to explore the potential consequences of a flooding event for the particular
type of development proposed.

It is Officers opinion in relation to the exception tests that the development may be
‘justified’ as it would protect a heritage asset. The application relates to an existing
building, used in connection with the attached dwelling. Natural Resources Wales
Officers have considered the submitted FCA. They have not objected to the proposal,
however they have suggested a condition relating to fioor levels be attached and
notes to Applicant be included in the decision. Officers must take the advice of the
Environment Agency in relation to flooding issues, and in this instance this
demonsirates that the proposal complies with TAN 15 in terms of flood risk.

Page 43



4 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1The report attempts to highlight the specific issues arising with regard to Policy PSE 4. It
acknowledges the basis of the policy, but that there are other material considerations relating
to this application which must be taken into account alongside the need to provide affordable
dwellings in the open countryside.

5.2In this case, the arguments of viability cannot be ignored and such arguments strongly
indicate that if the Local Planning Authority were to insist on the dwelling being for affordable
local needs only, the scheme would not proceed, and the Grade |1* building would ultimately
be likely to suffer collapse.

5.3There is a need to balance the need to provide affordable housing and the need to preserve
the character of Listed Buildings, particularly Grade II* Buildings which make up only 6% of
Listed Buildings in Wales. In this instance, with a high possibility of the building not coming
forward as an affordable dwelling it is considered reasonable to grant permission in the
interest of avoiding future harm to the character of the Listed Building.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the
date of this permission.
2. No development shall be permitted to commence until the mechanism for meeting the

requirements of the Local Planning Authoritys policy for provision of recreational open space in
conjunction with the development has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

3 The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved Flood Consequence Assessment (FCA) Brian Killingworth Ltd, 163/13, and the
mitigation measures detailed within the FCA. In particular the finished floor levels should be set no
lower than 26.84m above Ordnance Datum (AOD), the proposed driveway levels shall be set no lower
than 25.60m above Ordnance Datum (AOD), and the mitigation measures shall be fully implemented
prior to occupation and in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied within the
scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in writing, by the local planning
authority.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

1. To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2, In the interest of providing public open space.
3. To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future occupants and to

ensure safe access and egress from and to the site.

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

You are advised that the Local Planning Authority has granted this permission solely on the basis that
the proposal involves the conversion of the building to a dwelling, to be carried out strictly in
accordance with the approved plans. Any alteration or demalition work deviating from that shown on
the approved plans, unless agreed by the Local Planning Authority, involving the rebuilding of part or
all of the outbuilding will invalidate the planning permission.

Biodiversity

The Biodiversity Officer had advised your attention should be drawn to the following:

The Biodiversity Officer had advised your attention should be drawn to the recommendations within
the ecological report which should be followed. Namely:

1. Maintenance of the basement area to the kitchen as winter hibernation roost and introduction
of bat boxes

Page 44



2, The general precautionary recommendations during the conversion phase are followed
3. The bat friendly conversion suggestions are considered and introduced where appropriate

Flood Defence Consent

Please be advised that under the terms of the Water Resources Act 1991 and the Land Drainage
Byelaws, the prior written consent of Natural Resources Wales is required for any works or structures
located in, under, over or within 7 metres of the bank top of the River Clwyd, designated "main river",

Environment Management

The private treatment plant and reed bed associated with this development will require an
Environmental Permit under the Environmental Permitting Regulations 2010, from Natural Resources
Wales, unless an exemption applies. The applicant is advised to contact Natural Resources Wales for
further advice and to discuss the issues likely to be raised. You should be aware that a permit may
not be granted. Additional guidance on 'Environmental Permitting' can be accessed:
http:/fwww.environment-agency.gov.uk/business/sectors/32320.aspx.

Listed Building Consent

You are hereby reminded that the works to which this permission relates also require Listed Building
Consent and that it does not necessarily follow that such Consent will be granted. It is a criminal
offence for demolition works or other operations affecting the character of a listed building (including
internal alterations) to be carried out until Listed Building Consent has also been granted.

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



4

Graham Boase

CYNGOR
Sir Ddinbych
Den bighshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Head of Pianning & Public Proleclion
Denbighshire County Council

Caledfryn
Smithfield Road
Denbigh
Denbighshire

Tel: 01824 706800

LL16 3RJ

Fax: 01824 706709

Heading
07/2013/1233/PF
Rhos Isa
Llandrillo

Application Site

\
Date 6/1/2014

Cenire = 303297 E 336908 N
This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of

the applicaton site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be taken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

Scale 1/2500

available for inspection prior to the meeting.

.,

\

ST iGN AN
:/_.F----::f ?ﬁ’}}“ gy i e\ 5
Ll o o | 1P : i

AN Yo" \

&

g\
o b Proa —1 =
: .*.._-' | S‘__ >,6 _“'._‘ = -1; 1'. 'J| I-"-"-'J.l—-l
NNz msni ) =
Y et \ﬂ‘o//_.\'sl
WLy ‘-'?;j'““,\f'{/mu's
ol

Y%

At

This map is reproduced trom Ordnance Survey materta)
© Crown copyright. Unauthonized reproduction infringes Crown cop;

with the p

1 of Ord Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majes
yright and may lead ta p ion or Civil di Denbighsh

's Stationery Office

ounty Council 100023408 2011

H ¥

© Hawlfraint y Goron Mae sigynhy

hyrchir y map han 0 ddeunydd yr Ominanca Survey gyda chaniatad yr
it heb ganiatdd yn tam hawlfraint y

Ordnanr."a;s umarmnﬁl;;fr% ﬁMﬁl (:m’i Sir Ddinbyeh 100023408 2011
ron a ga ynwaiﬂ su =l yngor Sir Ddinl 1
~




CYNGOR
Sir Ddin bych
Den bighshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

\ 4

Graham Boase
Head of Planning & Public Protection

Denbighshire County Council
Caledfryn

Smithfield Road

Denbigh

Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

Heading

07/2013/1233/PF
Rhos Isa
Llandrillo
Application Site N\
Date 6/1/2014 Scale 111250

Centre = 303207 E 336908 N

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of

1he application site which forms the subject of the accompanying report.
It does not form any part of the application documents, and should not
be laken as representative of the proposals to be considered, which are

el 01824 706800 Fax: 01824 706709
i an 067 avaitable for inspection prior (o the meeting.
g 7/ -, 50 L
Fi /{ O:o J . _
f S e | | 1
I < - S L
e &
) {( { &)
\ i1 - | - _:; i
1 1'* ‘ S S
N \ &7 Bi
A i, = ¢ ' F Y i3
| /!
\ _i
,u"
! Pen-thos

If Llys Y Dderwen

" PENNANT

of Qrdnance Surve:

duced from Ord, Survi rial wi

This map Is repr

lawitraint y Goron. Mae algyni

d may lead to p ar Civil p 98 Denbig

&y ith the permi
© Crown copynight. Unautherized reproduction Infringes Crown copyright an
r Ordnance Survay ar ran Rheclwr Liyfrla E| Mawrhydi

Atgynhyrehir y map hwn o ddeunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatad
oﬂm K,m?{u heb ganiatad yn torr hawliraint y

¥ o bebalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office
ivi i Denbi i County Council 100023408. 2011

hyn wﬂﬁgwmmus sifil c;:gor Sir Ddinbych 100023408 2011




AN'OX FEOLYOLDSROW MMM S5 x:.eu.aaxoggg_dﬂ- »
LZ1L0LPT010 5 TTTEOLYTRIOD
YNL ST anusybquag ‘unpping ‘1maung uo us ‘ssnoj wag

Wd 0021 €EL6O:BL
5ep

$100p s3uRiuZ jednuud Wew ay) 55013¢ papwosd BG 01 DUIS POYSaIY] 553398 |BAe v

Sumemp ouy 0} £582I8 [BAG 103 WOZ-L X WHZ-L

10 SUCISLBLED "UIW Yl OGP S3URIIL2 |2Auud uiet syl opisina papacid 89 0) & uudjigd jeaay v
BpM IDZ-1 LW B 3q 0} 1 100D Saveljus judl [edoubd ay) ojyied ays

0Z w [ uey) sedasls tou JuxpeEIb @ yiw Joop

S831AJ3S 1DANIB}|YIID

SSOUIRNOHOSILYW HHE

"EWOM I3 LN NI OL MO 1115 MO 2X0IHD 36 QI FHOSNIFEG TIY IHDRAS0T O

N Aq umsip smay @ouedu? (edouud trew sy o) aseds Burped 182 9y woy) papoid oq o] T yaeosdde $5a0e 19AD] Y _u D N : _.
4 LESO : : Susnied ouy - Bunonp 5l of $3398 porgeern
e e e V4. LAORYT 3015 035040
A i st gase Buuing pue bupyred *ssanae o
Q. uojq4 in of D7 91§ pasodol d ‘sueyd UC UMOYS Se PUE 'ParmIdiia PUR PAISKE 24 O 5t NS Bu) Buwuss .mmu.ﬂm .uu...o,..:? Bunsixa uuw
opn Bupmesp Lt v A pesodosg
"pl- "H3MY0D "OTNYONY T VSISOHY <
ong 1asjoud
-

ySiU aepns paacidde Jeuo so Guined adA) jaz-uado 5 *sBuiddiyn mba (woyngy oo 03 72

jescudde pue UONEIUISAIS 51U 0F ‘waisks Buned B d & Ul paystuy 30 0] Hunamp
mau pasodeud oY) aAas o) sease Gununy pue Gunped ‘Aemaarp aleand mau pasodard ay)

uollenzads pue |eaordde s Auoyinyg Aesy by o) sy TR B ITLH
(ENjiTads pUe | Auoying Aesybiy 2yl o) ysuy 18 s paoepns og p213%0 uMdys pous IowS

0} 51 upipsod aougIua ay) o) dn pecs Bunsta ayy Jo abpa ay) WO EAIE IJULKUD PAPPOW By pIwmby3a 99 o) kyopunog of abpay Guysixs
‘8PS Y] O} $55908 20\p) 6006 Hupysina
BY1 1 poX)) 99 O) asE sled o - 2Pt WI0-P UIW B 3 0] $1 $59302 JRINHYaA PAPPOL DY L SSI2ID/UDINIINFA PRUSDIM
: 3 SiEIap uoEdgRd 63 36p3y %IDQ Wy
eroadde s Guoyiny Aemubey dug i n uw Ay p b 84 0F pue ‘veid

5 D
UO UMDYS SE 'PASBYE aq €I PEo) and Bunstd ayl Jo Jps ay) o) S5I00E JendaA Gulsixs syl usmy o i

Spom Buibung ay) 10 voHBdwaD auy) o} S2e1d Ui 1day 8q 0} 5 BINI} Ay 3aulau)
1O wmard 8yl 30 J2iaunad ey) O} eua) Gulled INUISALD JRqUN] B 10 UOIIAIR AY) AQ uIwdojanap
10 asnea ay) Guimp paeioid 9 0) PIULEIR) B O] WMOUS bpau pue s3an buy ny

SIS PUR J21E IRJIUNS JO SISYI0
i woseas Bunueld 1Xau 3yl w padeidal 3q [eys paseasip Jo pabiiswep 4snouas jo pasowal
248 D UBWI0RAIPD BY) 1O VOGN |0 §1R34 aal jO poad @ ulit Ydiym sjuejd 10 $333 Auy

EHIT . NYITE)

(uawdo3aap aut 0y 53306 ou a“
] 0 [ o} ueseas Siapaas puk Gulwerd |5y 3y) 1IN0 pauie aq peys Guidedspue) “

10 SpEjap paAcidide ) W Pasudwsd Juauieals 1agie Jjo Guua) Bunpn) ‘Guipaas "Bunueid gy ~ : \)

S 1 <

N i
b T
. p é m:..a..?\.- By and vIyY 0355ve0
POOL U] JIMIE IN0OJ O UNJ UIDIP RO DIP W = 7
2 ma om 0534004 5405 1o . J/ﬁ pavityas 3q o
11DM X3)40 BUIIDS WWGZZ MIU Gim DD ' Jopunog o) 36p3g bujjs)ea

gy w
pasowdy 3g o) 36DJUOSY 215 0 11D

pasowds 3G oy
s394y 1putyda) Buysiu

wog-Z 8q o buuag vaans pue sind wuqg |o 1YSdY [EIBAD ‘xEW

Siad udamlaq pue spem daoge Sunus) jaued (YUl JaquUN PSPIEOG [EXUGA

Yum pue wingHg 10 1uiey "xew B 0 s131d uaamiad Srem ¥oug Sune wwszz yum Siad yoaug
Burag) WSy x wuwpsy 29 ol Guppng doysyiomabeseb pue Guiamp uaamiag asuady vaaIas

J PINDBL I 0)
33uay s om AJopunoq bupsixa

Buida ) d € yim padded eq o) [lean
aps y foLp pue p ysn} pade}-ne) aq 0} PUE INS BKS O] PRIRPUDI 9 01 LA
Uiy WpQ-Z "Ll ~ EM Y20 WINGHZ € UNM PadRiia) 5 0) ABDUNDQ LAULIOU 1B 3y} Of abpay

&yi1p)Ing doys yJom; 36DID6 pasodoad
uby WILG0E B B BG ©) HEA
HEMm %2uq Guioe) Wwezz B yiwm peaeidas 8q o Lepunad a62jU0u) S OF [EM BUDIS M0 £34J0p umOys PIYS)jOWID 3q oy Burnamp Buljsing

sugyd uo EIET 12130 30 C) SAUEPUNOG BUS 0} d Iy
[BAQIOdE PUB UGIEIIIads 5 judya 0] sORy SIRIS/AU0IS U1 PAUSIUY Bq o) seale oued pUB sujed man

USY-¥  UME NS - B K194 PIAR — DM Auayd preg - g
sBuipying AUE wWaJ) WY LW © PaYs B4 O} PUE [IE) Wg'C 8] WO E 3q o) Bunueid aan saleny

Bupue|d aay
44 7E8217 2107 hborropsmssssom - [ NOILAIDTY NAH4AITYD
peos 10 Gutppng AUE WO W Uty B P3YS ~ SUDIINIISUEI Agme-yeog - g .n\;. m_bw ._.UD m c

09 Ul | aq 0} sedid 0} [jB] UMW ~ suny abewesp 13lEM 3oRUNS BIP WG, - ————— ——O

B G3INIE03Y

‘O w4 30 0) $adid 0} 12) “urws — Sund afiewtep noj ‘EIp WG -




AN OF SSODSUDSHOLI MMM 5 'O TSOOUIHIDUMGIOW »
LLK LOLPTEI0 9 TITEOLPIRIOD
YN § 1T 3jUsubiquag ‘Uiim ‘amaiog ue] usy ‘asno uag

Wd 00L:1| EL60:BL
A wawip HEDS aep
1 LEG0

uajsAl ou Bupmesp ‘ou 13efosd
“SUotyDAd|] pasodoly

ohn Bupmnp

"NIMHOD OTTIHORY 1T "VSISOHY

opgt 3aejaud

tib

$931AJAS |BINDAYIY24ID

SSOUIHAOHISILVW

OO 20 INSIVIINGINDT OL HRed $0% MO GIDIHD 3T 0L SHOSNIVAD TIY LHORALOD

NOILVAIT3

0011
LLEY

Sachd UMOp pUB S333N0 JACN BIYAL - SPOOE) JBTEMUIEY
‘spieoq afiien g vote) 3adn suyAs - spueog ebieq g masey

S200P | pue

WILILKIE PRIEOD INC(OD 10 JAUD FPUAN « RIOOQ) JEILRINT/SMOPUIAL

"SUCLIEA212 U UMOUS 813U BUIDPEN rsqum pieoq JEPaD |BIUGZLCH
"UStUt J3PUR) PANDICT-{|3S YIO0WS + SjEAL

‘S91Es | Aaiby

i

133

NI I NAL2G Y

€0z 12040

d3nIao3y

=
]
| [

| B

L

[ill
|

ooL:L
01LVA313 30IS

146

i

I3 1EImEy putty

10 M3 - Jooy
STVIHIAVIN TYNHILX3

00L:L
NOILVAIIT 30IS

0oLt

NOFEVAITT INOHS

1

I

4787 L7 E0Z/L0Q |

—F



O TSONCUISHDIL MMM 1 YN0 SOOI IHRDIUS|oW 3
LZ1 ZOLYTRID D TTZSOLPTRIO
VNI ST 'a4ysydiquaq ‘UnpnY *Am3Jogd ua usl ‘asnoy g

Hd 00t-t| el 608l
Aq umesp foie 2ot i ep
_ £ | LESO
uD|EjARS “ou Bumnp | ou jaefoud

"SuD)g J00|4 pasodold

onp Supmesp

NIMY0D DTTIEONV T "VSISOHY

apg 1aeford

S3VIAJAS |DINIBYYDID

SSQUEMNOHISILVW

——

ALLE = VIEV H004 TVIOL

001-1L

NY1d INOAVY 40014 LSHLS

: X

=

buipupy N\

000L = 0057

D

woo1paq Jajsow

uy

18

dd/EETL/ 002210

11

.mc__:a_

-

O0EE = 0059
£ woopaq

N

s O

n

N

0

0521 TO0GY
wooly)og

af

i

y

0062 =050%9
41 W003p3g

0004 009 R, * 0002
z wooupag  apesua(]

000

O

| |

0

ooL:t

NVId LN0AVY HO0T4 ONNOYD

I |
{ ooLe ] 0SEEL ﬁ
TR 1
|
_ yasod |
e — I . ¥ : = ._ ! I~
0002 * 008E DOGE »055€
woos 13|1oq i ney
7. 000¢ * 00 ) 000L = 005
. _ ) LAy py DaJo Buial) g
3 4210 EEM. e
00z "00L2
A 150})Dalg
5 £ X
& e ZAVANINE 1
N COOE = 0059
Dalo burup
5 g
000 #0059
abuno
N _ I L]
| 00t 7 | 009 oot e 05+




ITEM NO:
WARD NO:

WARD MEMBER(S):

APPLICATION NO:
PROPOSAL:
LOCATION:
APPLICANT:
CONSTRAINTS:

PUBLICITY
UNDERTAKEN:

Paul Griffin
3

Liandrillo

Councillor Cefyn Williams

07/2013/1233/ PF

Erection of replacement two-storey dwelling with detached
garage/workshop and alterations to existing vehicular access

Rhos Isa Llandrillo Corwen

MrD S Williams

Site Notice - NoPress Notice - NoNeighbour letters - Yes

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:

Scheme of Delegation Part 2

» Referral by Head of Planning / Development Control Manager

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
LLANDRILLO COMMUNITY COUNCIL:

“Na objections”

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES -
Head of Highways and Infrastructure:

- Highways Officer:

No objections subject to conditions relating to the creation of the access and the provision
of parking and turning spaces.

Ecologist:
No objections

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

None received

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION:

REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

. awaiting consideration by Committee

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:

1. THE PROPOSAL:

1.1 Summary of proposals

Page 52



1.1.1  The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of a replacement
dwelling, and alterations to an access on land adjacent to existing housing
developments at Llys Y Coed, Rhos Llan and Rhos Helyg in Llandrillo.

1.1.2 A two storey dwelling is proposed in the form of an ‘L’ shape, set back from the road
frontage, with the parking and turning to the front. The proposed dwelling comprises 4
bedrooms and associated living areas, and a detached garage.

1.1.3 Materials proposed are a mix of cedar cladding and rendered walls with slate roof and
upvc doors and windows.

1.1.4 The detailing of the proposal, the former dwelling and the site layout can be seen in
the plans at the front of this report.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings

1.2.1 The application site is located to the west of Llandrillo. The site is accessed off the
existing Dinan public road.

1.2.2 The site has been occupied by a two storey dwelling which has been demolished. It is
on the corner of Dinan and Rhos Helyg.

1.2.3 The site is bound by hedges, and there are a number of mature trees within the site,

1.2.4 The surrounding area is characterised by residential development. The existing
dwellings are a mix of sizes and types.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site is within the development boundary of Llandrillo, as shown on the proposals
map in the Local Development Plan.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1 Permission was granted in 2012 under the then relevant Unitary Development Plan
for the redevelopment of this site by way of two dwellings. The permission has not
been implemented.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 None

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:

3.

2.1 07/2012/1109 — Demolition of derelict detached two storey dwelling and erection of 1
detached two storey dwelling and 1 detached single storey dwelling and alterations to existing
access, GRANTED under delegated powers

RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:

The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:

3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan (adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy RD 1 - Sustainable development and good standard design
Policy BSC 1 — Growth strategy for Denbighshire
Policy BSC 3 — Securing infrastructure contributions from development
Policy BSC 11 — Recreation and open space
Policy VOE 5 — Conservation of natural resources

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance

SPG 4 - Open space requirements in new development
SPG 6 — Trees and development

Page 53



SPG 7 - Residential space standards
SPG 18 — Nature conservation and species protection
SPG 25 — Residential development design guide

3.3 GOVERNMENT POLICY / GUIDANCE
Planning Folicy Wales Edition 5 November 2012
Technical Advice Note § — Nature Conservation and Planning (2009)
Technical Advice Note 12 - Design (2009)
Technical Advice Note 18 — Transport (2007)
Technical Advice Note 22 — Sustainable Buildings (2010)

MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 5, 2012 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
‘should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless malerial considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
{Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance o the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues are considered to be:
Principle

Density of development

Visual amenity

Residential amenity

Ecology

Recreation and open space

Highways (including access and parking)
Sustainability including codes and water management

N NN N N N N N
T8 eh i ok b ek b b
DN RWLWND

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.21 Principle;

In relation to the principle of the development, the relevant planning policy context in
the Local Development Plan is Policy BSC 1 which sets out the basic growth strategy
for Denbighshire and makes provision for new housing development, including within
settlements like Llandrillo which are defined as villages. Policy RD1 relates to
development proposals within development boundaries and sets out tests to ensure
that development proposals do not have an unacceptable impact on the amenity and
appearance of the area.

The site being considered is within the development boundary of Llandrillo, and
therefore the principle of development is considered acceptable subject to an
assessment of impacts as set out below.

4.2.2 Density of development:
Policy RD 1 states that development should make the most efficient use of land by

achieving a minimum density of development of 35 dwellings per hectare, unless local
circumstances dictate a lower density. Policy RD 1 also requires development to
respect the character of the surrounding area.

Page 54



423

424

4.2.5

The site measures approximately 0.09ha, and based on the indicative density could
accommodate 3 dwellings. The surrounding area is developed by way of dwellings,
most occupying plots smaller than the application site.

In Officers’ view, it is considered that to develop a site of this size, in this location with
three dwellings would not be possible due to highway constraints. The sites planning
history does indicate that it would be possible to develop the site by way of two
dwellings. However, given the history of the site (a single dwelling), it is not
considered reasonable to insist on development achieving an equivalent density
figure of 35 dwellings per hectare and the proposal is therefore considered acceptable
on the basis of a 1:1 replacement.

Visual amenity:
Policy RD 1 contains general considerations to be given to the impacts of

development. Among these considerations is the impact on the visual amenity of the
area. There is a general requirement for development proposals to respect the site
and surroundings by virtue of siting, scale, form, character, materials and spaces in
and around buildings. Public views into and out of townscapes and across the open
countryside should be respected.

The proposed two storey dwelling would be sited within an area characterised by
spacious development, and two storey dwellings. The dwelling would be constructed
with cedar cladding, render and slate roof. Within the surrounding area there is a wide
range of building materials evident. The proposed dwelling would be set back from
the highway with parking and turning area located to the front, replicating the general
form of development within the locality.

Itis considered that the scale and form of the dwelling are in keeping with the
character of the area. The choice of materials is considered acceptable in this
location, and the layout of the site would not appear at odds with the surrounding
area. Within the scheme there is scope for suitable landscaping to help assimilate the
development into the character of the area. The proposal is therefore considered to
be acceptable in terms of visual amenity and its impact upon the character of the
area, and is in accordance with Policy RD 1 in terms of visual amenity.

Residential amenity:
Policy RD 1 contains general considerations to be given to the impacts of

development. Among these considerations is the impact on the residential amenity of
the area. There is a general requirement for development proposals to not result in a
loss of amenity for neighbouring dwellings by virtue of overlooking, increased activity,
and disturbance. Adequate standards of amenity for the proposed development itself
should also be provided. Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 7 advises that the
minimum amount of amenity space for a dwelling is 40 square metres.

The nearest dwellings to the proposed dwelling are those on Rhos Helyg and Rhos
Llan, some 20 metres to the north and east of the site. There are no dwellings directly
opposite the site, and none to the south. The proposed dwelling would have a garden
area in excess of 100 square metres.

Given the separation distances involved, and the lacation of windows, it is not
considered that the proposed dwelling would result in a loss of amenity for
surrounding properties. With in excess of 100 square metres of garden space, the
proposed dwelling would have sufficient amenity space for future occupants. In terms
of residential amenity the proposed dwelling is considered acceptable and in
accordance with the relevant planning policies and guidance.

Ecology:
There is a general requirement in Policy RD 1 for development proposals to protect

the natural environment. This is expanded on in Policy VOE 1 and VOE 5. Guidance

Page 55



426

427

4.2.8

is offered in Supplementary Planning Guidance Note 18, Nature Conservation and
Species Protection.

Within the site and along the boundaries are a number of mature trees. These trees
have the potential to be host to protected species and other wildlife. They are also
landscape features in their own right. The proposal seeks to remove a number of
them to allow for the development. The site has been surveyed for protected species,
and an arboriculture report has been submitted. No objections have been lodged from
Natural Resources Wales, or the County Council Biodiversity Officer.

It is accepted that sometrees will need to be removed from the site if the
development is to proceed. There is scope to assess the site further to retain some
trees, and to replant new ones as mitigation for the lost trees. The applicant has
agreed to the imposition of planning conditions to secure this. In terms of wildlife, the
advice of the County Council Biodiversity Officer is that the proposal is acceptable
provided the recommendations in the ecological report are followed. The proposal is
therefore considered acceptable in terms of biodiversity; subject to the imposition of
relevant conditions.

Recreation and open space:
Policy BSC 3 seeks to secure, where relevant, infrastructure contributions from

development. Policy BSC 11 requires all new residential development to provide a
contribution to recreation and open space either on site, or by the provision of a
commuted sum.

The proposal is for a single dwelling. Almaost immediately to the rear of the site is an
area designated as pubic open/recreation space. The applicant has agreed to pay a
commuted sum in the region of £2660 towards the provision of improved facilities,
and the ongoing maintenance of the recreation space in Llandrillo.

Itis considered that in this instance the provision of a commuted sum is preferable to
the option of on site provision, given that the proposal is for a single dwelling. It is
therefore considered that the proposal is in accordance with Policy BSC 3 and Policy
BSC 11, subject to a condition to secure the mechanism by which the commuted sum
would be secured.

Highways (including access and parking):
Policy RD 1 and Technical Advice Note 18, contain criteria that seek to ensure
development proposals do not have an adverse impact on highway safety.

The proposal involves alterations to an existing access onto the highway. A parking
and turning area is located to the front of the dwelling, along with a garage. No
objections have been received from the Highway Officer.

With regard to the requirements of Policy RD 1 and TAN 18, it is considered that the
proposal is acceptable, and would not have an adverse impact upon the highway
infrastructure.

Sustainability, including codes and water management:
Guidance in TAN 12 Design and TAN 22 Sustainable Buildings has introduced an

obligation on applicants to demonstrate the approach to a range of design
considerations, including how inclusive design and standards of environmental
sustainability are to be achieved,

in the case of this submission, the Sustainability Code requirements of Planning
Policy Wales, TAN 12 and 22 are considered to have been satisfactorily addressed.
The Code for Sustainable Homes Pre Assessment Report indicates that it should be
possible to achieve the required number of credits under ‘Ene1 - Dwelling Emission
Rate' and attain a Code Level 3 type for the development. In line with the advice
contained in TAN 22, suitably worded conditions can be included to ensure the

Page 56



development is carried out in accordance with the requirements of Sustainability Code
guidance,

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 The proposal is considered to comply with policy, subject to conditions, and it is therefore
recommended that permission be granted.

RECOMMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the
date of this permission.
2. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

Prior to the commencement of the development, the written approval of the Local Planning Authority
shall be obtained in respect of the walls and roof materials to be used for the development hereby
permitted and no materials other than those approved shall be used.

3. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No development shall take place until there has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority, a detailed scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site, and such
scheme shall include details of:

(a) all existing trees, hedgerows and other vegetation on the land, details of any to be retained,
and measures for their protection in the course of development.

(b} proposed new frees, hedgerows, shrubs or vegetation, including confirmation of species,
numbers, and location and the proposed timing of the planting;

(c) proposed materials to be used on the driveway(s), paths and other hard surfaced areas;

(d) proposed earthworks, grading and mounding of land and changes in levels, final contours and
the relationship of proposed mounding to existing vegetation and surrounding landform;

(e) Proposed positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment.

4, Facilities shall be provided and retained within the site for the loading/ unloading, parking and
turning of vehicles in accordance with the approved plan which shall be completed prior to the
development being brought into use.

5. Full details of the vehicular footway crossing shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before the commence of any site works and the access shall be
completed in accordance with the approved plans before it is brought into use.

6. None of the trees or hedgerows shown on the approved plans as being retained shall be
felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or
hedgerow plants which die or are severely damaged or become seriously diseased within five years
of the completion of the development shall be replaced with trees or hedgerow plants of such size and
species to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

7. All planting, seeding, turfing, fencing, walling or other treatment comprised in the approved
details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seascns following the
completion of the development and any trees or plants which, within a period of five years of the
development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the
next planting season with others of similar size and species.

8. PRE-COMMENCEMENT CONDITION

No development shall take place until the mechanism for securing the provision of Recreation and
Open space has been agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority,

9. The new dwelling hereby permitted shall be constructed to achieve a minimum Code for
Sustainable Homes Level 3 and achieve a minimum of 1 credit under category 'Ene1 - Dwelling
Emission Rate’ in accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable Homes: Technical
Guide November 2010. The development shall be carried out entirely in accordance with the
approved assessment and certification.

10. Construction of the dwelling hereby permitted shall not begin until an ‘Interim Certificate’ has
been submitted to the Local Planning Authority, certifying that a minimum Code for Sustainable
Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credit under ‘Ene1 - Dwelling Emission Rate', has been achieved
for that individual dwelling or house type in accordance with the requirements of the Code for
Sustainable Homes: Technical Guide November 2010.

1. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, a Code for Sustainable Homes
'Final Certificate” shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority certifying that a minimum Code
for Sustainable Homes Level 3 and a minimum of 1 credit under 'Ene1 - Dwelling Emission Rate’, has

Page 57



been achieved for that dwelling in accordance with the requirements of the Code for Sustainable
Homes: Technical Guide November 2010.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are}:-

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

In the interests of visual amenity.

To ensure in the interests of visual amenity a satisfactory standard of landscaping in
onjunction with the development.

To provide for the loading/ unloading, parking and turning of vehicles and to ensure that
eversing by vehicles into or from the highway is rendered unnecessary in the interest of traffic safety.
To ensure the formation of a safe and satisfactory access in the interests of highway safety.
To safeguard the existing trees and hedges on the site, in the interests of the visual amenities
f the locality.

To ensure a satisfactory standard of development, in the interests of visual amenity.

In the interest of providing public open space.

To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

To comply with the provisions of TAN 22: Planning for Sustainable Buildings.

S2o@mNgOUgRg LN

-

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Your attention is drawn to the attached Highway Supplementary Notes Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5 & 10.
Your attention is drawn to the attached Part N form (New Road and Street Works Act 1991).
Your attention is drawn to the attached notes relating to applications for consent to construct a
vehicular crossing over a footway / verge under Section 184 of the Highways Act 1980.

Page 58



CYNGOR Heading.

. - 43/2013M1305/PF
Sir Ddinbych Tyn y Wal Outbuildings -

Denbi ghshire Ffordd Penrhwylfa, Meliden
v COUNTY COUNCH

Graham Boase Application Site N
Head of Planning & Public Protection \
Denbighshire County Council Date 6/1/2014 Scale 1/2500

Caledfryn Cenire = 306075 E 381161 N

Smithfield Road

This plan is intended solely to give an indiction of the LOCATION of

the application sile which forms the subject of the accompanying report
It doas not form any part of the application documents, and should not
Tel: 01824 706800 Fax 01824 706709 be tlaken as represenlahv.e of the propasals to be considered, which are
available for inspection prior to the meeting.

Denbigh
Denbighshire LL16 3RJ

&

S N ?x/g

LIS TN — NS -

This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey matertal with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majestgs Stationery Offica
© Crown copyright. Unauthortzed reproduction infringas Crown copyright and may lead to p ion Qr civil p dings Danbighshire County Council 100023408, 2011

ity Goron Mae atgynhyrchu heb ganiatdd yn torr hawliraint y Goron a gall hyn anw: sifi Cynger Sir Ddinbych. 100023408 2011

At?‘ynhyrdu‘ry map hwn 0 ddaunydd yr Ordnance Survey gyda chaniatéd yr Ordnance Survay n Rheaiwr LI Mawrhydi
© Hawifrai p :ﬁla




Outhurldns Converston

oM Plaw. DGB.1:500 .
Plorosed

Page 60



PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

RSP T 2T T L 9 g apy
_ Q350d0yd

[05:F 1190 v A NAL

H3IMY Jirg
WUIZX WOZYZ Wi ST oy rojoniy
ITRPUIN § 03]
o paniyy
SO PUOY] DG G SKTAE] WD
PRZ01 79 PG O SPOG Smporiacy
W PePU ARIE WO T
ST I BT o i oy
TR
SOLIOY TR W GGy YRS 99 G (Sopm
PPIILSHITY ) RIMOTIN GHSIAD WY
GHITY JIGYTI | JATIG
RFUT Yoy
TN TOTOH o1 PRI DN
FOU TOHOYITRY MUCE 5P O sy
F P 4oqIyax® P DGRIDG GHsID Cf
TUTHHS PUb SToQ i SUISIXD PATHRY 'S
GUuPAT PRy
TT TN TOINU WU Sosvyanys
U Yy POD I0100) FOWOpRy (I
PGS DIONSTPVM QU HIHOT SNV

Y0 GRUNOT JO0r GIITEY DIOVRY T

ACLON T P 0K PVD SYIUR JOHETG
GUSID) MOOHS SO ZqDG VOGTARIT pmy
79 XORY 11 KIOODIIN] SIS TDISWR}Y
SELIC 2ittt WG PUD GHDWRG
HARTPMIS GHUSHT GHIS ' Prngoy

HE) WO

WG [ ST00 THOYS PMOUTY Goung as

49 SHOUIGY GHISD WP BTy AYrRy0IT) T

TN

Page 61



TYN Y waL DG3 150

Fuirdcat cxiilim bicnwer X
Nats e dabed ensinet A%

Do Licute coels baw)

AY (ecass anut Farlnd aleas
4 by faned shih s daenee
g v Surtable
dizards and atachia
landszars oFfsadtse? as
WAl Ry dis e e Samtion
Fream Public aras

L e ,
PROPOSED | Dt s dAPaed i e
GROUND FLOOR e—— T v S
ey = e
) A | |
workshop ’ ] '}‘ | access ond porking ared
_ Vb | |
log store |7 study :1 | .
|
— ol S—
b= Y 7 y .

&xx b Sl APEHINAT
font elivahew fo be slazed

N ::

Lxatird ot anll 8 Shuciadlsn ——— |
defichue. LaRhdln ntbm aud i
febudd 1T AR Stpet MEIXSUD
Storgaea¥ Melmedd st SUE £ fene
[LRCARILL T T PRE Pt T
wines adovtal

el

Forcourt Farknd arm anl
WEHELOY aZlfS, warkiies it
Ipa Sioig gk fofautad for

N

N

(2 h Tow Y wal (K

A i obsrure 9laer - Tue

ared saued 1oof
e loandt arer

| — f2% sz’

Ratain Yoas CLtbs of gnshma
Haod tud Peked b 2ot
Luished i Tde

d TN
oftatwt
Jrestned ritcs deulat SSuars 'l #
20 Ta Tim Shaw cihrrecds Skt chitrus
drive # ehess wingsle b ! Lermssterainnuak. « Linictimits
freem = o 1 Lacwclabts gardel -3 ek, (et apd hadd I st
< iyt A T Ao shieineedl foba
s s a3 Ehted o G | for| et B e
} g et Sk e Lt Lawn Lonthn aud Falesd e led wvbr
Lratd fw i e Sudacy [-1 |
ot 1o Puble Sdnis e !
fyn y waol '
seshae daslere i
fi2emsad Futcurs of ez Fafs
et | Bar PR fuulnr Fanes
I/l Frns musalt ( T
APz Loty
¢/ 71305 PF
| fow ¥ s ptferrad 4 ] Ay
l_"""‘**“‘" — Gttuued Flaor— téades + 1027 « 1138 = 15 Al
- — ferititaor 16aL2 » a5 - 24
L —— A0 s
— Veiuz OB
, e Vi TEOX e (odseriltey e Bk, Lar AORE inils
= Vi, Lioxnfo fodsarvairn S black. i Al wenls
T ﬁ
= Tim
Raowd afea alkdrz r.atn.kz e 1f 3-punt = |
195X 3362 & S5m0 A, alagf FAY —] L8200 Whseltedd oaf
gy vt Shoatit ﬂ‘l‘ﬁfd aiel it 8 T e Taagntey 10 o e,
214 AT 1 F2RRAE 9% d I~ 3=
& entt v gheepds Heat Mgwertd fora ~_bedi
S o - =] Bieck uf arithars j]
- prectnd af Street.
e Y N ol
Rebudf Shiccnusdio dafecton Stous Reut S
WalL s extued Soaciork e = ‘_‘NJ-‘ i\,,_m'm N 7,1-.
- [
gnwmﬁl,%‘f ;'g g gl as taznked -‘“‘l“}é 2 i ?".u F.crHM to be Pl ot
- Y &F ed i ltzet o
“ ‘-— % ¢ qd jacaul
i
Roowt a2z sk chilietd hpitiek 13 2 jsat :;‘,M,m ,‘mﬂﬁfﬁg mg
(Lexd 117r (8358 = #4180et Merter 4 af sitned g3
Wiahis rodt arzz Showss Cratsed 1§ Srewird feer Pt

TP ek ews lanciand i
3 A2t 3. Codrag Wmu&
¥ wdatl AR

FIRST FLOOR]

& SEAC. T 1M ol IS TS TS%
and Thy 685w A CXG2cls TLag
rectaftd fv a Srolt eost.

TYN Y WAL DG10_1:501

PROPOSED |

A e

E



EXISTING ELEVVATIONS

[T
o
-
v
=
™
~
=
=
o~
e
-

TYN Y WAL_D53_1100 . EXISTING |

FRONT

e
SIDE

SIDE |

P

Page 63



- EXISTING H-%MNS‘

Q'o
& '
& o o
T P 2 T
/ el
peeess+ pariong area
I
werlishop log store garege
+r—l [ : s i o
N T 7
B —
N _ - o —
-
N: / e stable [T] swee L

g fazd

GROUND FLIOR |

tyn y waol

TYN ¥ WAL . DB1150.EXISTING |

sl VL RARER RN A
TYNY WAL.D62 |
y 150.1100_ EXISTING |
]
v, : vod
e |
bemed |

Page 64




David Roberts

ITEM NO: 4

WARD NO: Prestatyn Meliden

WARD MEMBER(S): Councillor Peter Evans

APPLICATION NO: 43/2013/1305/ PF

PROPOSAL: Conversion of redundant outbuilding to form 1 no. dwelling.
Formation of pitched roof over existing workshop

LOCATION: Outbuildings at Tyn Y Wa! Ffordd Penrhwylfa Meliden Prestatyn

APPLICANT: MrDarren Cooper

CONSTRAINTS: Tree Preservation OrderConservation Area

PUBLICITY Site Notice - YesPress Notice - YesNeighbour letters - Yes

UNDERTAKEN:

REASON(S) APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE:
Scheme of Delegation Part 2

» Recommendation to grant — 4 or more objections received

CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
PRESTAYN TOWN COUNCIL
‘No objection’

CLWYD POWYS ARCHAEOLOGICAL TRUST
Recommend photographic survey condition

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL CONSULTEES -

Head of Highways and Infrastructure
Highways Officer

No objection subject to condition requiring completion of parking and turning

Biodiversity Officer
Neo objection subject to recommendations of the submitted ecology report being followed

Conservation Architect
No objection subject to acceptable colour of window frames which can be secured by condition

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY:

In objection
Representations received from:

S. M. Elmusrati, Bronallt, Ffordd Penrhwylfa, Meliden

S. Johnson, 2, Gwynfron Cottages, Cefn y Gwrych, Meliden

M. Rendell, Brookdale House, Cefn y Gwrych, Meliden

C. Muirhead & G. Raoberts, 1, Gwynfron Cottages, Cefn y Gwrych, Meliden

Summary of planning based representations in objection:
Visual impact - Impact on Conservation Area

Highways impact - lack of parking provision and poor access arrangements
Residential Amenity - over development of the site, overlooking

EXPIRY DATE OF APPLICATION: 05/12/2013

Page 65



REASONS FOR DELAY IN DECISION (where applicable):

. protracted negotiations resulting in amended plans
. re-consultations / further publicity necessary on amended plans and / or additional
information

PLANNING ASSESSMENT:
1. THE PROPOSAL:
1.1 Summary of proposals
1.1.1  The proposal is for the conversion of an existing outbuilding into a 3 bedroom
dwelling.

1.2 Description of site and surroundings
1.2.1 The existing outbuilding is a stone walled former agricultural building, located on a

corner plot on Ffordd Penrwhylfa, Meliden.

1.2.2 ltis currently used as an amenity building for the adjacent dwelling, Tyn y Wal.

1.3 Relevant planning constraints/considerations
1.3.1 The site lies within the Meilden (Ffordd Penrwhylfa) Conservation Area and the

development boundary, of Meliden as defined in the Local Development Plan
proposals map.

1.4 Relevant planning history
1.4.1  An application for conversion of the outbuilding to 2no. dwellings was previously
refused in September 2013 under delegated powers due to failure to meet required
space standards and the negative impact of the physical alterations required on the
character of the outbuilding and the wider conservation area.

1.5 Developments/changes since the original submission
1.5.1 Plans have been altered to reflect the initial recommendations of the Conservation
Officer.

1.6 Other relevant background information
1.6.1 None

2. DETAILS OF PLANNING HISTORY:
2.1 43/2013/0635 - Change of use of outbuilding to form 2no. residential dwellings - REFUSED
24/09/2013

3. RELEVANT POLICIES AND GUIDANCE:
The main planning policies and guidance are considered to be:
3.1 Denbighshire Local Development Plan {adopted 4™ June 2013)
Policy BSC 1 - Growth Strategy for Denbighshire
Policy RD 1 - Sustainable Development and Good Standard Design
Policy BSC 11 - Recreation and Open Space
Palicy ASA 3 - Parking Standards

3.2 Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPG 7 - Residential Space Standards
SPG 13 - Conservation Areas

3.3 Government Policy / Guidance
Planning Policy Wales Edition 5 November 2012
Technical Advice Note 12 - Design

3.4 Other Material Considerations
Meliden (Ffordd Penrhwylfa) Conservation Area Appraisal

Page 66



4, MAIN PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:

In terms of general guidance on matters relevant to the consideration of a planning application,
Planning Policy Wales Edition 5, 2012 (PPW) confirms the requirement that planning applications
'should be determined in accordance with the approved or adopted development plan for the
area, unless material considerations indicate otherwise' (Section 3.1.2). PPW advises that
material considerations must be relevant to the regulation of the development and use of land in
the public interest, and fairly and reasonably relate to the development concerned., and that these
can include the number, size, layout, design and appearance of buildings, the means of access,
landscaping, service availability and the impact on the neighbourhood and on the environment
(Sections 3.1.3 and 3.1.4).

The following paragraphs in Section 4 of the report therefore refer to the policies of the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan, and to the material planning considerations which are
considered to be of relevance to the proposal.

4.1 The main land use planning issues in relation to the application are considered to be:

411 Principle

41.2 Visual amenity

4.1.3 Residential amenity

41.4 Ecology

41.5 Highways (including access and parking)
416 Open Space

4.2 In relation to the main planning considerations:
4.2.1 Principle
The proposal is for alterations to an existing building within a development boundary,
on land which is not subject to any specific designation is acceptable in principle, in
support of the basic growth strategy for the Council in Policy BSC 1 of the Local
Development Plan.

4.2.2 Visual amenity
Lecal Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which are matters relevant to the
visual impact of development; Local Development Plan Policy VOE 1 seeks to protect
sites of built heritage from development that would adversely affect them. Planning
Policy Wales (Section 6}, stresses the importance of protecting the historic
environment, and in relation to Conservation Areas, to ensure they are protected or
enhanced, while at the same time remaining alive and prosperous, aveiding
unnecessarily detailed controls. The basic objective is therefore to preserve or
enhance the character and appearance of a Conservation Area, or its setting.

The Meliden (Ffordd Penrhwylfa) Conservation Area Appraisal notes that the
Conservation Area is of rural nature and has very rural appearance. Single storey
farm outbuildings are noted as features of the Conservation Area. The appraisal notes
that the view looking to the south up Ffordd Penrhwylfa to Ffordd Talargoch is of a
pleasant country road. The existing outbuilding appears on a historic map dating to
1874. The outbuilding is pictured as an example of a Conservation Area building
within the appraisal. The proposals have been altered in line with the
recommendations of the Conservation Officer. The Conservation Officer has no
objection to the revised scheme subject to acceptable window frame colours.

Itis considered that the current scheme of alterations respects the character and
appearance of the existing building. The proposals are therefore considered to have
an acceptable impact in relation to the character and appearance of the conservation
area. Having regard to the above it is not considered that the proposals would have
an unacceptable visual impact.

Page 67



423

424

425

426

Residential amenity
Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 test (i) requires due regard to issues of siting,

layout, form, character, design, materials, aspect, microclimate and intensity of use of
land / buildings and spaces between buildings, which touch on the potential for impact
on residential amenity; test {vi) sets the requirement to assess the impact of
development on the amenities of local residents, other land and property users, or
characteristics of the locality, in terms of increased activity, disturbance, noise, dust,
fumes, litter, drainage, light pollution, etc. SPG 7 requires that 40m? of private
external amenity space is provided as a minimum for residential properties.

The proposed development would exceed the minimum space standards set out in
SPG 7 for a single.

As the minimum standards of SPG 7 are exceeded it is considered that the proposal
would have an acceptable impact on the amenity of the proposed dwelling. Having
regard to the above it is considered that the proposals would not have an
unacceptable impact on residential amenity.

Ecology
Policy VOE 5 requires due assessment of potential impacts on protected species or

designated sites of nature conservation, including mitigation proposals, and suggests
that permission should not be granted where proposals are likely to cause significant
harm to such interests. This reflects policy and guidance in Planning Policy Wales
(Section 5.2), current legislation and SPG 18 — Nature Conservation and Species
Protection, which stress the importance of the planning system in meeting biodiversity
objectives through promoting approaches to development which create new
opportunities to enhance biodiversity, prevent biodiversity losses, or compensate for
losses where damage is unavoidable.

A protected species survey has been submitted and the Biodiversity Officer has
raised no objections subject to the recommendations being followed.

The proposals are therefore considered acceptable in relation to impact on ecology
subject to condition.

Highways (including access and parking)

Local Development Plan Policy RD 1 tests (vii) and (viii) oblige provision of safe and
convenient access for a range of users, together with adequate parking, services and
manoeuvring space; and consideration of the impact of development on the local
highway network Policy ASA 3 requires adequate parking spaces for cars and
bicycles in connection with development proposals, and outlines considerations to be
given to factors relevant to the application of standards. These policies reflect general
principles set out in Planning Policy Wales (Section 8) and TAN 18 — Transport, in
support of sustainable development.

The Highways Officer considers that the proposed parking and access arrangements
are acceptable having regard o existing facilities.

It is therefore considered that the proposals would have an acceptable highways
impact.

Open Space
Local Development Plan Policy BSC 3 seeks to ensure, where relevant, infrastructure

contributions from development. Policy BSC 11 requires proposals for all new
residential development to make a contribution to recreation and open space either
on site, or by provision of a commuted sum.

The proposal includes the creation of one new residential unit.

Page 68



It is considered that the proposal would be acceptable in relation to open space
subject to the requisite contributions being secured. It is considered that this could be
done through an appropriately worded condition.

5. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS:
5.1 It is considered that the proposals would not have unacceptable impacts and it is therefore
recommended for grant

RECCOMENDATION: GRANT - subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the
date of this permission.
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of all Class(es) of Part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and

Country Planning (General Permitied Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without medification) no development permitted by the said Classes shall
be carried out without approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

3 Development shall not begin until an appropriate photographic survey of the existing buildings
on the site has been carried out in accordance with details to be submitted to, and approved by, the
local planning authority. The resulting digital photographs should be forwarded on a CD or DVD to the
Local Planning Authority and the Development Control Archaeologist, Clwyd-Powys Archaeological
Trust, 41Broad Street, Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7RR. tel: 01938 553670.

4, All development will take place in accordance with the recommendations set out within the
submitted protected species survey unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

5. Notwithstanding the submitted plans, details of the proposed window frame colour shall be
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The colour approved shall be
applied prior to the development being brought into use and shall be retained at all times unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

6. The development shall not begin until arrangements for the provision of Open Space as part
of the development, in accordance with the Council's Policies and Supplementary Planning Guidance,
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

7. Parking and turning facilities hereby approved shall be implemented prior to the first
occupation of the dwelling, and shall be retained as such at all times unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is(are):-

To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
In the interests of residential and visual amenity.

In the interests of investigation and recording of historic/listed buildings.

In the interest of preserving the conservation status of protected species.

In the interest of preserving the character and appearance of the conservation area.

In the interest of compliance with adopted open space policies.

In the interest of the safe and free flow of traffic.

Nooeon

NOTES TO APPLICANT:

Condition No. 3 of this permission requires the carrying out of a photographic survey. The applicant is
expected to pay for and complete the photographic survey. Professional photographers may be used
where access to a camera or technical difficulties are encountered but the applicant should be aware
that this will significantly increase the cost of the survey.

Photographs should be taken using a digital camera with a minimum resolution of 4 megapixels and
preferably 8 megapixels or more.

Photographs should be taken at the highest jpeg resolution setting available on the camera (usually

Fine or Super Fine). The saved photographs must be copied onto a good quality branded CD or DVD
disk in the jpeg/jpg file format.

Page 69



Note: Digital photographs presented on normal paper or photographic paper will not be accepted as
they are not archivally stable in the long term.

The use of a standard flashgun is recommended indoors to light the interior views.
If available a measured scale should be placed within each but this is not essential.

Photegraphs should be taken of all exterior and interior wall elevations which are affected by the
development together with photographs of interior roof detail where this is altered. Features of
particular interest (e.g. obvious differences in wall makeup, windows and doors whether blocked up or
not, fireplaces, timber framing, stairwells, cellars) should also be fully photographed.

The applicant should indicate where the views taken are positioned on an architect's floor plan of the
building. Location reference numbers on the plan/s should utilise the digital photo numbers from the
cameral for cross reference purposes.

The applicant must check the photos at the application site to ensure there are no blurred or poorly lit
images. If some images are blurred, please increase the speed at which the exposures are taken
{1/125 is a good minimum) and re-take the images. If images are poorly lit please check your flash is
working and.for increase the aperture. Setting the camera ISO at 200 or 400 will also allow higher
shutter speeds to be used in dimly lit locations.

The photographs should then be sent to: Mark Walters, Development Conirol Section, Clwyd-Powys
Archaeological Trust, 7A Church Street, Welshpool, Powys, SY21 7DL (Tel: 01938 553670). CPAT
will confirm receipt of your photographs and inform the planning authority that the condition has been
satisfied.

Page 70



Agenda Item 6

Report To: Planning Committee
Date of Meeting: 22nd January 2014

Lead Member / Officer: Clir David Smith, Public Realm / Angela Loftus,
Planning & Public Protection Policy Manager

Report Author: Karsten Bruk, Planning Officer

Title: Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance: Parking
Requirements

1. What is the report about?

1.1 This report accompanies the Draft Denbighshire Local Development Plan
2006 — 2021 (LDP) Supplementary Planning Guidance Note (SPG): Parking
Requirements which, if adopted, will be used in the determination of planning
applications.

2, What is the reason for making this report?

2.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Members’ approval to consult on the draft
SPG: Parking Requirements, which sets out draft new parking standards to be
applied in the County. Once adopted, this will replace the existing SPG 21:
Parking Requirements in New Developments, and will provide further up to
date guidance for developers, Officers and Members.

3. What are the Recommendations?

3.1 That Members approve the draft SPG document ‘Parking Requirements’
(attached as Appendix 1) as a basis for public consultation.

4. Report details.

4.1  The Council’'s SPG notes are not part of the adopted development plan. Welsh
Government (WG) has confirmed that following public consultation and
subsequent Local Planning Authority (LPA) approval, SPGs can be treated as
a material planning consideration when LPAs, Planning Inspectors and Welsh
Government determine planning applications and appeals.

4.2 When the Denbighshire Local Development Plan 2006 -2021 was adopted in

June 2013, the Council also resolved to carry forward all adopted SPGs for
use as planning guidance in relation to the LDP, pending a full review. It was

Page 71



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

agreed that a review of each SPG would be carried out as soon as practicable
following Plan adoption.

The parking standards have been updated to reflect Welsh Government and
Council policy on transportation and land use planning. National and local
planning policy is contained in Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5 — November
2012), Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport (2007) and the
Denbighshire Local Development Plan 2006 — 2021 (LDP), adopted June
2013. The SPG supplements LDP policy ASA3 by providing further detail on
parking requirements.

In Denbighshire, parking standards are laid out for three principle parking
zones that reflect differing requirements for individual car-based trips in the
County’s urban and rural areas, availability of public transport services and
infrastructure provision.

There is a new approach in calculating parking requirements, i.e. they are split
into two categories: operational and non-operational. The first category refers
to sufficient spaces to allow for parking the maximum number and size of
vehicles likely to serve the development at any one time. Non-operational
requirement means that the parking space is occupied by vehicles not
necessarily used for the operation of the premises, e.g. staff, clients or visitors.

The document stresses that maximum parking standards will be applied
throughout the County to reduce the over-reliance on the car. Their purpose is
to minimise individual car-based trips and to promote sustainable transport
means.

Parking standards include the provision of spaces for cycles, motorcycles,
lorries, buses and cars. The document emphasises the additional
requirements to be provided for disabled motorists.

If approved by Members, the public consultation period on the draft SPG
would be a minimum of 8 weeks. All feedback received will be reported back
to Planning Committee with a final SPG for adoption. A workshop session
was held with the LDP Steering Group in November 2013 and a summary of
the main issues raised is attached as Appendix 3.

How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities?

Corporate Priorities 2012 — 17. The SPG will contribute positively to the
following corporate priorities:

» Modernising the Council to deliver efficiencies and improve services for
our customers by ensuring that planning guidance documents are up to
date

What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

Page 72



6.1

71

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

1.

11.1

Approving the draft SPG document to be subject of a consultation exercise
with statutory bodies and the public is not anticipated to create any additional
costs.

What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA)
undertaken on the decision? The completed EqlA template should be
attached as an appendix to the report.

The Equality Impact Assessment screening exercise concluded that a (full)
EqlA is not required. The completed EqlA template is attached to this report as
Appendix Il.

What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?

No formal consultation has been carried out yet but officers from the Planning
Policy, Development Control and the Highways section were involved in
drafting the SPG document. A workshop session was held with members of
the LDP Steering Group in November 2013.

Chief Finance Officer Statement

Any costs associated with the guidance should be contained within existing
budgets and therefore there are no obvious financial implications contained in
the report.

What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them?

In the absence of up-to-date guidance there is a risk the Council will be unable
to provide accurate planning advice to its customers.

Power to make the Decision

Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



RPPEND 1XC
|

DRAFT Supplementary Planning Guidance Note:
Parking Requirements in New Developments (November 2013)

Content
1. Introduction 02
2. Status and stages in preparation 02
3. Background 02
4. Policy 03
5. Parking Standards 04
6. Parking Zones 05
6.1 Parking Zone 1 05
6.2 Parking Zone 2 09
7. Access for disabled people 11
8. Cycle parking standards 14
9. Motorcycle parking standards 15
10. Landscaping 16
11. Contacts / Sources 17
Appendices
Figures
Figure 1 Alternative ways of arranging disabled parking spaces 13
. Draft SPG: 'Parking Requirements in New Developments' = -1-

Page 75



1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Introduction

This note is one of a series of Supplementary Planning Guidance notes
(SPGs) amplifying the development plan with the aim of improving the
process, design and quality of new development. The notes are intended to
offer more detailed guidance which will assist members of the public,
Members of the Council, and officers in discussions prior to the submission of
planning applications and assist officers and Members in determining
planning applications.

Status and stages in preparation

The Council's SPG notes are not part of the adopted development plan. The
Welsh Government has confirmed that following public consultation and
subsequent Local Planning Authority (LPA) approval, SPGs can be treated
as a material planning consideration when LPAs, Planning Inspectors and the
Welsh Government determine planning applications and appeals. This SPG
document was formally approved for consultation by Denbighshire County
Council's Planning Committee on XXXX.

This note has been prepared in accordance with guidance contained in
Planning Policy Wales Edition 5 (November 2012), Technical Advice Note
(TAN) 18: Transport, and Local Development Plans Wales (Welsh
Government 2005).

Background

The availability of car parking is a key element in managing car use and a
major influence on the choice of transport. Car parking can take up large
amounts of space in developments thereby reducing densities. Poor design
and layout of parking areas can make it more difficult to provide effective
walking, cycling, and public transport links.

Welsh Government (WG) is committed to implementing the principles of
sustainable development in planning policies and, hence, into new
developments with high quality design. Local planning authorities are advised
to ensure new developments include facilities to promote sustainable
transport. Applicants should be aware that new developments must make
provision for the safe cycles parking. A series of standards have been
adopted for different types of development {see Section 8).

The parking standards are based on the following factors:

= Arecognition that the availability of parking influences choice of means of
transport;

 The need to reduce reliance on the motor car and promote other means
of travel;

= Making the best use of the existing transport network; and

= The need to promote regeneration and investment in Denbighshire.

Where major developments are proposed (for example, a large industrial unit,

Draft SPG: ‘Parking Requirements in New Developments’ -2-

Page 76



LE

4.1

4.2

43

44

office complex or housing scheme) car parking provision should be reduced,
and the development should incorporate measures to further reduce reliance
upon travel by car. Such measures should be detailed within the Travel Plan,
produced by the applicant. Travel Plans propose measures that promote
environmentally friendly forms of travel in preference to the car. To
encourage cycling, measures could include financial incentives for cyclists
and the provision of facilities such as showering and changing areas.

The parking standards laid out in this document were prepared on the basis

of the following documents:

. County Surveyors' Society (Wales) (CSS Wales). Wales Parking
Standards (2008); The document was produced on behalf all 22 Welsh
Unitary Authorities and the four Welsh regional transport consortia:
Sewta, SWWITCH, Taith and TraCC;

=  Department for Transport: Inclusive Mobility (2005); and

*  Denbighshire County Council Supplementary Planning Guidance Note
21: Parking Requirements in New Developments (2004), a document
that supplemented Unitary Development Plan policy TRA9 ‘Parking &
Service Provision'.

Planning Policy

The parking standards have been updated to reflect WG and Council policy
on transportation and land use planning. National and local planning policy is
contained in Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5 — November 2012), Technical
Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport (2007) and the Denbighshire Local
Development Plan 2006 —- 2021 (LDP), adopted June 2013.

In line with national policy, justification of LDP policy ASA3 states “Maximum
parking standards will be applied throughout the Counly fo reduce the over-
reliance on the car. Their purpose is to minimise individual car-based Irips
and to promote sustainable transport means.” This SPG supplements LDP
policy ASA3 in laying out the parking standards to be applied in
Denbighshire.

It should be noted that the following car parking standards are maximum
standards for each land use category. Where the maximum is not provided
the developer will be required to show the scale, i.e. frequency and length, of
the journeys to the site and, if parking demands exceed proposed parking
provision, how the resulting shortfall will be catered for.

Additional guidance on parking principles for West Rhyi can be found in LDP
Supplementary Planning Guidance Note (SPG) 03. West Rhyl, and further
guidance on specific requirements for disabled people is laid out in SPG 08:
‘Access for all'. Applicants should also refer to WG Technical Advice Note 12:
Design (2009) and The Chartered Institution of Highways & Transportation:
Manual for Streets 2 (2010) for guidance on best practise with regard to
layout and design.

Drait SPG: 'Parking Requirements in New Developments' -3-

Page 77



5 Parking Standards
5.1 Parking Standards apply throughout the County with the following exceptions:
«  Where the implementation of these standards would cause road safety
or congestion problems additional provision will be required.

=  There may be occasions when a particular development does not justify
the levels of parking indicated. The Authority may give consideration to
a variation in standards relating to the nature of development, a lower
level of car ownership in urban areas and those well serviced by public
transport. In these circumstances, a fully reasoned assessment of the
parking provision proposed (covering areas such as existing public
transport or parking provision) will be the subject of negotiation with the
Council.

=  Variations may be allowed in the light of local circumstances (e.g. the
availability and existing capacity of nearby parking and public transport).
Each planning application will be assessed on their own merits
according to the size, nature, location, density, employment and traffic
generation characteristics of the proposed development. Planning
policies which seek to maintain the town centre and other areas
designated as main centres for development activity in the County are
also relevant considerations. In certain circumstances, e.g.
Conservation Areas, modifications of the standards may be allowed in
order to preserve built / natural environmental conditions.

. Innovative car free housing schemes will be considered on their merits.

5.2 In assessing the parking requirements for a particular development, the
Council will need to take into account a number of factors in relation to the
development and its location. These are listed below. However it should be
noted that some of these factors are outside direct planning control, e.g.:

a) accessibility to and the service provided by the public transport system;

b) the availability of private buses or the extent of car pooling;

c) the relative proportions of full time / part time / local catchment of
labour;

d) accessibility by walking and cycling; and

f)  accessibility to and the availability of public and/ or private car parking
space in the vicinity.

5.3 The full operational standard will normally be expected together with the non-
operational standard for employees’ vehicles and in certain cases for visitors.
(Definition of individual terms and notes can be found in Appendix 1). Where
possible, developers will be required to provide all the parking space within
the curtilage of the site. Section 106 Agreements may be negotiated with
developers and these can include a number of measures to mitigate the
potential impact of development and to address concerns.

54 Major developments will have implications on existing travel patterns in an

Draft SPG: ‘Parking Requirements in New Developments' -4-

Page 78



6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

6.1

6.11

area. Locating retail, housing, education facilities and health services can
cause change to travel directions, travel frequencies and the choice of means
of transport. A Transport Assessment for a proposed development should
assist in predicting implications and identifying measures to counteract the
likelihood of negative impacts. Like non-motorised user audits, the
conclusions and recommendations of a transport assessment should be
incorporated into the development proposal. Information with regard to
transport assessment requirements and process can be found in Technical
Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport, Appendix D.

Parking Zones

The parking standards are laid out for two principle parking zones that reflect
differing requirements for individual car-based trips in the County’s urban and
rural areas, availability of public transport services and infrastructure
provision.

The following two principal zones were defined with regard to the spatial
strategy as laid out in the Denbighshire Local Development Plan 2006 — 2021
(LDP) [Denbighshire LDP (2013), Chapter 5 ‘Denbighshire’'s Local
Development Plan Strategy’, p.11}. Their spatial demarcation is based on
development boundaries (LDP policy RD1} or areas of search (LDP policy
BSC6) as shown on the LDP proposals maps.

Every development proposal has to be determined on its own merit including
local circumstances such as, public transport and existing parking provisions.
LDP policy ASA3 wording already reflects this approach. However, if
applicants wish to deviate from the parking standards as set out in this
document, because the transport assessment indicates so, they are expected
to fully justify their approach in the Design and Access Statement.

At the time of writing, Denbighshire County Council is reviewing its parking
and enforcement policy which will consider factors such as the availability
and pricing of off-street car parking spaces, on-street parking restrictions and
enforcement strategy. Once ratified or adopted, those results and findings
may be used to inform the determination of parking requirements for
individual developments.

Parking standards for disabled people are laid out in section 7, and for cycle
and motorcycle spaces can be found in section 8 and 9 respectively.

Parking Zone 1

Parking Zone1 includes the towns of Rhyl, Prestatyn, St Asaph, Denbigh,
Ruthin, Corwen, Llangollen, Rhyddlan, Bodelwyddan, and the City of St
Asaph. Every settlement in this category is delineated by a development
boundary (LDP policy RD1) which is shown as a red outline on the LDP
proposals maps. in addition, employment land at St Asaph Business Park is
included in this zone.

Draft SPG: 'Parking Requirements in New Developments’ -5-

Page 79



6.12  In Denbighshire, these towns and the City of St Asaph are regarded by local

people as their destination for most activities which are not met within their
own settlement. The area has a full range of retail activity, doctor's surgery
and many commercial businesses, all within walking distance. Built density is

high with little private car parking.
6.13 Notes to individual types of development can be found in Appendix 2.

Residential: New build & Conversion

Type of Development | Residents | Visitors
General Purpose - Houses and Apartments _
Houses 1 space per bedroom | 1 space per 5 units
e | (maximum requirement 3 spaces} |
Apartments 1 space per bedroom 1 space per 5 units
i | {(maximum requirement 3 spaces) |
| House conversions to 1 space per bedroom . 1 space per 5 units
bedsits, or self- (maximum requirement 3 spaces)
| contained apartments | > L S
House conversions to | 1 space per resident staff ' Nil
| residential hostel 1 space per 3 non-resident staff
| Special Purpose Housvng _
Self-contained elderly 1 space per 2 - 4 units ' 1 space per 4 units
persons dwellings (not
 wardened) , _
Self-contained elderly | 1 space per 4 units ' 1 space per 4 units
persons dwellings ' 1 space for warden |
(wardened) 1 space per 2 ancillary staff !
Purpose built student | 1 space per 25 beds for servicing, | 1 space per 10 beds
accommodation under | wardens and drop-off areas | (for students &/ or
College/ University ' visitors)
| control : | :
Residential childrens’/ 1 space per resident staff | 1 space per 4 units
homes for elderly ' 1 space per 3 non-resident staff

persons/ nursing homes |

| Offices — Use Class B1 Business, Class A2 Financial & Professional Services

' Type of | Requirement | Type of 'Requirement

' Development | Development | AT
Offices (< 1000m3) 1 space per 35m? | Offices (> 1000m?) | 1 space per 60m?

li Shops (including Supennarkets & Superstores)

' Type of Development : | Operational ' Non-operational
Shops (< 200m?) ' 1 commercial vehicle space | 1 space per 60m?
Shops and small supermarkets | 2 commercial vehicle space | 1 space per 40m?

| (201m? - 1,000m?) _ _

Shops and small supermarkets | 3 commercial vehicle space | 1 space per 40m?

| (1,001m? - 2,000m?)

Supermarkets & Superstores ' 3 commercial vehicle space | 1 space per 14m?
(predominantly food)

(> 2,000 m?)

Draft SPG: ‘Parking Requirements in New Developments' -6-

Page 80



Retail Warehousing and Garages

Type of Development Operational Non-operational

Retail Warehousing 3 commercial vehicles 1 space per 30m?

(non-food) (non-DIY) spaces

( > 1,000m?) —— —

Retail Warehousing ' 3 commercial vehicles 1 space per 20m?

(DIY & Garden Centres) ' spaces

( > 1,000m3) ‘

Builders Merchants (Trade @ 3 commercial vehicles 1 space per 80m?

& Retail) spaces & 10% of GFA

Cash & Carry Warehousing = 3 commercial vehicles 1 space per 50m?

(Trade Only) ( > 1,000m?)  spaces

Open Air Markets & Car 1 space per stall pitch 1 space per 30m? of gross

Boot Sales stall pitch area including

— _ pedestrian circulation area

Garages 1 car/ lorry space per each | 2 car/ lorry spaces per

_ car/ lorry service bay each service bay

Service Stations (exhausts, 1 lorry space & 20% of 2 car/ lorry spaces per

MoT, tyres etc.) | GFA each service bay

Petrol Filling Stations 1 space for petrol tanker 4 spaces for ancillary use

‘ (eg automatic car wash)

Car Sales Premises 1 space per car 1 space per 50m? of retail
o | transporter area (internal & external)

Motorcycle Sales Premises | 1 commercial vehicle 1 space per 50m? of retail

| space area (internal & external)
Driving Schools, Private 1.25 spaces per vehicle 1 space per 3 auxiliary
Hire / Vehicle Hire, operated staff

Licensed Taxis
Industry and Industrial Warehousing (including Use Classes B2 & B8)

Type of Development ' Operational ' Non-operational
Small Industry ( < 100m?) | 1 van space 1 space

Small Industry ( < 235m? 1 van space . 2 spaces

Industry see Annotation* |1 space per 120m?
High Technical Industry . see Annotation* 1 space per 35m?
Industrial Warehouse  see Annotation* ;t_pace ‘per 140m?
Storage Warehouse ' 1 commercial space per 500m? | Nil

Distribution Centre '35% of GFA 1 space per 120m?
(< 1,000m?) .,_____.__.__
Distribution Centre 25% of GFA 1 space per 120m?
(> 1,000m?) -

Annotation* - Operational requirements:
GFA(m?) | Minimum (m? @ GFA (m? Minimum (m?) GFA (m? = Minimum (m?)
100 70 ‘} 500 i 100 1,001 | 150

250 85 1,000 150 1 2,000 200

Above 2,000m? GFA, the required minimum operational area should be taken as 10% of GFA.
Places of Entertainment

Type of Development ' Operational _ Non-operational

Children’s Play Centres 1 space per 3 members of ' 1 space per 20 m? play
staff area

Draft SPG: 'Parking Requirements in New Developments’ -7-

Page 81



Type of Development
Assembly Halls
| (Commercial) e.g. Bingo Hall
Assembly Halls (Social)
e.g. Unlicensed Club,

. Community Cenfres
Cinemas, Theatres &
Conference Centres

 Type of Development
Hotels

Public Houses & Licensed
Clubs

Restaurants
' Cafes & Drive-Thru
Restaurants (see

 Annotation*)
Hot Food Takeaways

Transport Cafes

| Operational

| 1 commercial vehicle space

' 1 commercial vehicle space

| 1 commercial vehicle space

' Non-operational
1 space per 8m?

| 1 space per 15m?

|
| 1 space per 5 seats

" Hotels and Restaurants

| Operational

1 commercial
| vehicle space
1 commercial

| vehicle space
|

| 1 commercial

| vehicle space
| 1 commercial

vehicle space

| 1 commercial

vehicle space

1 commercial

| vehicle space

' Non-operational

1 space per 3 non-resident staff & 1

| space per bedroom

1 space per 3 non-resident staff & 1
space per Sm? of public area including

| servery

1 space per 3 non-resident staff & 1

' space per 7m? of dining area

1 space per 3 non-resident staff & 1
space per 14m? of dining area (or part

 thereof)

1 space for non-resident staff &
adequate on-street parking for

| customers nearby

1 space per 3 non-resident staff & 1
commercial vehicle space per 2 seats

Annotation” - Restaurants mcludmg drive throfigh facilities for ordering and col[ectmg food
by car must have an internal segregated access for this purpose and be provided with a

minimum of 6 waiting spaces.

1B Ty Community Facilities
' Type of Development | Operational ' Non-operational
' Hospitals*  Essential vehicles as required | | 2.5 spaces per bed _
Health Centres & 1 space per practitioner 1 space per 3 ancillary staff
Surgeries & 3 spaces per practitioner

Churches & Places of |
Worship

“Chapels of Rest
Funeral Homes

Public Leisure
Centres
Fitness Clubs, Leisure
Clubs & Sports
Clubs**
| Marinas
leranes

1 commercial vehicle space

' 1 commercial vehicle space

| 1 commercial vehicle space

| 1 car and trailer space
1 commercial vehicle space

' 1 space per 10 seats or 1
space per 8m? of praying
| | floorspace

' 3 commercial vehicle spaces | as per Churches efc.
3 commercial vehicle spaces

1 space per 2 members of
| staff

1 space per 2 facility users
| & 1 space per 3 spectators

1 space per 2 facility users

| 1 space per berth
| 1 space per 45m?

- This level of provision would be appropriate for acute and neighbourhood District
Hospitals. For other types of hospitals a lower level of provision may be acceptable.
** - Clubhouse bar and restaurant facilities must always be separately assessed

Draft SPG: '‘Parking Requirements in New Developments’

Page 82



Educatlonal Estabhshment

| Type of Devel _pment ‘Operational | Non-operational ; ,
Day Nurseries & 1 commercial 1 space per 2 full time staff
Creches (new build | vehicle space
| property) | | -
Day Nurseries & | Included innon- | 1 space per 2 full time staff
Creches (converted | operational
| property) requurement _ .
Nursery/ infants/ ' 1 commercial 1 space per each member of teaching
Primary School vehicle space staff & 3 visitor spaces, Bus parking as
_ | | required
Secondary Schools 1 commercial 1 space per each member of teaching
| vehicle space staff, 1 space per 2 ancillary staff, 1

space per 20 students of age 17 and 3
| visitor spaces, Bus parking as required

Colleges of Higher/ 1 commercial 1 space per each member of teaching
Further Education vehicle space staff, 1 space per 2 ancillary staff, 1
space per 8 students and 5 visitor
| spaces.

6.2 Parking Zone 2

6.21 Parking Zone 2 includes all settlements in the rural countryside of
Denbighshire, i.e. villages, hamlets and individual buildings in the open
countryside. Except buildings in the open countryside, these settliements are
either delineated by a development boundary (LDP policy RD1) or an area of
search (LDP policy BSC6) on the LDP proposals maps.

6.22 These settiements may have a small number of local facilities within walking
facilities. Motorised travel is required for most journeys. Public services are
less than hourly and then only to one local centre. There is no shortage of
land for parking provision within the site but the adjacent highway system
offers limited opportunities to park cars.

6.23  Notes to individual types of development can be found in Appendix 2.

Residential: New build & Conversion
Type of Development Residents | Visitors

- as defined per Parking Zone 1 - :
Offices — Use Class B1 Business, Class A2 Financial & Professional Services i
Development | Requirement | Development | Reguirement |
Offices (< 1000m?) | 1 space per 25m> | Offices (> 1000m?) 1 space per 40m*
Shops (including Supermarkets & Superstores) |
Type of Development : ' Operational __Non-operational |
Shops (< 200m?) 1 commercial vehicle space | 1 space per 60m> |

Shops and small supermarkets | 2 commercial vehicle space 1 space per 20m?

(201m? - 1,000m?)

Draft SPG: 'Parking Requirements in New Developments’ -9-

Page 83



Retail Warehousing and Garages

Type of Development Operational ' Non-operational
Builders Merchants (Trade @ 3 commercial vehicles 1 space per 80m?
& Retail) | spaces & 10% of GFA
Open Air Markets & Car 1 space per stall pitch 1 space per 30m? of gross
Boot Sales stall pitch area including
pedestrian circulation area
Garages 1 car/ lorry space per each | 2 car/ lorry spaces per
| carlorry service bay each service bay
Service Stations (exhausts, | 1 lorry space & 20% of 2 car/ lorry spaces per
MoT, tyres etc.) GFA each service bay
Petrol Filling Stations 1 space for petrol tanker | 4 spaces for ancillary use
. (eg automatic car wash)
Car Sales Premises 1 space per car 1 space per 50m? of retail
o | transporter area (internal & external)
Motorcycle Sales Premises | 1 commercial vehicle 1 space per 50m? of retail
| space area (internal & external)
Driving Schools, Private 1.25 spaces per vehicle 1 space per 3 auxiliary
Hire / Vehicle Hire, operated staff

Licensed Taxis
Industry and Industrial Warehousing (including Use Classes B2 & B8)

Type of Development ' Operational Non-operational
Small Industry ( < 100m?) 1 van space 1 space

Small Industry ( <235m? 1 van space | 2 spaces

Industry ' see Annotation* ' 1 space per 120m?
Industrial Warehouse ' see Annotation® ' 1 space per 140m?
Storage Warehouse 1 commercial space per 500m? | Nil

Annotation* - Operational requirements:
GFA(m?  Minimum (m* GFA (m?* | Minimum (m?) GFA (m? | Minimum (m?)
100 70 500 100 1,001 150

250 ' 85 11,000 150 2,000 200
Above 2,000m* GFA, the required minimum operational area should be taken as 10% of GFA
Places of Entertainment

Type of Development ' Operational ' Non-operational
Children's Play Centres 1 space per 2 members of staff 1 space per 15 m?
play area
Assembly Halls 1 commercial vehicle space 1 space per 8m?
(Commercial) e.g. Bingo Hall |
Assembly Halls (Social) e.9. | 1 commercial vehicle space 1 space per 10m?
Unlicensed Club, Community
Centres
Hotels and Restaurants
Type of Development | Operational ' Non-operational
Hotels 1 commercial vehicle = 1 space per 3 non-resident staff & 1
| space ' space per bedroom
Public Houses & 1 commercial vehicle 1 space per 3 non-resident staff & 1
Licensed Clubs space space per 3m? of public area

including servery

Draft SPG: ‘Parking Requirements in New Developments’ -10-

Page 84



Type of Development | Operational ' Non-operational

Restaurants 1 commercial vehicle | 1 space per 3 non-resident staff & 1
space | space per 7m? of dining area
Cafes & Drive-Thru 1 commercial vehicle | 1 space per 3 non-resident staff & 1
Restaurants (see space | space per 14m? of dining area
 Annotation*) | R ) o
Hot Food Takeaways | 1 commercial vehicle | 1 space for non-resident staff &
space | adequate on-street parking for
Il _ | o | customers nearby
Transport Cafes | 1 commercial vehicle | 1 space per 3 non- resident staff & 1
! space commercial vehicle space per 2
! seats

Annotation* - Restaurants including drive through facilities for ordering and collecting food
by car must have an internal segregated access for this purpose and be provided with a
minimum of 6 waiting spaces.
: ‘Community Facilities 3 B
' Type of Development | Operational Non-operational
- as defined per Parking Zone 1 -
Educat:onal Establishment

| Type of Development : Operatlonal Non operatlonal
Day Nurseries & ' 1 commercial vehicle | 1 space per 2 full time staff
Creches (new build | space ,
property) | i | . _ _
Day Nurseries & Included in non- ' 1 space per 2 full time staff
Creches (converted operational requirement
property) i i _
Nursery/ Infants/ 1 commercial vehicle ' 1 space per each member of
Primary School | space teaching staff, 1 space per 2
_ ; i _ ancillary staff & 3 visitor spaces
Secondary Schools | 1 commercial vehicle 1 space per each member of
space teaching staff, 1 space per 2

ancillary staff, 1 space per 10
' students of age 17 and 3 visitor
| - | spaces, Bus parking as required
Colleges of Higher/ | 1 commercial vehicle | 1 space per each member of
Further Education space teaching staff, 1 space per 2
- ancillary staff, 1 space per 5
| students and 5 visitor spaces.

7 Access for disabled people

7.1 The Equality Act 2010 protects people from discrimination in the workplace
and in the wider society. All new public buildings are now required to be
accessible to and have facilities for disabled people. The requirements of the
Act do also apply to a wide range of buildings, including offices, shops, sport
centres, church halls and education facilities. Additional information and
guidance can be found in the document ‘Inclusive Mobility' which was
published by the Department of Transport in 2005.

Draft SPG: ‘Parking Requirements in New Developments’ =11 -

Page 85



7.2 Developers must give due consideration to the following aspects, which are
considered important to disabled person.

A. The signing of pedestrian routes - having established the most

convenient location for parking the vehicles of disabled persons, it is
essential that a clear system of sign posting to the appropriate access
catering for disabled persons should be devised and, implemented by
the developer.

The gradient of any ramp should be as slight as possible. The use of
the term 'maximum gradient 1 in 12’ should not be construed as being
acceptable to disabled persons, except where it is absolutely
unavoidable. Developers should consider very carefully the relative
levels of parking spaces and finished floor levels at an early stage in
their planning, so that a level or near level pathway (preferably less
than 5% gradient) can be maintained between the two, if at all
possible.

The difficulty caused to disabled persons in gaining entrance into a
building is covered by the documents but the delay in opening doors
etc., can cause considerable discomfort and therefore the developer
should consider providing a canopy over entrances designed for the
use of disabled persons.

7.3 It is recommended that appropriately positioned parking places, preferably
within 50 metres of the facility served by the car park and which are adequate
in size and number, shall be provided for people with disabilities.

7.4 The recommended proportions of spaces for Blue Badge holders:

For car parks associated with existing employment premises:
2% of the total car park capacity, with a minimum of one space.

For car parks associated with new employment premises:
5% of the total car park capacity should be designated (to include
both employees and visitors)

For car parks associated with shopping areas, leisure or recreational
facilities and places open to the general public;
A minimum of one space for each employee who is a disabled
motorist plus 6% of the total car park capacity for visiting disabled
motorists.

For car park associated with railway stations;
A minimum of one space for each railway employee who is a
disabled motorists plus:
- for a car park with fewer than 20 spaces, one disabled space
- for a car park of 20 to 60 spaces, two disabled spaces
- for a car park of 61 to 200 spaces, three disabled spaces
- for a car park with more than 200 spaces, 4% of capacity plus

Draft SPG: ‘Parking Requirements in New Developments’ -12-

Page 86



7.5

7.6

7.7

four disabled spaces.
Notes relating to disabled motorists parking standards

. If only 1 space is required as part of the total operational or non-
operational parking provision, the layout must conform to the
requirements for disabled motorists parking (see Appendix 3).

»  The number of parking spaces required for employees who are disabled
motorist is included in the total number of non-operational parking
requirements. However, a single parking space must be provided if
stipulated by the number of disabled employees.

» [f developers are not required to provide any non-operational parking at
all, the Council will encourage them to provide a setting-down point for
disabled people on firm and level ground, close to the main entrance to
the building.

Disabled persons parking bays in off-street locations should be marked out
with yellow lines and a yellow wheelchair symbol within the parking space. A
sign, or if appropriate signs should be provided at the entrance to the car
park to direct disabled motorists to designated parking spaces which, if the
car park is not under cover, should also have raised signs at the head of the
reserved bays. Signs inside the car park should show the most convenient
way to the facilities served by the car park, with an approximate distance to
those facilities. The marking out should comply with British Standard
BS8300:2001 '‘Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of
disabled people — Code of Practice’.

On street disabled parking bays should be indicated by signs and marked out
in full compliance with the Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions
(1994). Each bay should have a raised sign at the head of the bay to ensure
that if snow or fallen leaves obscure the road marking, the purpose of the bay
is still apparent.

Figure 1  Alternative ways of arranging disabled parking spaces

15.6m

21.6m ) ) 19.2m

slelalelelsl = [kl el ] [

3.6m 2.6m 1.2m 6.0m

slalslelale] = [l kel o |+

Draft SPG: 'Parking Requirements in New Developments’ -13-

Page 87



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

Cycle parking standards

Cycle parking should be located in a safe, secure and convenient location.
Care should alse be taken to ensure that cycle parking facilities are not
located where they may obstruct pedestrians, disabled persons and
particularly people with sight problems. Appropriate signing should always be
provided to indicate the location of short term cycle parking.

For reasons of security, cycle parking facilities should be located in areas that
are visible and therefore allow for informal surveillance. In certain instances
this could need to be supplemented through the introduction of CCTV or
other security means.

The design of cycle parking facilities. Sheffield stands (n-shaped steel bars

set into the ground) are best suited for short stay parking. These should be:

« 750mm high, 700mm long and at least 250 mm into the ground;

« spaced a minimum of 800mm apart;

= polyester powder coated, coloured to match existing street furniture or
buildings, (or else painted in black); and

« be protected from the elements by a wall, shelter or canopy.

Hitching rings or hoops affixed to walls and buildings can also be used where
space is limited and where Sheffield stands cannot be accommodated. These
should be positioned at 1.8m intervals and 750mm above ground level.

All residential developments should be accessible by cycles and cycle
storage should be a factor of dwelling design. In appropriate circumstances,
convenient communal facilities may be provided. Guidance on this subject is
available within Manual for Streets.

Small clusters of cycle parking facilities are preferable to large, central
parking compounds. All stands should be located so as not to obstruct or
endanger pedestrians, particularly visually impaired or partially sighted
pedestrians and wheelchair users. Bollards painted with contrasting stripes
may be required to give additional protection in this respect. Cycle parking
areas may also need to be surrounded by tactile markings.

Cycle parking facilities should not damage the area’s townscape or
landscape. In Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings, special attention
should be paid to the siting, design and materials used for the parking
facilities. Measures which detract from the character or sefting of a Listed
Building or which damage the character of Conservation Areas will be
resisted.

Further guidance on the design of cycle parking is available in the
Department for Transport Traffic Advisory Leaflet 5/02 ‘Key Elements of
Cycle Parking’ and in Sustrans Information Sheet FF37 ‘Cycle Parking'.

For the application of the following standards, it is assumed that the typical
dimension of a bicycle is 1.8m x 0.6m. There is no differentiation between

Draft SPG: 'Parking Requirements in New Developments’ -14 -

Page 88



different parking zones. A minimum of 1 space should be provided in all
classes.

8.10  Minimum Cycle Parking Standards

Land Use Type Number Of Spaces Required
Shops

Small convenience shops 1 per 100m? (or part thereof)
Food supermarkets 1 per 150m?® (or part thereof)
Non-food retail 1 per 200m (or part thereof)
Banks, building societies, betting shops | 1 per 60m? (or part thereof)
Food and drink outlets 1 per 60m° (or part thereof)
Industrial Uses

Administrative offices, research and 1 per 350m° (or part thereof)
development uses _

General industrial uses ' 1 per 500m* [2 r part thereof)
Storage and distribution uses 1 per 1,000m* (or part thereof)
Residential Uses

Hotels and guest houses 1 per 10 guest beds

Residential care homes, nursing 1 per 10 employees
homes and hospitals

Residential schools, residential 1 per 10 staff & 1 per 5 students

colleges and residential training

centres _

Dwellings No prescribed standard. However, secure and

convenient communal cycle parking areas may

be required in appropriate circumstances (e g
higher density developments with limiled, or no car parking)

Community Uses

Primary and secondary schools 4 per classroom
Sixth form and FE Colleagues 1 per 35m?

Medical and health centres 2 per consulting room
Leisure Uses

Art galleries, museums and libraries | 1 per 150m”
Cinemas, leisure centres, bingo halls, 1 per 75m®
concert halls

9 Motorcycle parking standards

9.1 Motorcycle parking should be located in a safe, secure and convenient
location where other vehicles cannot encroach or obstruct the motorcycle
parking area.

9.2 Motorcycles are prone to theft. For reasons of security, motorcycle parking
facilities should be located in areas that are visible and therefore allow for
informal surveillance. Surrounding high walls or shrubbery should be avoided
as they could provide cover for thieves. In certain instances the introduction
of CCTV or other security means could be necessary. In particular these
facilities should be located where other larger vehicles, such as vans, could
not be used to steal the motorcycles

Draft SPG: 'Parking Requirements in New Developments' -15-

Page 89



9.3 Robust anchor points must be provided to lock the motor cycles to, but the
design of the anchor points must be such that they are able to accommodate
a wide range of motorcycle wheel sizes, but without affording easy leverage
for bolt croppers or other equipment used for the purposes of theft. Care
must also be taken to ensure that locking facilities do not present a trip
hazard to pedestrians, disabled persons and particularly people with sight
problems,

9.4 Covered motorcycle parking would clearly be of benefit to riders, particularly
for long term parking, as would the supply of convenient litter bins as riders
have little space for carrying surplus articles. It is also important to consider
the supply of lockers for storage of riders’ protective clothing and helmets.

9.5 Motorcycle length and width dimensions are generally reduced when parked,
as the front wheel will be turned to a locked position. The effective length and
width vary between about 1600mm to 2300mm (length) and 650mm to
900mm (width). A bay size of 2.8m x 1.3m is recommended.

9.6 A further consideration is that of disabled riders. It is suggested that provision
be made for disabled riders by way of special marked-out bays of increased
size. Any rider experiencing reduced mobility and strength will benefit from
extra room to position themselves to the side of their bike when manoeuvring
or mounting. As the rider population ages, stiffness and reduced range of
movement will make this a common issue.

9.7 Motorcycle parking bays should not be surfaced with bitumen based material
as it can soften in hot weather, causing the stand of the motorcycle to sink
and the bike to topple. Concrete surfaces should avoid this problem. Further
guidance is available in Manual for Streets.

9.8 There is no differentiation between different parking zones with regard to
motorcycle parking requirements in new developments. If there is no
requirement for the provision for car parking than motorcycle parking spaces
will not be required either.

Type of development _ Motorcycle Parking Provision

All classes of development 5% of provision for car parking

10 Landscaping

10.1  Planting should be used in car parks to relieve the monotony of areas of
paving: to define or screen parking bays, and to provide visual features.
Landscaping is seen as an integrated part of the design of parking areas and
not as an after thought. Grass, ground cover plants, shrubs and trees used in
car parks should be pollution resistant varieties, and in the case of trees
should not be a type liable to heavy leaf fall, fruit dropping or branch
shedding. Particularly to be avoided are most varieties of lime, maiden hair
and horse chestnut. Care should be taken that planting does not obscure
sight lines at junctions or remove any degree of natural surveillance.

10.2 Plant selection should reflect local character and vegetation and draw on

Draft SPG: ‘Parking Requirements in New Developments’ -16 -

Page 90




10.3

10.4

10.5

11

native as well as the more ornamental of exotic species. Uitimate height and
spread should be considered in relation to nearby structures. Plant selection
must exclude those species of plant that harbour litter.

A useful guide for species choice is available on a web site compiled by the
Horticultural Trades Association in consultation with the Landscape Institute
at www.plantspec.org.uk.

In some circumstances, hard landscaping may be more appropriate, e.g.
concrete blocks, bricks, paving slabs, cobbles. There is a wide variety of
surfacing materials available, which can be used for car parks. The choice of
which one to use in a specific situation will depend on the intensity of use
expected, the desired appearance and the amount of money available for
laying and maintenance.

The design and landscaping of car parks should take into account the
guidance contained within the assessment guidelines of the Park Mark safer
parking initiative of the Association of Chief Police Officers as well as the
more general requirements of Planning Policy Wales Technical Advice
Note12: Design (TAN12).

Contacts / Sources

Denbighshire County Council Denbighshire County Council
Development Control & Planning & Public Protection
Compliance Team Policy Team

Caledfryn Caledfryn

Smithfield Road Smithfield Road

Denbigh Denbigh

LL16 3RJ LL16 3RJ

Tel.: 01824 706727 Tel.: 01824 706916

Email: planning@denbighshire.gov.uk Email: Idp@denbighshire.gov.uk

CSS Wales - County Surveyors’ Society Wales: Wales Parking Standards 2008

Denbighshire Local Development Plan 2006 — 2021, LDP theme: Achieving
Sustainable Accessibility, adopted 2013

Denbighshire Unitary Development Plan 1996 — 2011, Supplementary Planning
Guidance Note 21; Parking Requirements in New Developments, 2004

Department for Transport: Inclusive Mobility (2005)

Welsh Government, Planning Policy Wales (Edition 5), November 2012

Draft SPG: ‘Parking Requirements in New Developments’ =17 -

Page 91



Page 92



Appendix 1 - Definitions

AlA1

A1.2

A1.3

Al14

A1.5

A1.6

A17

A1.8

A19

A1.10

Operational Parking Space - Sufficient space to allow the maximum number
and size of vehicles likely to serve the development at any one time and to
manceuvre with ease and stand for loading and unloading without
inconvenience to vehicles and pedestrians on the public highway or to other
users of the site.

Non-Operational Parking Space - The space occupied by vehicles not
necessarily used for the operation of the premises.

Residential Parking Space - Includes space required for residents and space
for cars of people visiting the residents.

GROSS Floor Area - The standards that-are related to floor areas are
GROSS fioor area, i.e. including extermal walls, except where the text
stipulates otherwise in respect of public houses, restaurants, cafes and
places of worship.

Extension or Development of Existing Buildings — Any development carried
out within the framework of the General Permitted Development Order is not
subject to the parking requirements set out in this document. However, any
parking displaced must be relocated.

Public Transport Accessibility - Public transport provision has the potential to
reduce use of the car and where appropriate the level of this provision should
be enhanced by planning gain through the planning process at the expense
of developers.

Employment Densily - The standards have been assessed on density norms
(retail 19.5 m? per employee; industrial 35 - 45m? employee, office 16.5m?
per employee). Variations in density may be treated on their merits.

Land Use - for the purpose of applying the parking standards the following
table outlines the land uses specified within the Town and Country Planning
(Use Ciasses) Order 1987 and subsequent amendments.

Certain uses within this document do not fall within any specific Use Class
and therefore must be dealt with separately (see sui generis) e.g. open air
markets. The absence of parking standards for a particular land use does not
mean that no parking provision will be required.

Table 1 lists examples of types of developments with regard to the ‘Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)’ classification.

Page 93



Table A1:  Examples of land uses per category in Town and Country Planning
(Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)

Use Classes in 1987 Order | Land Uses in Parking Guidelines
Class A1: Shops | Shops; Supermarkets and Superstores;
. Retail Warehousing (Cash and Carry)
Class A2: Financial & Professional ' Offices (only in cases where premises are
Services provided principally for visiting members of
. | the public)
Class A3: Food & Drink Restaurants; Public Houses; Cafes;
_ ' Transport, Licensed Clubs
Class B1; Business Offices (other than in A2 above) / Light
_ | Industry
Class B2: General Industrial | Industry
Class B8: Storage or Distribution | Wholesale Warehousing
Class C1: Hotels & Hostels Hotels
Class C2: Residential Institutions ' Homes for the Elderly, Children, etc;
Nursing Homes; Hospitals
Class C3: Dwelling houses General Purpose Houses & Flats;

Sheltered Accommodation
Class D1: Non-Residential Institutions | Health. Centres; Surgeries; Churches;
Schools; Colleges of Higher & Further
_ | Education; Libraries etc. _
Class D2: Assembly and Leisure | Leisure Centres; Sports Clubs; Bingo Halls

A1.11 The Standards have not been defined in terms of the 1987 Use Classes
Order as this_would lead to wide ranges of recommended provision, e.g.
Class B1 business encompasses some office uses and industry. A standard
anticipating this inter-changeability would be very wide and therefore,
standards are only given for specific land use concerned e.g. office or
industrial use.

A1.12 -In view of the inter-changeability of uses it may be necessary to impose
restrictions.on development within these wider classes in order to reflect car-
parking requirements.

A1.13_ In addition, the Council reserves the right to treat all planning applications on
their merits' according to the size, nature, location, density, employment and
traffic generation characteristics of the proposed development and its impact
on the local and regional highway network.

A1.14 The acceptance of a submitted travel plan by the local authority may require

the preparation of a Section 106 Agreement to ensure continual compliance
with the contents of the travel plan.

Page 94



Appendix 2 - Notes relating to parking standards

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A2.6

A2.7

A2.8

Notes relating to Residential parking standards

Curtilage parking and garages should be provided as the most secure
parking option wherever possible, preferably located alongside the dwelling.
Remote garage blocks must be avoided. Garages may only be counted as
parking spaces if they have clear internal dimensions, as suggested by
Manual for Streets, for a single garage of 6m x 3m. If disabled access is
required, these dimensions must be increased to 6m x 3.8m.

For developments where clear evidence has been supplied that car
ownership levels will be lower than normal, a more flexible approach to
numbers of parking spaces may be taken. Acceptable evidence of this would
be a confractual arrangement with tenants to secure low car ownership
levels.

In respect of residential homes for the elderly and nursing homes, sufficient
operational space must be provided close to the building to enable
ambulance access and egress in a forward gear.

Visitor parking must be designed as an integral part of any development
where it is required and must take into account.the needs of the disabled.

Notes relating to Offices parking standards

Any office development carried .out within the framework of the General
Permitted .Development Order is not subject to the parking requirements set
out in this document. However, any parking displaced must be relocated.

Consideration may be given to a relaxation of the parking requirements in
shopping areas for the change of use at ground floor level of premises from
Use Class A1 (shops) to Use Class A2 (Financial & Professiona! Services).

Notes relating to Shops parking standards

Although 'retail parks' may have shared parking, such developments will still
require similar levels of parking fo single stores, because of the longer
duration of parking. Where existing premises are used for the
establishment of a stall type market, the applicant shall identify a location
for the provision of visitor parking.

Any development referring to shops and carried out within the framework of
the General Permitted Development Order is not subject to the parking
requirements set out in this document. However, any parking displaced must
be relocated.

The non-operational standard includes employees parking. In addition to the
operational parking requirements for servicing purposes, sufficient additional
space must always be provided to allow servicing vehicles to both enter and
leave the curtilage of the store servicing area in a forward gear.

Page 95



A2.11

A2.12

A2.13

A2.14

A2.15

A2.16

A2.17

Notes relating to Retail Warehouses and Garages parking standards

The range of trip generation and parking demand at retail warehouses varies
to a considerable extent. The parking requirements of the most common
types of store can be classified in broad bands. This is reflected by the
tabulated requirements.

Highest requirement - DIY stores

Mid-range requirements - Electrical/ gas appliance, flat pack
furniture stores

Lowest requirements - Assembled furniture/ carpet stores,

household. and leisure goods stores

Although 'retail parks' may have shared parking, such developments will still
require similar levels of parking to single stores, because of the longer
duration of parking.

Where existing premises are used for the establishment of a stall type
market, the applicant shall identify a. location. for the provision of visitor
parking. The non-operational standard includes employees parking.
Relaxation may be given to the parking requirements at fast service centres,
e.g. tyres, exhausts. MOT etc. Where ‘car sales premises include external
display areas, additional parking space will be required.

In addition to the operational parking requirements for servicing purposes,
sufficient additional, space must always be provided to allow servicing
vehicles to both enter and leave the curtilage of the premises’ servicing area
in a forward gear.

Convenience stores located at petrol filling stations will attract customers who
do not also. purchase petrol and wili therefore require parking space. The
additional requirement for this must be assessed as for a small shop.

Notes relating to Industry / Industrial Warehousing parking standards

Vehicles should be able to enter and leave the site in forward gear.
Relaxation’ permitted for operational space when special servicing
arrangements are made. Visitor parking is included in non-operational
parking.

Any industrial warehousing development carried out within the framework of
the General Permitted Development Order is not subject to the parking
requirements set out in this document. However, any parking displaced must
be relocated.

Industries of a highly technical nature are companies specialising in technical
innovation usually microprocessor based. If the premises are to be used as a
distribution depot, adequate space must also be provided to accommodate
commercial vehicles that are likely to be parked overnight.

Page 96



A2.18

A2.20

A2.21

A2.22

A2.23

A2.24

A2.25

A2.26

Notes relating to Places of Entertainment parking standards

In addition to the operational parking requirements for servicing purposes,
sufficient additional space must always be provided to allow servicing
vehicles to both enter and leave the curtilage of the premises’ servicing area
in a forward gear.

Notes relating to Hotels and Restaurants parking standards

Facilities for non-residents should be assessed by applying the appropriate
category. An allowance should be applied where facilities are to be shared.
The range in the parking requirements between zones allows for the
distinction between ‘country’ public houses and ‘suburban’ public houses
which are likely to have a higher proportion of walk-in trade.

Any hotel or restaurant development carried out within the framework of the
General Permitted Development .Order is not subject to the parking
requirements set out in this document. However, any parking displaced must
be relocated.

The non-operational requirement for restaurants and cafes in established
shopping areas may be relaxed if it can-be shown that they are ‘incidental’ to
the shopping area or where such restaurants are used largely in the evening
when adequate parking exists-in the vicinity. However, adequate parking for
staff must be provided at the rear. (This does not apply to transport cafes).

In addition to the operational parking requirements for servicing purposes,
sufficient additional space must always be provided to allow servicing
vehicles to both enter and leave the curtilage of the premises’ servicing area
in a forward gear.

Notes relating to Community Facilities parking standards

This range is intended to reflect different catchment areas of churches and
places of worship. Cne serving a local area would require a lower provision
than one serving a wide area.

Consideration must be given to the provision of a coach parking area where
appropriate, and to cycle and motorcycle parking. In addition to the
operational parking requirements for servicing purposes, sufficient additional
space must always be provided to allow servicing vehicles to both enter and
leave the curtilage of the premises’ servicing area, where provided, in a
forward gear.

Practitioner to include doctor, dentist, nurse, health visitors etc.
Notes relating to Educational Establishments parking standards

In addition to the non-operational parking an area must be provided for the
picking up and setting down of school children. In the case of Day Nurseries

Page 97



A2.27

A2.28

A2.29

A2.30

in converted properties the availability of adequate kerbside capacity (i.e.
unrestricted parking) should be taken account of. This should be assessed
when the nursery is at full capacity. Where part-time staff is employed they
should be aggregated to their full time equivalents.

Experience has shown that a minimum of 15 car spaces will be required for
most other types of schools. Exceptions to this may be specialised (e.g.
religious or Welsh) secondary schools with a large catchment area where a
reduced number may be adequate, or larger schools in each category where
a substantial increase (up to 50) may be desirable. With regard to buses,
sufficient off street spaces should be provided for all services that the
operator of the new school anticipates running for pupils, with the exception
of passing service buses.

The parking area should include a facility for vehicles to turn without
reversing. in exceptional circumstances “a circulation/turning area remote
from pupil circulation areas would be acceptable.

Definitions of schools for the purposes of these standards:.

Nursery - pre schoo! age groups 3 — 5 often in converted residential
— | property : !
| Infants | - formal schools ages 3to7
| Primary f - schools for children in the range 5 or 7 to 11

| Secondary | - age range 11 to 18 )
Colleges of Higher and Further Edlication - includes sixth form colleagues

Appropriate -provision must be.provided for parental drop off/pick up of
children as dictated by local circumstances and any school travel plan. Drop
off areas must be located so that the safety of pupils walking or cycling to
school is not jeopardised.

Page 98



Appendix 3 - Layout of parking areas

Figure 2, below, displays the minimum size for a single car parking space

A3.1
with additional requirements for wheel chair bound people.

Disabled Driver's Vehicles — The standard dimensions of car parking spaces
are 4.8m x 3.6m. This allows transfer from vehicle to wheelchair. With certain
layouts standard bays can be used but additional provision must be made for
the disabled to transfer to wheelchairs. Access to the rear must be provided.

A3.2

Figure A2  Minimum size of a single car parking spaces
Minimum Sizes for use by Whee! Chair Bound Person

| 2.4m | I‘J‘ 3.6m )_I | 24m | 1.2m| 2.4m |

| &K e |

Minimum Size

4.8m
4.8m
4.8m

A3.3 Figures 3 a/ b illustrate alternative ways of arranging 12 car parking spaces.
The first figure (3a) shows layout standards in accordance to the minimum
car parking space size of 4.8m x 2.4m, whereas the measures in the second
figure (3b) are based on a standard car parking space of 4.8m x 2.6m.

Alternative ways of arranging 12 car parking spaces in accordance to

Figure A3a
the minimum car parking space size of 4.8m x 2.4m
15.6m 202m
60m 156m - - T 42m 160m
- lZZZZZZ_ o
90° PARKING 60° PARKING
23.9m 324m
..... [36m 146m 37m 131m
45% PARKING 30° PARKING

Page 99



Figure A3b  Alternative ways of arranging 12 car parking spaces in accordance to
the standard car parking space size of 4.8m x 2.6m

17.6m 17.6m
4m 150m 0 0 00 T 42m 15.0m
90° PARKING 60° PARKING
2253m ———  2996m
SSSSSOIR RS SSSS ST
‘ T aem o3 T ST O
1000000 l CXXXXX D |asm
‘ 459 PARKING 30° PARKING

A3.4 Parking arrangements along public.roads have to take into consideration the
minimum circulation aisle width of 3.0m for single way traffic and 5.0m on
road accommodating two-way traffic.

Figure A4  Alternative ways of arranging parallel parking

3840m
.
l-< -
Kerb
£
S
™~
F E E
] Q
rm ¢
. E h
<
~
PRI PP PP PPl 7Pl 7l 77777l 7777777777 777777777 POLP PPl r el 7 rrrl7rrr’?rrsrs
p— Wall
24m
Wall
R R R g R R R R R R R _
£
5
~
f———
6.6m

A3.5 Vehicle Bays - The bay must be of sufficient size and be located so that the
vehicle can be manoeuvred within the site, e.g. the 12m rigid lorry requires
an absolute minimum of 105m? to allow it to leave a site in forward gear.
Further details of good design practice can be found in appropriate Highway

Page 100



A3.6

Authority Design Standards or ‘Designing for Deliveries’, Freight Transport
Association 1998.

| Articulated* (goods) vehicles | 16.50m x 2.55m
Articulated low loader vehicles | 18.00m x 2.55m
Rigid vehicles 12 .00m x 2.55m |
Buses and Coaches (two axes) } fl__3_ 50m x 2.55m
Buses and Coaches (three axes) | 15.00m x 2.55m
| Buses and Coaches (Arhculated} 18 75m x 2.55m |

| Refrigerated vehicles maximum allowed is 2.65m.

* - Road Traffic Act 1988: “articulate goods vehicle’ means a motor vehicle which |s
so constructed that a trailer designed to carry goods may by partial superimposition
be attached to it in such a manner as to cause a substantial part of the weight of the
trailer to be borne by the motor vehicle...”

Page 101



Appendix 3

MATTERS RAISED BY COUNCILLORS AT THE LDP STEERING GROUP

MEETING (NOVEMBER 2013)

Matters raised

Clarification was sought whether

parking spaces for disabled people
are in addition to the parking spaces
listed under ‘operational’ / ‘non-
operational’ and ‘residents’ / ‘visitors'.

Members suggested changing the
document layout from presenting
parking standards by land use to
parking standards by parking zone in
order to make the document more
reader friendly.

Clarification was sought with regard

' to the use of the terms ‘Lower Growth
Town' and ‘Bodelwyddan'’ in parking
zone 2.

' In general, Members raised concerns
about parking arrangements /
conditions within the town centre of
Rhyl

Response

| Paragraph 7.4 and 7.5 set out that all |

parking spaces for disabled parking
are calculated as part of the total car
park capacity.

| This proposal has been implemented

and the document layout has been
amended accordingly. (see section 6)

| Initial parking zones 1 and 2 have

been merged into parking zone 1, and
the term ‘Lower Growth Town' (LGW)
deleted. Instead of using the term
LGW, paragraph 6.11 lists all
settlements by name that are subject
to parking standards laid out for
parking zone 1.

' The Council is currently in the

process of reviewing its parking and
enforcement policy which will
consider factors such as the
availability and pricing of off-street car
parking spaces, on-street parking
restrictions and enforcement strategy.
Once ratified or adopted, those
results and findings may be used to
inform the determination of parking
requirements for individual

| developments.

Page 102



Agenda ltem 7

Report To: Planning Committee

Date of Meeting: 22"¢ January 2014

Lead Member / Officer: Clir David Smith, Public Realm
Angela Loftus, Planning & Public Protection Policy
Manager

Report Author: Lara Griffiths, Planning Officer

Title: Conversion of Rural Buildings Supplementary Planning Guidance -
Consultation draft

1. What is the report about?

1.1. This report accompanies a draft Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)
document on conversion of rural buildings which, if adopted, will be used in
the determination of planning applications.

2. What is the reason for making this report?

2.1. Following the adoption of the Denbighshire Local Development Plan (LDP), an
updated SPG on conversion of rural buildings is required in order to provide
further guidance for developers, Officers and Members. A draft SPG for public
consultation is attached to this report.

3. What are the recommendations?

3.1. That Members agree the draft SPG on conversion of rural buildings as a basis
for public consultation.

4, Report details

4.1. Following the adoption of the LDP on 4th June 2013, Council agreed to carry
forward the existing series of SPGs, including SPG 16 — Conversion of Rural
Buildings. However, given the significant differences between the previous
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and LDP policies relating to conversion of
rural buildings, the introduction of the requirement for affordable housing, and
the need for further guidance, it is necessary to produce an updated SPG on
this topic. When adopted, the SPG will be a material planning consideration
when assessing planning applications.

4.2. The SPG supplements the LDP policies on conversion of buildings from
agricultural, commercial or community uses (mainly policies PSE 4, PSE 10
and BSC 12) by providing further detail on what uses may be acceptable for
converted buildings, details of the marketing tests required and design
guidance.

Page 103



4.3.

5.1.

6.1.

7.1

8.1

The public consultation period would be a minimum of 8 weeks and is
anticipated to start in the last week of January 2014. All City, Town and
Community Councils will be consulted along with people registered on the
LDP database. Hard copies of documents will be available in all libraries and
one stop shops as well as on the Denbigshire web site. The results of the
consultation will be reported back to Planning Committee with a final SPG for
adoption.

How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities?

Corporate Priorities 2012-17. The SPG will contribute positively to the
following proposed corporate priority:

. Developing the local economy — Providing further guidance on the LDP
policy requirements will significantly contribute towards securing and
delivering rural employment opportunities throughout the County.

What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

Agreeing the SPG for consultation is not anticipated to create any additional
cost.

What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA)
undertaken on the decision? The completed EqlA template should be
attached as an appendix to the report.

An EqlA is not considered necessary for this decision. The principle of
converting rural buildings has been established through adoption of the LDP.
The SPG provides further guidance on this. The LDP underwent a full EqlA in
May 2011.

What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?

No formal consultation has been carried out, but internal consultation has
been carried out with the LDP Members Steering Group, officers in the
Development Control Section, County Conservation Officer, County Ecologist
and Corporate Equalities Officer and amendments made. The Members
Steering Group raised some concerns regarding the LDP policy which restricts
conversions to employment, commercial or community uses or on failing to
secure such a use affordable housing to meet local needs. The SPG does not
provide an opportunity to change this policy and following a benchmarking
exercise against other north Wales councils with up to date, adopted
development plans it is clear that this policy is consistent with all of these north
Wales authorities (Flintshire, Conwy, Gwynedd and Snowdonia). Concern
was also rasied that the 12 month marketing test was too long, it is again
confirmed that this is consitent with other north Wales authorities who have
published guidance on this. | would suggest that the 12 month test remains in
the consultation draft of the SPG with the opportunity to amend if necessary
following the results of the consultation exercise.

Page 104



9.1

10.

10.1

1.

11.1

Chief Finance Officer Statement

Any costs associated with the guidance should be contained within existing
budgets and therefore there are no cbvious financial implications contained in
the report.

What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them?

In the absence of up-to-date guidance there is a risk the Council will be unable
to effectively operate the LDP policy. This would result in a failure to secure
employment, commercial or community uses for rural buildings or additional
affordable housing in rural areas. The current conversion of rural buildings
SPG relates to the previous UDP policy, which is significantly different to the
LDP policy, and therefore cannot be relied upon to provide sufficient planning
guidance in the long-term. The adoption of a new conversions of rural
buildings SPG has been identified as a priority by the LDP Members Steering
Group.

Power to make the Decision

Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act (2004).

Page 105



Page 106



Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance - Re-use and Adaptation of
Rural Buildings

November 2013

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

Introduction

This note is one of a series of Supplementary Planning Guidance notes
(SPGs) amplifying the development plan policies in a clear and concise
format with the aim of improving the process, design and quality of new
development. The notes are intended to offer broad guidance which
will assist members of the public, Members of the Council, and officers
in discussions prior to the submission of planning applications and
assist officers and Members in determining planning applications.

The purpose of SPGs is to:
o Supplement or elaborate on adopted LDP policies
e Take account of national guidance.

Status and stages in preparation

The Council's SPG notes are not part of the adopied development
plan. The Welsh Government has confirmed that following public
consultation and subsequent Local Planning Authority (LPA) approval,
SPG can be treated as a material planning consideration when LPAs,
Planning Inspectors and the Welsh Government determine planning
applications and appeals. This SPG document was formally approved
for consultation by Denbighshire County Council's Planning Committee
on XXXX.

These notes have been prepared in accordance with guidance
contained in Planning Policy Wales (November 2012); Local
Development Plans Wales (December 2005); Technical Advice Note 6
— Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities (July 2010).

This SPG provides further advice and guidance on the Council's
commitment to safeguarding rural buiidings for uses that contribute
positively to the rural economy. It supplements adopted Denbighshire
LDP policy PSE 4 (‘Re-use and adaptation of rural buildings in open
countryside).

Background

Denbighshire has a wealth of stone built barns and other traditional
rural buildings which make a contribution to the distinctiveness of the
local landscape and the current and future economic needs of rural
areas. National and local policies support re-use of rural buildings for
purposes that contribute to the local economy and the principles of
sustainable development.

Pdge 107



3.2

4,

Changes in farming practices and the decline of rural services have
resulted in many older rural buildings becoming economically
redundant or ill suited for their original purposes. As a result many
owners need to look for new economic uses for their buildings. There
is demand to convert rural buildings to residential accommodation,
however, national and local planning policy presumes against the
conversion of buildings to residential use where such buildings may
suitably be reused for business purposes. This SPG confirms the
Council's commitment to safeguarding rural buildings for purposes that
contribute to the rural economy.

Policy Considerations

National Policy

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

National planning guidance is contained within Planning Policy Wales
(PPW) 2012, as updated, which stresses the need to balance the
protection and enhancement of the countryside with economic, social
and recreational needs. PPW supports a positive approach to the
conversion of rural buildings for business re-use.

Technical Advice Note 6 (TAN 6) Planning for Sustainable Rural
Communities (July 2010), states that the primary consideration when
assessing planning applications for the conversion of rural buildings
should be whether the nature and extent of use proposed is acceptable
in planning terms. It should not hormally be necessary to consider
whether a building is needed any longer for its present agricultural or
other purposes. However, local planning authorities should investigate
the history of use where there is reasonable cause to believe that an
attempt has been made to abuse the planning system by constructing
new rural buildings with the benefit of permitted development rights
with the intention of early conversion to another use.

TANSG http://wales.gov.uk/docs/desh/policy/100722tan6en.pdf generally
prefers business re-use over residential re-use (paras 3.5 and 3.6
refer):

(3.5) The conversion of buildings which are currently in industrial or
commercial use to dwellings may have an adverse impact on the local
economy...(3.6) Whilst residential conversions have a minimal impact
on the rural economy, conversions to holiday use can contribute more
and may reduce pressure to use other houses in the area for holiday
use.”

The TAN also emphasises that conversion proposals must respect
landscape and local building styles and materials. Where a proposed
re-use of a building may have a significant adverse effect on the visual
amenity of a locality the local planning authority if minded to grant
planning permission may impose conditions to secure improvement in
the external appearance of the building.

Page’108



Local Policy

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

The Denbighshire Local Development Plan (2006-2021) adopted 2013
sets the local planning policy context for the County.

Local Development Plan Policy PSE 4 Reuse and adaptation of rural
buildings in open countryside confirms that consistent with national
policy, re-use of rural buildings for economic purposes will be
supported. Policy PSE 4 goes on to state that where an employment
use has been demonstrated to be unviable that residential conversion
to meet local affordable needs may be considered. Evidence indicates
that there is a significant need for affordable housing across
Denbighshire which will continue for some time. Extending the
opportunity for residential conversions in the countryside for affordable
housing to meet local needs provides a housing source to help meet
this identified need in our rural communities. See PPW 2012 para
9.2.22

Policy PSE 10 - Local Shops and Services, states that the loss of
local shops and services will be resisted unless it has been
demonstrated that a continued commercial use is not viable, including
a marketing period and examination of financial records.

Policy BSC 12 - Community Facilities, states that change of use
from a community facility can be refused unless it has been
demonstrated that the potential for continued use as a community
facility is un-viable or unsuitable.

Buildings that may be suitable for conversion

Some rural buildings play an important role in the landscape of
Denbighshire. Proposals to convert such buildings in a sensitive and
well-designed manner could have a positive effect on the environment
and ensure that these historic/traditional buildings are restored and
serve a practical purpose into the future. As a result of their
importance, conversion is recommended. Nevertheless converting a
building should not lead to a loss of a facility or community service (i.e.
public house, village shop etc), unless firm proof is received by the
Council proving that the property has been marketed on sale and for
rent at a reasonable price for a period of 12 months, which conforms
with the principles of policies PSE 4, PSE 10 and BSC12 in the Local
Development Plan. Buildings which could be converted for an
economic, tourism or affordable housing use following it's unsuccessful
marketing for sale and for rent for their current use, include:-
agricultural buildings

chapels/churches

mills

public houses

old schools

Pdge 109



post offices/shops
vestries

NB This list is not exhaustive

5.2

5.3

6.1

Buildings that are unlikely to be_suitable for conversion

There are some buildings/structures that are not suitable for
conversion, such as the ones which are:-

Fragile in structure

Ruins, i.e. with substantial sections of the walls missing or that it is in
such a ruined state that only the remains of the original building can be
seen, see 5.3 below

Temporary buildings

In an area at risk of flooding.

Too small in size see LDP SPG 1 Residential Space Standards

In such remote and isolated locations which would result in
unsustainable development.

Necessary Structural Elements

With regard to the structure and size of the building, the application will
need to comply with the following criteria before it can be granted
planning permission:-

The structure of the walls needs to be visible and strong up to the level
of the eaves.

There must be obvious openings for doors or windows which can be
used.

The appropriate steps have been taken to ensure that the condition of
the walls of the building and the roof (where it exists) are safeguarded.
The present building must be of an adequate floor area, i.e. at least
50m2.

Should the conversion work mean carrying out work to restore the roof,
then it should not be necessary to re-build more than 10% of the total
wall area. Should it be unnecessary to carry out work to restore the
roof, then it would be acceptable for it to be necessary to re-build 20%
of the total wall area.

The Employment/Marketing Test

Denbighshire County Council is committed to the retention and creation
of local employment, rural services and community facilities. The Local
Planning Authority, in accordance with policies PSE 4, PSE 10 and
BSC12 in the Local Development Plan and national planning guidance,
will not allow conversion of such buildings to residential uses for local
needs affordable housing, unless sufficient and reasonable attempts
have been made to secure a business, commercial or community use
for the building depending on previous use.

Page'110



6.2  Sufficient and reasonable attempts at securing a business use for a
rural building will require a “marketing exercise”. It is difficult to be
prescriptive about the definition of the marketing exercise as each case
will be different. However the planning authority will expect a
marketing exercise as a minimum to comprise:

e bi-monthly advertisement in a regional newspaper

¢ advertising with a commercial property agent;

» notifying other organisations who may have an interest in
promoting the site.

6.3 The marketing exercise should last a minimum of 12 months. The
planning authority will determine at its own discretion what timescale is
“sufficient and reasonable”, following an assessment of the merits of
each individual case. The example cited below is an example of the
general requirements that the planning authority would expect:

 The rural building must be actively advertised for employment uses
for a continuous period of at least 12 months starting from the date
of the first advert;

» The rural building should be actively marketed through a recognised
and independent commercial property agent and should cover the
North Wales, Cheshire and Merseyside area.

» The rural building should be advertised for employment uses in an
advert in a regional newspaper on a bi-monthly basis during the
marketing period;

» The applicant must, at the start of the marketing period, notify the
availability of the land/buildings for employment uses to the
following (please contact the planning authority for relevant contact
names):

(a) Denbighshire County Council's Economic and Business
Development unit;

(b) Welsh Government, Business Wales; and

(c) Any relevant local business associations or interest groups.ie
local chambers of trade, tourism associations and local
Federation of Small Business groups etc.

» The Local Planning Authority will require evidence of the extent of
the marketing including copies of all adverts (with dates), when and
for how long the advert was in the agent's window, websites etc;

+ The relevant contact name at the commercial property agent must
also be provided in order for the Local Planning Authority to discuss
the extent of their marketing along with details of the marketing
particulars. Details of any queries received with regard to the
property must be reported back to the planning authority.

e At the end of the marketing period, the planning authority will
require a report setting out the enquiries received, including any
firm offers (conditional or unconditional) — with evidence where

Page 111



6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

necessary - and the commercial property agent’s view as to the
commercial viability of the site.

The Local Planning Authority must be satisfied that genuine attempts
have been made to both:
¢ Actively market the property;
o Market the property at a reasonable price for employment,
commercial or community uses.

The Local Planning Authority will require evidence of the marketing
exercise to accompany the submission of any planning application for
residential conversion.

Conversion to residential use for local needs affordable housing

Residential conversions in the countryside can have a detrimental
effect upon the rural character of the landscape and the local economy
as well as encouraging unsustainable private car use.

Re-use of an existing rural building may be acceptable where it has
been satisfactorily demonstrated that an economic, commercial or
community use is unviable and that it will meet an identified local need
for affordable housing. Occupants must have a strong local connection
to the Community Council area, in accordance with the Council’'s Local
Connections Policy (see Affordable Housing SPG) and also have a
financial need for an affordable dwelling. Applicants will be required to
provide evidence in support of the proposed occupant’s local
connection and financial eligibility. Further guidance on affordable
housing can be found in LDP SPG X Affordable Housing.

Other Planning Considerations

In addition to the guidance set out above, there will be further criteria
which must be taken into consideration when determining a planning
application for conversion. Some of the criteria will relate to residential
affordable housing conversions only and others will refer to both
residential and employment, commercial or community use
conversions. Where conversion to affordable housing to meet local
needs is proposed, the scheme should meet the requirements of LDP
SPG 1 Residential Space Standards.

In all instances the objective is to ensure that buildings to be converted
are adapted sympathetically having regard to their surroundings. In the
case of traditional buildings, the scheme of conversion should ensure
that the original character of the building is retained.

Quality/Condition of Building

Buildings should be of permanent and substantial construction and
should not be so derelict that they could only be brought back into use
by substantial rebuilding, tantamount to the erection of a new building.

Page’112



8.4

8.5

In order to establish the condition and physical suitability of a building,
an independent structural engineer's report will be required. This
should clearly demonstrate the structural capability of the building to
accommodate the scheme proposed and be submitted with the
planning application. This will benefit both the Council and applicant
since if a building collapses during alteration the planning permission
may not be able to be implemented.

Quality of Conversion

Once the suitability of a building for conversion is established, then the
actual details of the scheme need to be assessed. The following
considerations are put forward as generally reflecting good practice.
There may be individual buildings wherein the guidance may not be
appropriate depending on its unique character, design, materials and
construction. In such cases advice should be sought from appropriate
Council officers.

(a) Extension/alteration

Generally, the building should be capable of conversion without the
need for extensions and alterations. The roof line should not be altered
or raised and dormers will almost always be inappropriate, unless they
are traditional to other buildings in the locality.

(b) Internal sub-division

By the nature of their intended purposes, many buildings are open plan
internally. It is inevitable, particularly for residential uses, that internal
sub-division is necessary e.g. to separate kitchen, bathroom and living
space or to separate office space/storage. Internal sub-division should
be kept to a minimum so as to respect the internal features, space or
roof structures.

(c) Eievational changes

(i) Windows and Doors:

A difficuity experienced in conversion schemes is to enable sufficient
natural light into a building, without the creation of a considerable
amount of new openings (fenestration) which would seriously damage
its existing character. Wherever possible, existing openings should be
retained and new openings should be kept to a minimum. Where new
windows and doors are unavoidable, they should be sympathetic in
design, proportions and materials. The use of UPVC wili generally be
unacceptable and all external timber should be painted rather than
stained. Additional light may be achieved by the glazing of ventilation
slits and sparing use on less visible roof lines of fiush fitting
conservation roof lights.

(ii) Details:

Existing features such as fixed machinery, arches, lintels ventilation
slits etc., should be retained and incorporated into the scheme. Where
openings need to be blocked up a sympathetic material should be used

Pdge 113



and recessed to emphasise the original opening. The use of timber
boarding or glass may be appropriate for large openings with glazing
helping to ensure sufficient natural light is available. The introduction
of chimney stacks and modem or over-ornate details should be
avoided. External rainwater goods should be kept to a minimum and be
black finished cast-iron or aluminium.

(iii} External materials:

Existing stone/brickwork should be repointed using traditional lime
based mortars and methods, and roof slates/tiles should be repaired
and re-used wherever possible. In instances where new materials are
necessary, these should match the existing in terms of size, colour,
texture etc. Only when the existing building features rendering and/or
paint/whitewash will this form of treatment be appropriate.

External Areas

Notwithstanding the quality of the actual conversion scheme,
considerable care must be taken with the extemnal surroundings. The
creation of a residential curtilage, boundary treatment and the
introduction of residential and domestic features and materials can
have a damaging effect on the character of the building and its
surroundings. Bin stores etc should be sensitively located.

(a) Curtilages

The curtilage of a rural building should generally remain open and
uncluttered. Where there is scope for private areas in residential
conversions these should be screened with hedging and walls of old
brick or stone and should follow existing natural or manmade
boundaries such as hedge lines or farmyard boundary walls. The
treatment of boundaries should reflect the building's rural character
with simple post and rail fences stone / brick walls and timber gates
being acceptable. The planning application should include plans clearly
defining the extent of the curtilage areas and showing detailed
boundary treatments.

In residential conversions, conservatories, pools, sheds, interwoven
fences and ornate entrances etc., may detract from the character of the
building and its setting. The incorporation of agricultural land into a
building's curtilage constitutes a change of use and will require
planning permission but will normally be discouraged.

(b) Surfaces

Modern ground surface materials such as tarmac and concrete are
sometimes out of keeping with the character of traditional rural
buildings, aithough there are instances when tarmac may be suitable.
Wherever possible, existing stone sets, cobbles or other
suitable/sympathetic materials should be retained or re-used and
supplemented where necessary.

Page’114



8.6

8.7

(c) Landscaping

Generally, hard landscaping will be appropriate to courtyards and soft
landscaping appropriate elsewhere. Existing landscape features should
be retained where possible. Planning applications should be
accompanied by a fuily detailed landscaping scheme.

(d) Parking

Parking should be in accordance with the Local Pianning Authority's
guidelines. Careful consideration should be given to the sensitive
siting and design of car parking, in both employment and residential
schemes.

Wherever possible in a residential conversion scheme, garaged cars
should be incorporated within the conversion scheme, especially in
buildings with former loading bays and barn doors.

(e) Services

Particular care needs to be given to services which can have a
damaging visual effect. LP gas tanks, septic tanks etc. should be
sensitively sited and well screened so as to be unobtrusive whilst
electricity control boxes, alarm boxes, satellite dishes and flues etc.,
should be positioned on less prominent elevations.

(f) Storage

Some employment conversion schemes may need space for the
storage of goods and materials. As with car parking, careful
consideration should be given to the siting and screening of any
storage areas, ensuring that there is a minimal impact upon the
building and its surroundings by utilising screening through existing or
new walls or through landscaping measures.

(g) Access for Disabled People

An inclusive design approach is recommended to incorporate facilities
for disabled people in compliance with the Equalities Act 2010. Access
should be in accordance with the Local Planning Authority's guidelines,
Access Strategy and Approved document Part M of Building
Regulations 2010.

Amenity/Setting of Other Buildings

The relationship of the conversion scheme to other buildings needs to
be assessed. Often there will be dwellings nearby and both these and
the conversion scheme must take account of privacy and overlooking
issues. Agricultural or other operations, either on the site or nearby
must nof result in inadequate amenity standards.

Wildlife

Some buildings may contain roosts for bats, owls and other nesting
birds which are protected by the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Reguiations 2010 (as amended) and the Wildlife & Countryside Act
1981 (as amended). ltis illegal to kill, injure or take most wild birds

Page 115



8.9

and to take damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird whilst it is in
use or being built. Some species, such as the barn owl, receive further
protection under the Act. In such cases, the applicant will need to
undertake a pre-determination survey and Natural Resources Wales
(NRW) will be consulted on the results of the survey and mitigation
required. Local Development Plan policy VOE 5 Conservation of
Natural Resources should be considered. Applicants are advised to
contact the County Ecologist for advice and refer to any other guidance
on nature conservation and planning. Itis an offence to kill, injure or
disturb any bat and to damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place
a bat uses for shelter or protection, even if bats are not present at the
time. An offence can be committed even if the actions were
unintentional. Steps can be taken in the detailed designs of roofs to
provide suitable habitats and access for bats and birds and these will
need to be incorporated within any scheme where the presence of
these species is evident or likely.

Listed Buildings and Conversion Areas

Some buildings may be listed as being of special architectural or
historic interest or may fall within the curtilage of a listed building.
Others may fall within conservation areas. In both cases conversions
will require very careful consideration to ensure that the character,
appearance and features of the buildings are retained. Where
developments are being proposed under policy VOE 4 Enabling
development the special circumstances which warrant consideration
under this policy may override the requirements of Policies BSC 12,
PSE 4 and PSE 10 and this SPG guidance. A separate application for
listed building consent will be required where works are proposed to a
listed building or building within the curtilage of a listed building.

Removal of Permitted Development Rights

In granting planning permission for residential conversions permitted
development rights will be removed by the imposition of a planning
condition. All subsequent alterations i.e. garages, extensions,
outbuildings, sheds, alterations to the roof etc., which would normally
be permitted development, will require specific planning permission.
This is to avoid the loss of the building’s character through a series of
small changes which cumulatively have an adverse effect.

Contacts
Planning & Public Protection Policy Team

Tel: 01824 706916
Email: idp@denbighshire.gov.uk

Development Control & Compliance Team
Tel: 01824 706727
Email: planning@denbighshire.gov.uk

Page’16



CYNGOR

Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire
COUNTY COUNCIL

Conversion of Rural Buildings
Supplementary Planning Guidance
consultation draft

22/01/2014

Equality Impact Assessment

RN 55 s 55T




Conversion of Rural Buildings Supplementary
Planning Guidance - consultation draft

Contact: Angela Loftus

Updated: 22.01.14

1.  What type of proposal / decision is being assessed?

| A new or revised policy

2.  What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its
implementation?

The proposa! is to carry out a public consultation on a new Supplementary
Planning Guidance (SPG) on conversion of rural buildings.

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact

assessment? If no, please explain why.
Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken

The proposal is to to carry out public consultation on new
planning guidance relating to conversion of rural buildings.
The content of the SPG does not set policy but merely
provides additional explanation and information for Members,
Officers and developers in applying the policy. The LDP,
including the requirement to consider the conversion of rural
buildings. underwent a full EgIA in 2009.

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any

engagement undertaken
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance)

The Denbighshire Local Development Plan (LDP) is the overarching policy
document under which all SPG sit and this underwent an EqlA in 2009.

Page 118
1



5.  Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and

maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)?
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected
characteristics)

[ No |

6.  Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability;
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and
sexual orientation)?

7.  Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact? If no,
please explain why.

] | Not required

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or
monitor any potential negative impact(s)?

[ | Not required |

0. Declaration

Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage.

[ Yal | 03 2014 |

Angela Loftus | 22.01.14

Page 119
2



Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact.

Page 120
3



Agenda Item 8

Report To: Planning Committee
Date of Meeting: January 22" 2014

Lead Member / Officer: Angela Loftus (Planning & Public Protection Policy
Manager)

Report Author: Bryn Bowker (Planning & Public Protection Policy Officer)

Title: Draft Planning (Wales) Bill and Positive Planning consultation.

1. What is the report about?

1.1.  To make Members aware of the Welsh Government’s consultation on a Draft
Planning Bill and supplementary document entitled ‘Positive Planning‘. The
consultation closes on February 26™ 2014. The documents can be viewed via
the Welsh Government website or can be forwarded on request.

2, What is the reason for making this report?

2.1.  To outline what officers consider will be the main implications of changes
proposed to the planning system by Welsh Government.

3. What are the Recommendations?

3.2. That Members acknowledge the content of the report and outline any
comments that they would like to include in the Council’s response to the Draft
Planning Bill and Positive Planning consultation.

4. Report details.

4.1. The Draft Planning Bill and Positive Planning consultation document was first
published by the Welsh Government on December 4™ following a number of
independent reviews of the planning system. In broad terms, the consultation
paper seeks to modernise the planning system and identifies a need for a
culture change, which involves a change in attitude away from regulating
development towards encouraging and supporting appropriate development
that supports national, local and community objectives.

4.2. The proposals are grouped into the following four themes: supporting culture
change, active stewardship, improving collaboration, and improving local
delivery. For ease of reference, the key changes proposed to the planning
system are outlined below under each respective theme:

4.3. Supporting culture change by:

Page 121



4.4

4.5.

Forming a national Planning Advisory and Improvement Service that would
identify and disseminate good practice; assist in sharing expertise & resources
across planning authorities; identify, promote and target training requirements
for officers and members; provide targeted specialist advice & mentoring, and
publicise, disseminate & educate about Welsh Government planning
initiatives.

Developing a competency framework that would set two complementary
frameworks for planning practitioners and elected representatives that would
set out the skills, knowledge and behaviours considered necessary to ensure
that planning becomes a positive enabling activity.

Under the active stewardship theme it is proposed to:

Publish a National Development Framework which will replace the Wales
Spatial Plan. The National Development Framework would identify key
locations across Wales which could accommodate change and infrastructure
investment, set the framework for Strategic Development Plans (explained
further below) and Local Development Plans, maximise benefits from funding
streams, and set the context for Welsh Ministers to make decisions on
Developments of National Significance (explained further below).

Establish a new category of development for the largest infrastructure
planning applications (developments of national significance) with these types
of applications being determined by the Welsh Ministers or any person (s)
appointed by them. Welsh Government will also lead on mandatory pre-
application advice for developments of national significance, and local
planning authorities would have a duty to provide a pre-application response
on request. When the formal planning application is submitted, the local
planning authority would have to compile a Local Impact Report for \Welsh
Ministers.

Changes to the planning application appeal process to require appellants to
submit their full statement of case when an appeal is made; introduce a draft
Statement of Common Ground for appeals conducted by hearing or inquiry;
removing the right to appeal before an Inspector; provide Inspectors with the
power to determine how the appeal is handled, and enable award of costs to
be sought for appeals dealt with by written representations.

Under the improving collaboration theme it is proposed to:

Update the legal framework to enable Welsh Ministers to establish joint
planning boards that would incorporate local planning authorities for two or
more areas. The consultation documents notes that this joint planning board
would perform LPA functions such as the preparation of a LDP and the
collection of the Community Infrastructure Levy.

Establish a system of Strategic Development Plans for three areas in Wales
which are: Cardiff, Swansea, and the A55 Corridor. These three areas have
been identified on the basis that they are areas where there are matters
greater than local significance. For these areas, the Strategic Development
Plan will cover strategic issues such as housing, employment, transport, gypsy
and traveller provision, and minerals and waste. The consultation document
explains that when there is an area with no Strategic Development Plan

Page 122



coverage, a much more slimmer in content LDP (produced in conformity with
the relevant Strategic Development Plan, the National Development
Framework, and Planning Policy Wales) will be required.

4.6. Toimprove local delivery it is proposed to:

- Define what constitutes a good local planning service, and establish the need
for local planning authorities to produce an Annual Performance Report that
would quantitatively and qualitatively assess service delivery against a
common performance framework.

- Refine the Local Development Plan system and promote collaboration
between local planning authorities and town and community councils to
produce Place Plans that would ensure development reflects local
distinctiveness and would also identify priorities for community investment for
the Community Investment Levy. These Place Plans would be adopted as
Supplementary Planning Guidance.

- Frontload the planning application process by introducing a legal duty for local
planning authorities to provide a pre application service when requested. Two
charging options are proposed in the paper which includes either issuing an
outright charge for all pre-application requests, or only charging for pre-
application services if the initial request leads to a planning application.

- The Reform Bill also seeks to make changes to planning committees across
Wales by producing a national scheme of delegation, and by outlining the
relevant procedure for committee which includes stipulating the minimum and
maximum number of committee members (a minimum of 11 members and a
maximum of 21)

- Other changes proposed under the local delivery theme include; a review of
application fees; removing the requirement to submit a design and access
statement with a planning application; introducing temporary enforcement
stop notices to the planning enforcement process; making decision notices
‘living documents’ with the onus on the developer to notify authority when
development has commenced; prohibiting applications to register land as a
town and village green when that land has entered the planning system;
removing the debate of whether a use is acceptable in principle for LDP
allocated sites at the planning application stage (either by introducing a new
type of planning consent, or by ensuring such proposals are determined under
delegated powers); introducing a statutory duty on consultees to provide
substantive and timely responses to consultation requests, and providing the
option for applicants to submit planning applications directly to Welsh
Ministers when the determining local planning authority are consistently
performing poorly against a range of indicators.

How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities?

Page 123



5.1.

10.
10.1.

1.

At this stage the documents produced by Welsh Government are for
consultation only, however the changes proposed by Welsh Government to
the Welsh planning system, if implemented, could contribute to the following
Corporate Priorities:

Developing the Local Economy by making the determination of planning
application more efficient and timely, and stimulate economic growth by
allocating Strategic Development Areas across the country.

Clean and tidy streets by enhancing the planning enforcement process.
Modernising the council to deliver efficiencies and improve services for our
customers by making the determination of planning application more efficient
and timely, and by simplifying the planning appeal and LDP process.

What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

The ‘Positive Planning’ consultation document (Chapter 7 page 91) outlines
the potential financial benefits for Welsh Government, local planning
authorities, and developers. An internal officers’ workshop has been arranged
to ensure that all affected services are able to inform the Council’s response to
the consultation.

What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqlA)
undertaken on the decision? The completed EqlA template should be
attached as an appendix to the report.

This report relates to consultation documents produced by Welsh
Government, and therefore it is considered that an EqlA is not required.

What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?
An internal officers’ workshop has been arranged to ensure that all affected
services are able to inform the Council’s response to the consultation.

Chief Finance Officer Statement

Submitting a response to the consultation on behalf of the Council would not
incur any costs. In the long term, financial implications could occur for the
Council should the proposed changes to the Planning System be implemented
by Welsh Government. As noted earlier in the report, the Positive Planning
consultation document outlines the main financial implications for local
planning authorities.

What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them?
There is a risk that by not responding the opportunity for the Council to
influence changes proposed by Welsh Government would be lost.

Power to make the Decision
N/A.

Page 124



Agenda Item 9

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22 JANUARY 2014
INFORMATION ITEM

REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICES

NORTH WALES WIND FARMS CONNECTIONS MAJOR
INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT

UPDATE REPORT
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.1 Members will recall previous reports focusing on major infrastructure projects in Denbighshire.

1.2 This report seeks to update Members on the current status of the North Wales Wind Farms
Connections project, and to seek a resolution regarding the extent to which the Council should
participate in the planning process for this project.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Major infrastructure projects are large scale developments which require a type of consent known
as ‘development consent’ under procedures governed by the Planning Act 2008. This includes
onshore windfarms with a generation capacity over 50 megawatts (MW) and new high voltage
overhead electricity power lines at or above 132,000 volts (132kV).

2.2 Applications for development consent are submitted to the Planning Inspectorate, who appoint an
Examining Authority (either an individual Inspector or a panel of Inspectors) to examine the
application. The Examining Authority will make a recommendation to the Secretary of State, who will
decide whether or not to grant development consent.

2.3 The local authority is a statutory consultee on major infrastructure projects and has an important
role to play should they choose to engage in the planning process; the Council, at Communities
Scrutiny Committee (July 2012), has previously committed to fully engage in the planning process for
major infrastructure projects within or directly affected the County.

2.4 The Council does not receive a planning fee for engaging in the planning process for major
infrastructure projects; however significant officer time and resources, include procuring external
consultants, will be required to fully respond to pre-application consultation and participate in the
Examination process.

2.5 The Council has entered into legal agreements (e.g. Planning Performance Agreements) to cover
the cost associated with other major infrastructure projects in the County and Welsh Government
funding has also been drawn down in relation to windfarm developments within the Strategic Search
Area.

3. NORTH WALES WIND FARM CONNECTIONS PROJECT

3.1 The North Wales Wind Farms Connections project is for a new 132kV overhead line connection
which is required to connect the new windfarm developments in the Clocaenog Forest Strategic
Search Area (SSA) to the electricity network. Scottish Power Manweb (SPM), who owns the electricity
distribution licence for Merseyside, Cheshire and North & Mid Wales, is the applicant.

3.2 The project affects both Denbighshire and Conwy.
3.3 The proposed overhead line will start at a new collection substation at Clocaenog Forest (which

will collect the power generated by the new wind farms) and continue to a terminal pole near Sinan (to
the south of Glascoed Road, in Cefn Meiriadog). From the terminal pole, the connection will then

Page 125



continue underground to connect into the national transmission network at the existing St Asaph
substation. Only the 132kV overhead lines will form part of the proposed application for a
development consent order and be the subject of public consultation.

3.4 Early consultation materials have indicated the overhead line will mostly take the form of double
wood poles, with some steel towers being required. Please see Appendix 1 for more information.

3.5 The application is currently in the pre-application stage. A consultation draft of the Statement of
Community Consultation (SoCC) has been submitted to both Denbighshire County Council and
Conwy County Borough Council and the Councils have until Friday 7" February to submit comments.
Officers have delegated powers to comment on the draft SoCC, however a copy of the draft
document has been circulated to relevant Ward Councillors for comment and a hard copy has been
placed in the Members room.

3.6 SPM has previously carried out two stages of non-statutory pre-application public consultation;
Stage 1 focused on the three route corridor options for the overhead power line and Stage 2 focused
on the preferred route corridor for the overhead power line.

3.7 The draft SoCC specifically relates to Stage 3 of the pre-application consultation, which
constitutes as the statutory pre-application public consultation in accordance with Section 42 and
Section 47 of the Planning Act 2008. The statutory pre-application consultation will run from 3 March
2014 to 13 April 2014. (Please note, as part of the Council’s consultation response to the draft SoCC,
the Council will be requesting the timescales are altered / extended to fit with our Committee cycle as
the Council's formal response to the statutory pre-application consultation will need to be reported to
and endorsed by Planning Committee.)

3.8 The draft SoCC does not indicate when SPM intend to submit the application for development
consent to the Planning Inspectorate; however Officers consider that SPM will be keen to progress
the application in order to fulfill the grid connection agreements they have in place with the SSA
windfarm developers.

4. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Significant officer time and resources may need to be allocated to the project during the pre-
application consultation and during the Examination stage in order to assess local impacts.

4.2 The landscape and visual impact of the proposal is likely to be a key planning consideration; the
Council may therefore need to procure external landscape consultancy services to help assess the
local impacts of the proposal.

4.3 The Council has not entered into a legal agreement with the developer in respect to this project
and overhead power line projects may not be eligible for Welsh Government funding. The costs
incurred by the Council in response to this project may not therefore be recoverable.

4.4 The project affects both Denbighshire and Conwy, so there may be the opportunity to work in
collaboration with Conwy County Borough Council and share officer resources.

4.5 Whilst notwithstanding the resolution at Communities Scrutiny Committee in July 2012 to fully
engage in the planning process for major infrastructure projects, a steer from Members is requested
with regards to the level of resource the Council should dedicate to respond to the forthcoming
statutory pre-application consultation.

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Members are requested to note the key dates identified in Section 3 of this report.

5.2 A resolution is sought on the level of resource the Council should dedicate to response to this
project.

GRAHAM H. BOASE HEAD OF PLANNING, REGENERATION AND REGULATORY SERVICE

Page 126



NORTH WALES
WIND FARMS
CONNECTION
PROJECT

SP MANWEB

How will the connection be made?

Double Wood Poles

* Double wood poles average
15m in height and are spaced
on average 100m apart.

* The poles carry three cables
with an additional earth wire.
The conductors are
supported on a steel
structure which sits on top of
the double wood poles.

* This method of connection
offers the greatest potential
for sensitive routeing, in hilly,
small scale landscapes.

The decision
making process

The route corridors we are presenting in this exhibition allow for the

Steel Towers — L4

» L4 towers average 26m in
height and are spaced on
average 180m apart. The
tower is slender in profile with
a narrow base (4m x 4m). The
towers can either be single
circuit, carrying a 132kV line
on one side, or double circuit,
carrying two 132KV lines, one
on either side.

» Steel towers offer less scope
for sensitive routeing and are
more suited to expansive,
relatively flat landscapes. Their
longer spans make them
useful for crossing steep
sided valleys which would be
too steep for wood poles.

W et e

et e e —imm e

connection to be made by overhead lines, underground cables or
a combination of the two. The farmland through which we need to
build is considered more suited to wood poles than steel towers.
Steel towers may be considered in selected locations for example
crossing steep sided river valleys. small scale landscapes
Tgage 17

Underground Cables

* The trench for an
underground cable is
approximately 1.5m wide. In
agricultural land the overall
working width would be
approximately 15-20m.
Cables can be laid in ducts
in roads or across
agricultural fields.

* Undergrounding may be
appropriate where there are
serious concerns about the
potential adverse landscape
and visual effects of an
overhead line.

* Being talier, steel towers
are more visually intrusive
and more likely to be seen
on the skyline

» Steel towers are more urban
in appearance

* Wood poles are more flexible
for routeing and can provide
a better landscape ‘fit’ with
existing features

» Steel towers can be used to
span steep sided valleys



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



Agenda Item 10

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22" JANUARY 2014
AGENDA ITEM NO.

INFORMATION REPORT BY THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

PLANNING APPEAL DECISION

ERECTION OF PITCHED ROOF DORMER STYLE EXTENSION AT REAR AND
CONSERVATORY AT SIDE OF DWELLING

ERW LAS, PANT DU ROAD, ERYRYS
APPLICATION NO. 21/2013/0797/PF

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report attaches, for Members information, an appeal decision from the Planning

Inspectorate relating to the Council’s refusal of planning permission for the above
development.

1.2 The item is presented to Members as the appeal decision raises important matters of
interpretation of the Local Development Plan policy relating to extensions to dwellings, and
there are a number of conclusions in the appeal Inspector’s decision letter which are material
to Members and Officers considerations of similar proposals in the County.

BACKGROUND

2.1 The planning appeal arose from the decision to refuse the application to extend a private
dwelling in open countryside. The decision was made under Officers delegated powers in
August 2013. The reason for refusal was as follows:

1. It is the opinion of the Local Planning Authority that the proposed extension would not be
subordinate to the original dwelling; as the proposal combined with the previous extension
would double the footprint of the original dwelling, contrary to test i) of Policy RD3 Extensions
and Alterations to Dwellings of the Local Development Plan and advice contained in SPG1
Extensions to Dwellings.

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICY RD3

2.2 Forinformation, the main policy of the LDP relating to extensions to dwellings states as fallows:

The extension or alteration of existing dwellings will be supported providing the following criteria are met:

i) the scale and form of the proposed alteration or extension is subordinate lo the original dwelling, or the
dwellfing as it was 20 years before the planning application to extend is made; and

ii) the proposal is sympathetic in design, scale, massing and materials to the character and appearance of the
existing building, and

iff) the proposal does not represent an overdevelopment of the site.

Page 129



2.3 The application was submitted in June 2013, after the formal adoption of the Local Development

2.5

3.2

33

Plan, hence it was considered by Officers in accordance with the above policy.

2.4 Relevant sections of the Case Officer’'s summary of the proposals and the reasons for
concluding the development was contrary to policy RD3 are set out below. This formed the main
case to the Planning Inspectorate on the appeal lodged against refusal:

The original dwelling (pre 2010 extension) had a footprint of approximately 70m sq.

The awelling has been extended in 2010, when approximately 48m sq was added on to the
southern side.

The main extension would add over 6m in width and 9m to the depth of the dwelling, thus an
overall foolprint increase of over 54m sq. This extension would be two storey, although this
would be achieved by excavation rather than increasing the ridge height. The conservatory
would add another 9m sq to the foolprint. It is noted that the extension permitted in 2010 would
have resulted in the awelling becoming a 4 bedroom house, with a large lounge and kitchen
area. The submitted ‘existing’ plans appear to be at odds with the previously approved plans,
showing 1 bedroom /ess.

Test i) of planning policy RD3 specifically states that the extension must be subordinate in scale
to the original dwelling. It is noted that the original dwelling was a simple bungalow, measuring
roughly 70m sq. The 2010 and proposed addition to the bungalow would have a footprint
extension of over 100sq m. The original frontage would be doubled and an additional storey
added.

It is considered that the proposals would not comply with the requirements of the policies, and
would not therefore have an acceptable impact on visual amenity.

The Officer conclusion on the application was therefore that the proposal to more than
double the footprint of the pre 2010 dwelling was contrary to test i) of Policy RD3, as this
could not reasonably be regarded as subordinate to the original dwelling. It was not
considered there were conflicts with the other tests of the policy relating to design, scale
and massing, or overdevelopment of the site.

POINTS OF INTEREST FROM THE APPEAL DECISION.

Initially it is relevant to note that the Planning Inspector identified the main planning
issue to be the effect of the development on the character and appearance of the host
property and the surrounding area.

The Inspector was aware that the proposal would effectively double the footprint of the
original dwelling, and that the Council had refused the permission on the basis that
this failed the test in Policy RD3 of the LDP, requiring extensions to be subordinate to
the original dwelling.

However, the Inspector took a broader view of the policy having regard to the detailing
of the development, concluding the design features of the main extension would be
sufficiently sympathetic to the dwelling to ensure that it would be ‘visually subordinate’,
thereby minimising its visual impact. He noted the extension would by virtue of its
siting be largely unseen from the public highway, and would be screened in part by

2

Page 130



woodland, ensuring the design features would not appear discordant. He assessed the
conservatory separately, referring to its more modest scale, and concluded this would
remain subservient to the dwelling and would not cause material harm.

3.4 The Inspector’'s summing up is interesting in that it highlights the conclusion that the
development would be sufficiently sympathetic in design terms to ensure that it would
be visually subordinate and would not cause material harm to the character of the host
property and surrounding area; and he consequently determined there was no conflict
with policy or the advice in the Council’'s Supplementary Guidance on extensions.

3.5 The appeal decision suggests the Planning Inspectorate do not consider it reasonable
to base refusal of permission on a narrow interpretation of what may be ‘subordinate’
in terms of extensions to existing dwellings. Whilst Officers had, in this instance,
attached significance to actual / proportional increases in footprint / floorspace in
assessing the issue of subordinate development, it is clear that the Inspector in this
case took a wider perspective. The Inspector attached greater weight to the overali
design and visual impact considerations, and whether the resulting development
would be visually subordinate, and acceptable in terms of effect on the character and
appearance of the dwelling and the surrounding area. It is significant that in allowing
the appeal, the Inspector actually concluded there was no conflict with Policy RD3.

4, RECOMMENDATION

4.1 That the Planning Committee notes the information report.

GRAHAM H. BOASE

HEAD OF PLANNING & PUBLIC PROTECTION

Page 131



Page 132



| % The Planning Inspectorate
Yr Arolygiaeth Gynllunio

Penderfyniad ar yr Apél Appeal Decision

Ymweliad a safle a wnaed ar 26/11/13 Site visit made on 26/11/13

gan Richard E. Jenkins BA (Hons) MSc by Richard E. Jenkins BA (Hons) MSc
MRTPI MRTPI

Arolygydd a benodir gan Weinidogion Cymru  an Inspector appointed by the Welsh Ministers
Dyddiad: 04/12/13 Date: 04/12/13

Appeal Ref: APP/R6830/A/13/2206179
Site address: Erw Las, Pant Du Road, Eryrys, Mold, CH7 4DD

The Welsh Ministers have transferred the authority to decide this appeal to me as the
appointed Inspector.

= The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a
refusal to grant planning permission.

» The appeal is made by Mrs Elsie Sheldon against the decision of Denbighshire County Council,

» The application Ref 21/2013/0797/PF, dated 24 June 2013, was refused by notice dated 19
August 2013,

¢ The development proposed Is the erection of pitched-roof dormer-style extension at rear and
conservatory at side of dwelling.

Decision

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for the erection of a pitched
roof dormer style extension at rear and conservatory at side of dwelling at Erw Las,
Pant Du Road, Eryrys, Mold, CH7 4DD in accordance with the terms of the application,
Ref 21/2013/0797/PF, dated 24 June 2013, and the plans submitted with it, subject to
the following conditions:

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than five years from the
date of this decision,

2)  The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the
extension hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

Procedural Matter

2. I have taken the description of development from the Council’s Notice of Decision as it
provides a more concise and accurate description of the development proposed.

Main Issue

3. This is the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the
host property and surrounding area.

Reasons

4. The appeal property comprises a single storey dwelling in a countryside location to the
north east of Eryrys. The property is set back at right angles to the road, with the
southern tip of its curtilage forming an access onto the highway. The appeal proposal

www,planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

Page 133



| Appeal Decision APP/R6830/A/13/2206179

10.

would erect a split leve! extension to the northern elevation, with a more modest
conservatory to the western elevation.

The proposed extensions, in combination with a previous extension granted planning
permission in 2010, would effectively double the footprint of the original dwelling. For
this reason the Council consider the proposal to fail the test in policy RD3 of the
adopted Local Development Plan (LDP) 2013, which, amongst other things, requires
extensions to be subordinate to the original dwelling.

However, whilst the property struggles in its definition of the principal elevation, the
split level extension would effectively be located to the rear of the property, at least
when viewed from the public highway. This extension would also be set back from the
western elevation, set down from the ridge height of the existing building and would
comprise materials to match those on the host property. In this respect, whilst I
acknowledge the incremental increase in floor space, including the substantial increase
proposed in this appeal, I consider that the proposed design features would be
sufficiently sympathetic to the host property to ensure that it would be visually
subordinate, thereby minimising its visual impact.

I acknowledge that the proposed gable feature would extend beyond the rear building
line to the east. I also acknowledge that the proposed dormer is not a typical feature
of the property. However, by virtue of their siting, both features would be largely
unseen from the public highway and would be well screened to the north by a small
area of woodland. Notwithstanding this, the proposed gable would mirror the existing
gable to the south and any easterly views of the proposed dormer would be set
against the backdrop of the pitched roof. For these reasons I do not consider that the
proposed features would appear dominant or discordant.

Finally, whilst the proposed conservatory would be visible from the public highway, its
more modest scale and lean to roof would ensure that it would remain subservient to
the host property. As such I do not consider it would cause material harm.

For these reasons I conclude that the proposed development would be sufficiently
sympathetic in design terms to ensure that it would be visually subordinate and would
not, therefore, cause material harm to the character and appearance of the host
property and surrounding area. As such I find no conflict with Policy RD3 of the LDP
(2013) or the advice contained within the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance
relating to Extensions to Dwellings.

For these reasons, and having regard to all matters raised, I conclude that the appeal
should be allowed.

Richard E. Jenkins
INSPECTOR

www.planningportal.gov.uk/planninginspectorate

2

Page 134



	Agenda
	1 APOLOGIES
	Votingupdated1212

	4 MINUTES
	5 APPLICATIONS FOR PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
	1 wool depot Denbigh
	2 Lleweni Denbigh
	3 Rhos isa Llandrillo
	4 Tyn y Wal Meliden

	6 DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: PARKING REQUIREMENTS
	SPG - Parking Requirements app1

	7 DRAFT SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE: CONVERSION OF RURAL BUILDINGS
	App 1 Conversion Rural Buildings

	8 DRAFT PLANNING (WALES) BILL AND POSITIVE PLANNING CONSULTATION
	9 NORTH WALES WIND FARMS CONNECTIONS MAJOR  INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT - UPDATE REPORT
	wind farm app1_

	10 PLANNING APPEAL DECISION - APPLICATION NO. 21/2013/0797/PF - ERW LAS, PANT DU ROAD ERYRYS -

